Table of Contents

FORTUNE V SEPARATE ACCOUNT

INDIVIDUAL FLEXIBLE PURCHASE PAYMENT DEFERRED VARIABLE ANNUITY CONTRACTS

Issued By

UNIVERSAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

SAN JUAN, PR 00917-2011

(787) 706-7095

PROSPECTUS

May 2, 2024

This Prospectus describes individual flexible purchase payment deferred variable annuity contracts ("Contract" or "Contracts") issued through the Fortune V Separate Account (the "Variable Account") of Universal Life Insurance Company ("Universal Life" or the "Company"). The Variable Account is a separate account of Universal Life that contains six separate Investment Options, (also called "Sub-Accounts"), each of which invests in a portfolio of shares of separate underlying mutual funds. These six Investment Options are:

UNIVERSAL VIA ASSET ALLOCATION - GROWTH PORTFOLIO ("Growth Portfolio")

UNIVERSAL VIA ASSET ALLOCATION - MODERATE GROWTH PORTFOLIO ("Moderate Growth Portfolio")

UNIVERSAL VIA ASSET ALLOCATION - MODERATE PORTFOLIO ("Moderate Portfolio")

UNIVERSAL VIA ASSET ALLOCATION - CONSERVATIVE PORTFOLIO ("Conservative Portfolio")

UNIVERSAL VIA ASSET ALLOCATION - INTERNATIONAL GROWTH PORTFOLIO ("International Growth Portfolio")

UNIVERSAL VIA – MONEY MARKET PORTFOLIO ("Money Market Portfolio"). An investment in the Money Market Portfolio is neither insured nor guaranteed by the U.S. Government.

If you are a new investor in the Contract, you may return the Contract for any reason, within fifteen calendar days of delivery from Universal Life's home office without paying fees or penalties, and Universal Life will refund the Contract Value or other amount as required by law (see "<u>Right to Examine and Cancel</u>"). You should review this Prospectus, or consult with your investment professional, for additional information about the specific cancellation terms that apply.

Your investment is subject to investment risks, including loss of the amount invested. In general, deferred variable annuities are long-term investments; they are not intended as short-term investments. Additional information about certain investment products, including variable annuities, has been prepared by the Securities and Exchange Commission's staff and is available at <u>Investor.gov</u>.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission, U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission, nor any State Securities Commission has approved or disapproved these securities or passed upon the accuracy of this Prospectus, and any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

This Prospectus sets forth basic information that you should know before investing. Please keep this Prospectus for future reference.

Amounts allocated to a Sub-Account Investment Option by the Contract Owner will be used to purchase accumulation units, representing the value of the investment in the Sub-Account. After the initial purchase of accumulation units, the value of a Contract's investment in a Sub-Account will be based on the number of units held and the current accumulation unit value, which will fluctuate with the investment performance of the underlying investments in the mutual funds of the Sub-Account. Therefore, the value of your annuity Contract will depend on the investment performance of the collection of underlying mutual funds, which value will fluctuate with market factors. You bear the entire investment risk for all amounts invested in the Contract.

Three versions, or "Classes," of the Contracts are available: (1) the base Universal VIA Contract (Class B); (2) the Universal VIA with Liquidity Rider Contract (Class L); and (3) the Universal VIA Select Contract (Class C). The Contract classes vary in the length of the surrender charge (Contingent Deferred Sales Charge) period and the amount of the annual Variable Account Charge.

The variable annuity contracts described herein are offered exclusively to Residents of Puerto Rico. For these purposes, a "Resident of Puerto Rico" is: (i) an individual (A) having his or her principal residence within the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico who has been a resident of Puerto Rico during a period that includes an entire taxable year, (B) who is a bona fide resident of Puerto Rico pursuant to Sections 933 and 937(a) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, and (C) a resident of Puerto Rico for purposes of the Puerto Rico Internal Revenue Code; and (ii) a non-business trust whose trustee, if an individual, has his or her principal residence in Puerto Rico or, if an entity, whose principal office and principal place of business are located within the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, all of whose Beneficiaries have their principal residence in Puerto Rico and which is either a Qualified Trust or an Agent Trust. See "Tax Considerations" in this Prospectus.

This Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy the Contracts in any jurisdiction in which such may not be lawfully made. No person is authorized to make any representations in connection with this offering other than those contained in this Prospectus.

Table of Contents

| Definitions | 1 |
|---|----|
| Important Information You Should Consider About the Contract | 4 |
| Overview of the Contract | 8 |
| Fee Table | 10 |
| Principal Risks of Investing in the Contract | 19 |
| The Fortune V Separate Account and Universal Life Insurance Company | 23 |
| The Variable Account Sub-Accounts | 23 |
| Investment Objectives and Policies | 24 |
| General – All Sub-Account Investment Options | 26 |
| Benefits Available Under the Contract | 27 |
| Death Benefit | 28 |
| Optional Benefit Riders | 33 |
| Living Benefit Riders | 34 |
| Contract Owner Services | 38 |
| Asset Rebalancing | 38 |
| Dollar Cost Averaging | 38 |
| Systematic Withdrawals | 38 |
| Management of the Variable Account | 39 |
| Voting Rights | 41 |
| Charges and Deductions | 42 |
| Surrender Charge (Contingent Deferred Sales Charge) | 42 |
| Variable Account Charge | 43 |
| The Fortune V "Rule 12b-1 Plan" | 44 |
| Puerto Rico Tax Charge | 44 |
| Investment Management and Portfolio Construction Manager Fees | 44 |
| Other Sub-Account Expenses | 44 |
| Contract Maintenance Charge | 45 |
| One-Year Enhanced Death Benefit Option | 45 |
| Optional Living Benefit Rider Charges | 45 |
| The Contract; Purchases and Contract Value | 47 |
| The Contract in General | 47 |
| Right to Examine and Cancel ("Free Look") | 48 |
| Minimum Initial and Subsequent Purchase Payments | 48 |
| Pricing | 48 |
| Allocation of Purchase Payments | 49 |
| Determining the Contract Value | 49 |
| Type of Contract | 50 |
| IRA and Nondeductible IRA Contributions Limit | 50 |
| Distribution of the Contracts | 51 |
| Transfers | 52 |
| Transfer Requests | 52 |
| Surrenders and Partial Withdrawals | 54 |
| Surrenders and Partial Withdrawals Prior to Annuitization | 54 |
| Surrenders Required by the U.S. Internal Revenue Code | 55 |
| Additional Tax Information | 55 |
| Surrenders and Partial Withdrawals After Annuitization | 55 |

i

| Ownership and Interests in the Contract | 56 |
|---|-----|
| Contract Owner | 56 |
| Puerto Rico Residents | 56 |
| Joint Owner | 56 |
| Annuitant | 57 |
| Co-Annuitant or Joint Annuitant | 57 |
| Beneficiary and Contingent Beneficiary | 57 |
| Changes to the Parties to the Contract | 57 |
| Assignment | 58 |
| Annuity Period | 59 |
| Annuity Commencement Date | 59 |
| Annuitizing the Contract | 59 |
| Taxes | 62 |
| Tax Considerations | 62 |
| Puerto Rico Taxation | 63 |
| United States Federal Income Taxes | 72 |
| Legal Proceedings | 76 |
| Financial Statements | 77 |
| APPENDIX A: Investment Options Available Under the Contract | A-1 |
| APPENDIX B: Additional Information About the Investment Options | B-1 |

ii

Definitions

The following is a glossary of key terms used in this Prospectus.

Accumulation Phase – The period during which purchase payments and Contract Value can be allocated among the Investment Options in order to accumulate assets under the Contract.

Accumulation Unit – An accounting unit of measurement used to calculate the value allocated to each of the Sub-Accounts in the Variable Account before the Annuitization Date.

Annuitant - The person upon whose life annuity payments are based.

Annuitization - Converting the Contract Value into a fixed stream of annuity payments from Universal Life.

Annuity Phase - The period during which annuity payments are received by the Annuitant.

Annuitization Date – The date on which Universal Life calculates the schedule of annuity payments and begins the processing necessary to start annuity payments. The date that annuity payments actually begin varies, but generally is within 30 days after Universal Life calculates the annuity payment schedule.

Annuity Commencement Date – The date on which annuity payments are scheduled to begin.

Beneficiary – The person designated by the Contract Owner to receive certain benefits under the Contract if the Annuitant or Contract Owner dies before the Annuitization Date and there is no surviving Joint Owner. Such designation must be made by the Contract Owner in accordance with the applicable requirements of Puerto Rico inheritance laws.

Collateral Assignment – A Collateral Assignment is when the ownership rights in a Contract or account are transferred from one person to another to serve as collateral for a debt. This transfer is usually made with the provision that the ownership rights revert to the original Owner when the debt is repaid. A Collateral Assignment of a nonqualified annuity is considered a taxable event to the Owner of the Contract.

Contingent Beneficiary – The person designated by the Contract Owner to receive the benefits accorded to the Beneficiary if the primary Beneficiary is not living when the Owner dies. Such designation must be made by the Contract Owner in accordance with the applicable requirements of Puerto Rico inheritance laws.

Contingent Deferred Sales Charge or "CDSC" (Surrender Charge) – The charge deducted for surrenders and partial withdrawals of Contract Value before the Surrender Charge Period has ended, or partial withdrawals in excess of the CDSC Free Partial Withdrawal Amount of 15% of purchase payments, adjusted for partial withdrawals during each Contract Year. Also referred to as a "surrender charge."

Contract – The terms, conditions, benefits and rights of the annuity described in the variable annuity contract with Universal Life Insurance Company, as well as any documents describing elected options, endorsements or attached application form.

Contract Anniversary - Beginning with the Date of Issue, each recurring one-year anniversary of the Date of Issue during which the Contract remains in force.

Contract Owner(s) – The person(s) possessing all rights under the Contract prior to the Annuitization Date, unless there is a Joint Owner.

Contract Value – The value of your investment in the Variable Account. On or before the Annuity Commencement Date, the Contract Value is equal to the Owner's:

- premium payments; minus
- gross partial withdrawals (partial withdrawals plus the surrender charge on the portion of the requested partial withdrawal that is subject to the surrender charge); plus

- accumulated gains in the separate account; minus
- accumulated losses in the separate account; minus
- service charges, rider fees, transfer fees, and other charges, if any.

Contract Year - Each year the Contract is in force measured from the Date of Issue or from any Contract Anniversary.

Date of Issue - The effective day of the first purchase payment applied to the Contract.

Death Benefit - The benefit payable to the designated Beneficiary(ies) when the Owner dies before the Annuitization Date.

Enhanced Death Benefit – Available at issue for an additional charge, a new "stepped-up" Death Benefit value will be determined on each Contract Anniversary before the Owner's 86th birthday. The benefit will be payable when the Owner dies before the Annuitization Date. This option is only available to Contract Owners age 70 or younger on the Date of Issue.

Free Amount - Partial withdrawals not subject to Contingent Deferred Sales Charge. The Free Amount is not applicable to Full Surrenders.

Fortune V Separate Account (Variable Account) – A separate account of Universal Life Insurance Company into which purchase payments may be allocated to build assets during the Accountian Phase. The Account is divided into Sub-Accounts. The Fortune V Separate Account is also referred to herein as the "Variable Account."

Guaranteed Future Value or "GFV" – The minimum amount guaranteed for Contracts with Principal Protection Rider. "GFV" will be equal to the purchase payments for the first six month after rider inception, adjusted for withdrawals.

Guaranteed Future Value Date - Ten years after Contract inception.

IRA - An individual retirement annuity as defined by the Section 1081.02 and Section 1081.03 of the P.R. Code.

Investment Option – A Sub-Account of the Variable Account where Accumulation Units are maintained. Each Sub-Account is a separate Investment Option and corresponds to one of six segregated and separately managed portfolios of investments and securities of the Variable Account. There are five Asset Allocation Portfolios (the Growth Portfolio, Moderate Growth Portfolio, Moderate Portfolio, Conservative Portfolio, and International Growth Portfolio) and one Money Market Portfolio.

Joint Owner – The person possessing an undivided interest in the entire Contract with the Contract Owner. If there is a Joint Owner, references to Contract Owner and Joint Owner in this Prospectus will apply to both, or either Joint Owner, unless the context specifies otherwise.

Maximum Annual Withdrawal Amounts "MAWA" – For Contracts with the Income for Life Rider, the MAWA is the maximum amount that can be withdrawn in a rider year without reducing the TWB. This is also the benefit amount paid if the Contract Value is exhausted. On each rider anniversary the MAWA is the Withdrawal Percentage multiplied by the TWB.

Net Asset Value – The total value of an underlying mutual fund adjusted for expenses and divided by the number of units, at the end of a market day or at the close of the New York Stock Exchange.

Non-Qualified Contract - A Contract that does not qualify for favorable tax treatment under the P.R. Code Sections 1081.02 and 1081.03.

Partial Withdrawal - A withdrawal of Contract Value less than the full Surrender Value.

Portfolio Construction Manager – The entity independently contracted by Universal Life and Universal Financial Services, Inc. to construct the portfolios in the Variable Account.

Premium(s) – Purchase payment(s) deposited into the Contract.

Puerto Rico Resident or a Resident of Puerto Rico – (i) An individual (A) having his or her principal residence within the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico who has been a Resident of Puerto Rico during a period that includes an entire taxable year, (B) who is a bona fide resident of Puerto Rico pursuant to Sections 933 and 937(a) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, and (C) a resident of Puerto Rico for purposes of the P.R. Code; and (ii) a non-business trust organized under the laws of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico whose trustee, if an individual, has his or her principal residence in Puerto Rico or, if an entity, whose principal office and principal place of business are located within the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, all of whose Beneficiaries have their principal residence in Puerto Rico and which is either a Qualified Trust or an Agent Trust (as defined herein under Tax Considerations beginning on page 62 of this Prospectus). Whether an individual or a trust is a bona fide Resident of Puerto Rico depends on the facts and circumstances of each individual, which may change from year to year. Universal Life suggests to each individual and each trust to seek advice from its tax counsel to assess if he or she is a Resident of Puerto Rico.

P.R. Code - The Act Number 1 of January 31, 2011, as amended, also known as the "Puerto Rico Internal Revenue Code for a New Puerto Rico".

Sub-Accounts – Divisions of the Variable Account where Accumulation Units are maintained. Each Sub-Account is a separate Investment Option and corresponds to a segregated and separately managed portfolio of investments and securities of the Variable Account.

Surrender – Termination and cancellation of all rights and privileges under your Contract in exchange for your Contract's Surrender Value. A surrender may be subject to surrender charges.

Surrender Value - The Contract Value minus any applicable charges described in the Contract.

Total Withdrawal Base or "TWB" – For Contracts with the Income for Life Rider, at rider inception, the initial TWB is equal to the Contract Value. The "TWB" is used to calculate the Maximum Annual Withdrawal Amount ("MAWA").

Transamerica – Transamerica Life Insurance Company.

Underlying Mutual Funds (funds) - The funds in which each Sub-Account invests.

Universal Life – Universal Life Insurance Company.

U.S. Internal Revenue Code - The United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.

Valuation Date – Each day the New York Stock Exchange is open for business or any other day during which there is a sufficient degree of trading in the underlying investments of the Sub-Accounts of the Variable Account such that the current Net Asset Value of its Accumulation Units might be materially affected.

Valuation Period - The period of time commencing at the close of a Valuation Date and ending at the close of business for the next succeeding Valuation Date.

| Important |
|------------------------|
| Information You |
| Should Consider |
| About the |
| Contract |

| | FEES AND EXPENSES | | | | | | | | |
|---|--|--|---|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Charges for Early Withdrawals | If you surrender or withdraw money from your Contract within 9 years following a premium payment, could be assessed a surrender charge (Contingent Deferred Sales Charge, or "CDSC") of up to 8% or premium withdrawn, declining to 0% over that time period. For example, if you surrender the Contract in first Contract Year, you could pay a surrender charge of up to \$8,000 on a \$100,000 investment. | | | | | | | | |
| | For additional information about surrender charges see "Fee Table," and Charge (Contingent Deferred Sales Charge)" later in this Prospectus. | d " <u>Charges and Ded</u> | uctions – Surrender | | | | | | |
| Transaction Charges | There are no charges for making transfers among the Investment Opti Contract. | ons or for other tra | nsactions under the | | | | | | |
| | For additional information about charges, see "Fee Table," and "C Prospectus. | Charges and Deduct | tions" later in this | | | | | | |
| Ongoing Fees and Expenses (annual charges) | The following table describes the fees and expenses that you may pay <i>e</i> on the Class of Contract and options you choose. Please refer to information about the specific fees you will pay each year based on the c | your Contract spec | ifications page for | | | | | | |
| | Annual Fee | Minimum | Maximum | | | | | | |
| | Annual Contract Expenses (varies by Contract Class) ⁽¹⁾ , ⁽²⁾ , ⁽³⁾ | 2.66% | 4.46% | | | | | | |
| | Optional Benefits available for an additional charge (for a single optional benefit, if elected) | 0.20% ⁽⁴⁾ | 2.50% ⁽⁵⁾ | | | | | | |
| | The term "Annual Contract Expenses" used in this table is not use Contracts. In this table, the "Annual Contract Expenses" includ charges: (a) the \$50 Annual Contract Maintenance Charge; (b) th 1.95%, depending on Contract class); (c) the Puerto Rico Tax Ch Portfolio Construction Fees (0.35% to 0.45%); (e) Other Portfoli Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses (0.38% to 0.87%). These charges are measured in different ways: (a) the Contract Mail each year; (b) the Variable Account Charge is applied on a daily b Sub-Account assets; (c) the Puerto Rico Tax Charge is a percentage of each year; (d) the Management and Portfolio Construction Fees as a percentage of the portfolio's average daily net assets; (e) th estimates) and Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses are measured underlying mutual funds. | des figures represer he Variable Account arge (0.10%); (d) th o Expenses (0.03% intenance Charge is basis at the specified e of the Contract Val are paid monthly at e Other Portfolio E | nting the following t Charge (1.40% to be Management and to 1.54%); and (f) a flat dollar amount annual rates of the ue on December 31 the annualized rate xpenses (which are | | | | | | |

- (3) The Portfolio Construction Fee (0.10%) does not apply to the Money Market Portfolio.
- (4) The Enhanced Death Benefit fee is charged daily at the annual rate of 0.20% of the of the average daily Variable Account value.
- (5) The Income for Life Moderate rider is no longer available for purchase. The annual charge is a percentage of the Total Withdrawal Base on the rider anniversary. The current charge is 1.50%; the Company reserves the right to increase the charge by 1.00%, to 2.50%, as shown in the table.

Because your Contract is customizable, the choices you make affect how much you will pay. To help you understand the cost of owning your Contract, the following table shows the lowest and highest cost you could pay *each year*, based on current charges. This estimate assumes that you do not take partial withdrawals from the Contract, **which could add surrender charges that substantially increase costs**.

| Lowest Annual Cost: \$2,941 | Highest Annual Cost: \$6,760 | | | | | |
|--|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| Assumes: Investment of \$100,000 5% annual appreciation Least expensive combination of Contract Classes and management fees No optional benefits No sales charges | Assumes: Investment of \$100,000 5% annual appreciation Most expensive combination of Contract Classes management fees, and optional benefits No sales charges No additional purchase payments, transfers or | | | | | |
| No additional purchase payments, transfers or withdrawals | withdrawals | | | | | |

For additional information about ongoing fees and expenses see "Fee Table" and "Charges and Deductions" later in this Prospectus.

| RISKS | | | | | | |
|-----------------------------|---|--|--|--|--|--|
| Risk of Loss | The Contract is subject to the risk of loss. You could lose some or all of your Contract Value. | | | | | |
| | For additional information about the risk of loss see "Principal Risks of Investing in the Contract" later in this Prospectus. | | | | | |
| Not a Short-Term Investment | The Contract is not a short-term investment and is not appropriate for an investor who needs ready access to cash. The Contract is designed to provide for the accumulation of retirement savings and income on a long-term basis. As such, you should not use the Contract as a short-term investment or savings vehicle. A surrender charge may apply to partial withdrawals and surrenders in certain circumstances, and any partial withdrawals or surrenders may also be subject to tax penalties. | | | | | |
| | For additional information about the investment profile of the Contract, see " <u>Principal Risks of Investing in the</u> <u>Contract</u> ," and " <u>The Fortune V Separate Account and Universal Life Insurance Company</u> " later in this Prospectus. | | | | | |

| Risks Associated with Investments | An investment in the Contract is subject to the risk of poor investment performance and can vary depending on the performance of the variable Investment Options available under the Contract, each of which has its own unique risks. You should review the variable Investment Options available under the Contract before making an investment decision. | | | | | | |
|-----------------------------------|---|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| | For additional information about the risks associated with Investment Options see "Principal Risks of Investing in the Contract" later in this Prospectus. | | | | | | |
| Insurance Company Risks | An investment in the Contract is subject to certain risks related to Universal Life Insurance Company. Any obligations, guarantees, or benefits under the Contract are supported by Universal Life's general account and are subject to its claims-paying ability. An owner should look to our financial strength for our claims-paying ability. More information about Universal Life Insurance Company, including our financial strength ratings, may be obtained upon request by calling 787-706-7095. | | | | | | |
| | For additional information about insurance company risks, see "Principal Risks of Investing in the Contract" later in this Prospectus. | | | | | | |
| | RESTRICTIONS | | | | | | |
| Investments | You may transfer Variable Account value among the Investment Options under your Contract at any time and in any amount, up to 20 (twenty) times per calendar year, or 11 transfers in 2 consecutive calendar quarters. Restrictions may apply to more frequent transfers. The Company may require that transfers be made only by U.S. mail if the Contract Owner makes more than 11 transfers in 2 consecutive calendar quarters or more than 20 in one calendar year. | | | | | | |
| | Universal Life reserves the right to remove Investment Options and/or close them off to future investment, and to add new Investment Options. | | | | | | |
| | For additional information about the Investment Options and restrictions see " <u>The Fortune V Separate Account</u> and <u>Universal Life Insurance Company</u> " " <u>Transfers</u> ," <u>APPENDIX A: Investment Options Available Under the</u> <u>Contract</u> , and <u>APPENDIX B: Additional Information About the Investment Options</u> later in this Prospectus. | | | | | | |
| Optional Benefits | If you selected an optional living benefit rider, your purchase payments and Contract Value are subject to investment restrictions which limit the Investment Options available to you under the Contract. | | | | | | |
| | Partial withdrawals could reduce the Death Benefit amount (including the optional Enhanced Death Benefit) by more than the dollar amount withdrawn (<i>i.e.</i> , the Death Benefit may be reduced in the same proportion that the Contract Value is reduced). | | | | | | |
| | Partial and excess withdrawals could also significantly reduce the value of any optional living benefits, and could terminate the benefit. | | | | | | |
| | For additional information about optional living benefits and Death Benefits, including the optional Enhanced Death Benefit, see " <u>Benefits Available Under the Contract</u> " later in this Prospectus. | | | | | | |

| | TAXES |
|--------------------------------------|---|
| Tax Implications | Generally, partial withdrawals and surrenders will be subject to ordinary income tax and may be subject to tax penalties. There are no additional tax benefits if the Contract is purchased through a tax-qualified plan or individual retirement account (IRA). |
| | You should consult with a tax professional to determine the tax implications of an investment in, and payments received under, the Contract. For additional information about tax implications, see " <u>Taxes</u> " later in this Prospectus. |
| | CONFLICTS OF INTEREST |
| Investment Professional Compensation | Financial professionals may receive compensation for selling the Contract to you, in the form of commissions. Financial professionals may also receive additional compensation in the form of contribution-based compensation and/or for enhanced marketing opportunities and other services (commonly referred to as "marketing allowances"). This conflict of interest may influence the financial professional to recommend this Contract over another investment. |
| | For additional information about compensation to financial professionals see "Distribution of the Contracts" later in this Prospectus. |
| Exchanges | Some financial professionals may have a financial incentive to offer a new contract in place of the one you already own. You should only exchange your Contract if you determine, after comparing the features, fees, and risks of both contracts, that it is preferable to purchase the new contract rather than continue to own your existing Contract. |
| | For additional information about the charges and taxes you might incur in connection with an exchange see " <u>Charges and Deductions</u> – Surrender Charge (Contingent Deferred Sales Charge)" and " <u>Tax Considerations</u> " later in this Prospect |

Overview of the Contract

Q. What is the Purpose of the Contract?

A. The Universal Life VIA Contract is designed to assist individuals with their long-term retirement planning or other long-term needs through investments in a variety of Investment Options during the Accumulation Period. The Contract also offers Death Benefits to protect your designated Beneficiaries. Through the annuitization feature, the Contract can supplement your retirement income by providing a stream of Annuity (or income) Payments. This Contract may be appropriate if you have a long investment time horizon. It is not intended for people who may need to make early or frequent withdrawals of Contract Value or who intend to engage in frequent trading in the Investment Options.

Q. How do I accumulate assets in the Contract and receive income from the Contract?

A. Your Contract has two phases: an Accumulation (or Savings) Phase and an Annuity (or Income) Phase.

Accumulation Phase

During the Accumulation Phase (or savings phase), to help you accumulate assets, you can allocate your purchase payments (premiums) among the Investment Options (the six Sub-Accounts of the Variable Account) listed on the front page of this Prospectus, subject to the terms and conditions in the Contract. Each Investment Option has its own investment strategies, expense ratios, and investment performance and returns. Each Option also has its own investment risks, including risk of loss of the amount invested. During the Accumulation Phase, you can make additional purchase payments, withdraw money, and transfer your Contract Value among the Sub-Accounts.

Additional information regarding each Investment Option is provided later in this Prospectus. See "<u>The Fortune V Separate Account and</u> <u>Universal Life Insurance Company</u>" and <u>Appendix A: Investment Options Available Under the Contract</u>.

Annuity Phase

You can elect to turn your Contract Value into a fixed stream of annuity payments from Universal Life, which is known as "annuitizing" your Contract. When you annuitize, you can choose payments that are guaranteed to last for the life of the Annuitant(s) (or for 10 years, even if the Annuitant dies sooner), or for a specified period or in a specified amount. We may offer other options, at our discretion. The Contract does not provide variable payment options.

Please note that when you annuitize, your Contract Value will be converted to annuity payments and you may no longer be able to withdraw money from your Contract. All other benefits (including Death Benefits) also terminate when you annuitize your Contract.

Q. What are the Contract's primary features and options?

Your Choice of Investment Options. You can choose among six Investment Options. There are five Asset Allocation Portfolios: the Growth Portfolio, Moderate Growth Portfolio, Moderate Portfolio, Conservative Portfolio, and International Growth Portfolio. The sixth option is the Money Market Portfolio. An investment in the Money Market Portfolio is neither insured nor guaranteed by the U.S. Government. Each Investment Option corresponds to a Sub-Account of the Variable Account.

Each Sub-Account will implement its investment strategy by investing in a portfolio of shares of separate underlying mutual funds. Contract Owners do not make a specific selection of the underlying mutual funds. The Sub-Accounts will consist of segregated and separately-managed pools of assets of the Variable Account, and each is managed by Universal Financial Services, Inc. ("UFS" or "Universal Financial Services") as the investment adviser contracted by Universal Life to manage the Sub-Account. Morningstar Investment Management LLC serves as Portfolio Construction Manager in connection with the actively managed Sub-Accounts.

Volatility control guidelines may apply to the Moderate Portfolio and Conservative Portfolio. Under these guidelines, the Portfolio Construction Manager may adjust the maximum equity allocation of the portfolio based on the implied volatility, such that higher implied volatility over a specified period will result in a lower maximum equity allocation.

Additional information regarding the Investment Options is provided below under "The Fortune V Separate Account and Universal Life Insurance Company," in Appendix A: Investment Options Available Under the Contract, and in Appendix B: Additional Information About the Investment Options.



Your Choice of Surrender Charge Options. You can choose one of three versions, or "Classes," of the Contract, each with different surrender charges and different annual Variable Account charges:

- (1) Class B Share, the base Universal VIA Contract, has a nine-year surrender charge and a 1.40% annual Variable Account Charge;
- (2) Class L Share, the Universal VIA with Liquidity Rider Contract, has a four-year surrender charge and a 1.75% annual Variable Account Charge; and
- (3) Class C Share, the Universal VIA Select, has no surrender charge and a 1.95% Variable Account Charge.

You must choose your Contract Class at the time of Contract application and it cannot be changed. In selecting your Class of Contract, consider your potential need to withdraw money (which may be subject to a surrender charge of up to 8%); also consider that the Variable Account Charge will last for as long as you own the Contract in the Accumulation Phase.

Accessing Your Contract Value. Until you annuitize, you have full access to your money in the Contract. You can choose to withdraw part or all of your Contract Value at any time through partial withdrawals or surrendering the Contract. Partial withdrawals in excess of the Free Amount in any Contract Year (a one year period measured from the Date of Issue or from any Contract Anniversary) during the Surrender Charge Period may be subject to a surrender charge. The Free Amount is 15% of your purchase payments not previously withdrawn. In addition, taxes may apply, and before age 59½ tax penalties may also apply. Partial withdrawals will reduce the Death Benefit (and the reduction may be more than the dollar amount withdrawn).

Transferring Your Contract Value. You may transfer amounts between Investment Options of the Variable Account without charge (and without tax consequences). Your ability to make transfers under the Contract may be restricted if you make more than 20 transfers in a single calendar year (or more than 11 transfers in 2 consecutive calendar quarters) or if we determine, in our sole opinion, that your transfer activity may disadvantage or potentially hurt the rights or interests of other Contract Owners.

Tax Treatment. Your purchase payments accumulate on a tax-deferred basis. This means your earnings are not taxed until you take money out of your Contract, such as when (1) you make a partial withdrawal or surrender the Contract; (2) you receive an annuity payment from the Contract; or (3) upon payment of a Death Benefit. However, all amounts received may be taxable as ordinary income (to the extent of any earnings), and surrenders and partial withdrawals before you reach age 59½ may be subject to tax penalties.

Death Benefits. Your Contract includes a Standard Death Benefit that will pay your designated Beneficiary(ies) the greater of: (i) your Contract Value; or (ii) the total of all purchase payments, adjusted for partial withdrawals. You can also elect the One-Year Enhanced Death Benefit Option, which will pay your designated Beneficiary(ies) the greater of the Standard Death Benefit or a "stepped-up" Death Benefit, which is the highest Contract Value on any Contract Anniversary (each recurring one-year anniversary of the Date of Issue) prior to the Owner's 86th birthday, less an adjustment for amounts subsequently withdrawn, plus purchase payments received after that Contract Anniversary. There is an additional fee for the One-Year Enhanced Death Benefit Option.

Optional Living Benefits. The following optional living benefit riders were formerly available to Contracts sold prior to April 1, 2021, for an additional fee: the Principal Protection Rider and the Income for Life Rider. These riders help protect you from declining markets by providing Contract Value or income guarantees, respectively, during your lifetime.

Asset Rebalancing, Dollar Cost Averaging, and Systematic Withdrawals. You may select automatic Asset Rebalancing, which automatically rebalances your Contract Value in the Investment Options to maintain your chosen percentage allocation. You may also elect Dollar Cost Averaging, which automatically transfers a specific amount of money from certain Investment Options. In addition, you can elect a program of systematic withdrawals (which may be subject to surrender charges and taxes). There are no additional charges for these services.

Right to Examine and Cancel ("Free Look)

Contract Owners have a fifteen calendar day right to review and examine the Contract. The Contract may be returned to Universal Life's home office for any reason within fifteen days of delivery from Universal Life's home office and Universal Life will refund the Contract Value. The refunded Contract Value will reflect the value of the underlying investments in the Contract, unless otherwise required by law. Please be advised that the purchase payments received by Universal Life during such fifteen-day period will be invested in accordance with the instructions of the Contract Owner. If the Contract Owner decides to cancel during the fifteen-day period, the value of the Contract will therefore depend on the value of the underlying investments in the Contract.



Fee Table

The following tables describe the fees and expenses that you will pay when buying, owning, and surrendering or making partial withdrawals from the Contract. Please refer to your Contract specifications page for information about the specific fees you will pay each year based on the options you have elected.

The first table describes the fees and expenses that you will pay *at the time* that you buy the Contract, surrender or make partial withdrawals from the Contract, or transfer Contract Value between Investment Options.

Transaction Expenses

| Sales Load Imposed on Purchases | None |
|--|------|
| Transfer Fee | None |
| Surrender Charge (Contingent Deferred Sales Charge, or "CDSC") (as a percentage of the premiums withdrawn) (1) | 8% |

| B Share Universal VIA Surrender Charge Schedule | | | | | | | | | |
|---|----|----|----|----|----|----|----|----|----|
| Years Since Premium Payment | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 |
| Percentage of Premium Payment Withdrawn | 8% | 8% | 7% | 6% | 5% | 4% | 3% | 2% | 1% |

| L Share Universal VIA w/ Liquidity Rider Surrender Charge Schedule | | | | | | | | | |
|--|----|----|----|----|--|--|--|--|--|
| Years Since Premium Payment | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | | | | | |
| Percentage of Premium Payment Withdrawn | 8% | 8% | 7% | 6% | | | | | |

| C Share Universal VIA Select Surrender Charge Schedule | | | | | | | | |
|--|-----|--|--|--|--|--|--|--|
| Years Since Premium Payment | ALL | | | | | | | |
| Percentage of Premium Payment Withdrawn | 0% | | | | | | | |

(1) The surrender charge is calculated by multiplying the applicable surrender charge percentage (noted above) by the amount of premium payments surrendered. For purposes of calculating the surrender charge, surrenders are considered to come first from the oldest premium payment made to the Contract, then the next oldest premium payment, and so forth.

The next table describes the fees and expenses that you will pay each year during the time you own the Contract.

If you purchase an optional benefit, you will pay an additional charge, as shown below.

Annual Contract Expenses

UNIVERSAL VIA (B Share)

| | Growth Portfolio | | Moderate Growth Portfolio | | Moderate Portfolio |
|--|---------------------|-------|---------------------------------|----|-----------------------|
| Administrative Expenses (1) | \$ 50 | \$ | 50 | \$ | 50 |
| Base Contract Expenses (as a percentage of average net assets of the Variable Account) (2) | 1.50% | | 1.50% | 1 | 1.50% |
| Management Fees (3) and Portfolio Construction Manager Fees (4) | 0.45% | | 0.45% | , | 0.45% |
| Optional Benefit Expenses | | | | | |
| Enhanced Death Benefit (5) | 0.20% | | 0.20% | , | 0.20% |
| Other Expenses | | | | | |
| Sub-Account Operating Expenses (6) | 0.19% | | 0.03% | , | 0.03% |
| Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses (7) | 0.78% | | 0.69% | | 0.63% |
| Total Annual Contract Expenses (8) | 3.17% | | 2.92% | • | 2.86% |
| | | Inter | national | | Money |

| | Conservative Portfolio | | wth folio | Ma | rket tfolio |
|--|---------------------------|-------|------------------|----|----------------|
| Administrative Expenses (1) | \$ | 50 | \$ 50 | \$ | 50 |
| Base Contract Expenses (as a percentage of average net assets of the Variable Account) (2) | | 1.50% | 1.50% | | 1.50% |
| Management Fees (3) and Portfolio Construction Manager Fees (4) | | 0.45% | 0.45% | | 0.35% |
| Optional Benefit Expenses | | | | | |
| Enhanced Death Benefit (5) | | 0.20% | 0.20% | | 0.20% |
| Other Expenses | | | | | |
| Sub-Account Operating Expenses (6) | | 0.13% | 1.04% | | 1.54% |
| Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses (7) | - | 0.57% | 0.87% | | 0.38% |
| Total Annual Contract Expenses (8) | | 2.90% | 4.11% | - | 4.02% |

11

UNIVERSAL VIA w/ LIQUIDITY RIDER (L Share)

| | Gro Port | wth folio | Moder: Growt Portfo | th | | oderate ortfolio |
|---|----------------|--|-------------------------------|--|---------|--|
| Administrative Expenses (1) | \$ | 50 | \$ | 50 | \$ | 50 |
| Base Contract Expenses (as a percentage of average net assets of the Variable Account) (2) | | 1.85% | | 1.85% | | 1.85% |
| Management Fees (3) and Portfolio Construction Manager Fees (4) | | 0.45% | | 0.45% | | 0.45% |
| Optional Benefit Expenses | | 0.+5 | | 0.45/0 | | 0.+5/0 |
| Enhanced Death Benefit (5) | | 0.20% | | 0.20% | | 0.20% |
| Other Expenses | | 0.20 | - | 0.20 | - | 0.20 |
| Sub-Account Operating Expenses (6) | | 0.19% | | 0.03% | | 0.03% |
| Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses (7) | | 0.78% | | 0.69% | | 0.63% |
| Total Annual Contract Expenses (8) | | 3.27% | | 3.02% | | 2.96% |
| Total Annual Contract Expenses (6) | | 3.27/0 | | 0.01 | | |
| | Conser Port | vative | Internati Growt Portfol | onal th | Μ | Ioney Iarket ortfolio |
| Administrative Expenses (1) | 0.01000 | vative | Internati Growt | onal th | Μ | Ioney Iarket |
| Administrative Expenses (1) | Port | vative folio 50 | Internati Growt Portfo | onal th lio 50 | M Po | foney larket ortfolio 50 |
| | Port | vative folio 50 1.85% | Internati Growt Portfo | onal th lio | M Po | foney larket ortfolio 50 1.85% |
| Administrative Expenses (1) Base Contract Expenses (as a percentage of average net assets of the Variable Account) (2) | Port | vative folio 50 | Internati Growt Portfo | ional th lio 50 1.85% | M Po | foney larket ortfolio 50 1.85% |
| Administrative Expenses (1) Base Contract Expenses (as a percentage of average net assets of the Variable Account) (2) Management Fees (3) and Portfolio Construction Manager Fees (4) | Port | vative folio 50 1.85% | Internati Growt Portfo | ional th lio 50 1.85% | M Po | foney larket ortfolio 50 1.85% 0.35% |
| Administrative Expenses (1) Base Contract Expenses (as a percentage of average net assets of the Variable Account) (2) Management Fees (3) and Portfolio Construction Manager Fees (4) Optional Benefit Expenses | Port | vative folio 50 1.85% 0.45% | Internati Growt Portfo | ional th <u>1.85</u> % <u>0.45</u> % | M Po | foney larket ortfolio 50 1.85% 0.35% |
| Administrative Expenses (1) Base Contract Expenses (as a percentage of average net assets of the Variable Account) (2) Management Fees (3) and Portfolio Construction Manager Fees (4) Optional Benefit Expenses Enhanced Death Benefit (5) | Port | vative folio 50 1.85% 0.45% | Internati Growt Portfo | ional th <u>1.85</u> % <u>0.45</u> % | M Po | Ioney larket ortfolio 50 1.85% 0.35% 0.20% |
| Administrative Expenses (1) Base Contract Expenses (as a percentage of average net assets of the Variable Account) (2) Management Fees (3) and Portfolio Construction Manager Fees (4) Optional Benefit Expenses Enhanced Death Benefit (5) Other Expenses | Port | vative folio 50 1.85% 0.45% 0.20% | Internati Growt Portfo | ional th lio 50 1.85% 0.45% 0.20% | M Po | Ioney Iarket ortfolio |

UNIVERSAL VIA SELECT (C Share)

| | | Growth Portfolio | Moderate Growth Portfolio | | | Moderate Portfolio |
|--|----|---------------------|---------------------------------|-------|----|-----------------------|
| Administrative Expenses (1) | \$ | 50 | \$ | 50 | \$ | 50 |
| Base Contract Expenses (as a percentage of average net assets of the Variable Account) (2) | | 2.05% | , | 2.05% | 6 | 2.05% |
| Management Fees (3) and Portfolio Construction Manager Fees (4) | _ | 0.45% | (|).45% | 6 | 0.45% |
| Optional Benefit Expenses | _ | | | | | |
| Enhanced Death Benefit (5) | | 0.20% | (|).20% | 6 | 0.20% |
| Other Expenses | _ | | | | | |
| Sub-Account Operating Expenses (6) | | 0.19% | (|).03% | 6 | 0.03% |
| Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses (7) | _ | 0.78% | (|).69% | 6 | 0.63% |
| Total Annual Contract Expenses (8) | _ | 3.72% | | 8.47% | 6 | 3.41% |
| | | | Internation | ıal | | Money |

| | Conservative Portfolio | International Growth Portfolio | Money Market Portfolio |
|---|---------------------------|--------------------------------------|------------------------------|
| Administrative Expenses (1) | \$ 50 | \$ 50 | \$ 50 |
| Base Contract Expenses (as a percentage of average net assets of the Variable Account) (2) | 2.05% | 2.05% | 2.05% |
| Management Fees (3) and Portfolio Construction Manager Fees (4) | 0.45% | 0.45% | 0.35% |
| Optional Benefit Expenses | | | |
| Enhanced Death Benefit (5) | 0.20% | 0.20% | 0.20% |
| Other Expenses | | | |
| Sub-Account Operating Expenses (6) | 0.13% | 1.04% | 1.54% |
| Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses (7) | 0.57% | 0.87% | 0.38% |
| Total Annual Contract Expenses (8) | 3.45% | 4.66% | 4.57% |

 Includes the annual Contract Maintenance Charge. The Contract Maintenance Charge is deducted annually from all Contracts containing less than \$100,000 on each Contract Anniversary. This charge is permanently waived for any Contract valued at \$100,000 or more on any Contract Anniversary.

(2) Base Contract Expenses include the Variable Account Charge and the Puerto Rico Tax Charge of 0.10%. The Variable Account Charge is a percentage of the Contract Value deducted on a daily basis at the specified annualized rate, and varies by Contract class: (1) the base Universal VIA Contract (Class B) – 1.40%; (2) the Universal VIA with Liquidity Rider Contract (Class L) – 1.75%; and (3) the Universal VIA Select Contract (Class C) – 1.95%. The Puerto Rico Tax Charge is deducted on an annual basis from each Sub-Account as a percentage of the Net Asset Value of each Sub-Account as of December 31 of each calendar year.

For Contract sold prior to November 1, 2011, the B Share Variable Account Charge was 1.65% as an annualized rate charged on a daily basis. For Contracts sold from November 1, 2011 to July 31, 2013, the L Share Variable Account Charge was 1.50% as an annualized rate charged on a daily basis.

(3) Universal Financial Services receives compensation, calculated daily and paid monthly, from the fund at the indicated annual rate, expressed as a specified percentage of the portfolio's average daily net assets.

(4) The Portfolio Construction Manager receives monthly compensation from the investment adviser at the annual rate of a specified percentage of the portfolio's average daily net assets. The Portfolio Construction Manager Fees do not apply to the Money Market Portfolio.

Table of Contents

- (5) The Enhanced Death Benefit is available at Contract issue for an additional charge. The charge is assessed daily at the annual rate of 0.20% of the of the average daily Variable Account value. A new stepped-up Death Benefit value will be determined on each Contract Anniversary before the Owner's 86th birthday. The benefit will be payable when the Owner dies before the Annuitization Date. Once elected, the benefit cannot be removed from the Contract.
- (6) As an annualized percentage of Sub-Account net assets. "Other Expenses" include Sub-Account operating expenses.
- (7) As an annualized percentage of Sub-Account net assets. Each Sub-Account also bears, indirectly, its pro rata share of the expenses of the underlying funds in which it invests as reflected under "Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses."
- (8) The Total Annual Contract Expenses represent the most expensive version of the Contract available after April 30, 2024.

Other Optional Benefit Expenses

If you elected one of the Income for Life or Principal Protection optional riders before April 1, 2021, you will incur additional annual contract expenses for these benefits, as listed in the table below. **These optional benefits are no longer available for purchase.** These benefits require that your entire Contract Value be invested only in the Moderate Portfolio, the Conservative Portfolio, or the Money Market Portfolio. The charges for these additional benefits are:

Optional Benefit Expenses

| | Current | Maximum |
|----------------------------------|---------|---------|
| Income for Life Conservative (9) | 1.15% | 2.15% |
| Income for Life Moderate (9) | 1.50% | 2.50% |
| Principal Protection 15 (10) | 0.95% | 1.95% |
| Principal Protection 13 (10) | 1.35% | 2.35% |

(9) This rider is no longer available as of April 1, 2021. For the Income for Life rider, the annual charge is a percentage of the Total Withdrawal Base on the rider anniversary. This rider cannot be elected with any other living benefit rider. The current charges are 1.15% for the Conservative option and 1.50% for the Moderate option; the Company reserves the right to increase the charge by 1.00%, to 2.15% and 2.50% respectively, as shown in the table.

(10) This rider is no longer available as of April 1, 2021. For the Principal Protection rider, the annual charge is a percentage of the Guaranteed Future Value on the rider anniversary. This cannot be elected with any other living benefit rider. The current charges are 0.95% for the Principal Protection 15 option and 1.35% for the Principal Protection 13 option; the Company reserves the right to increase the charge by 1.00%, to 1.95% and 2.35% respectively, as shown in the table.

Example

This Example is intended to help you compare the cost of investing in the Contract with the cost of investing in other variable annuity contracts. These costs include transaction expenses, annual Contract expenses, and Investment Option operating expenses.

The Example assumes that you invest \$100,000 in the Contract for the time periods indicated. The Example also assumes that your investment has a 5% return each year and assumes the most expensive combination of Investment Option operating expenses and optional benefits (the Enhanced Death Benefit and the Income for Life Moderate rider (no longer available for purchase) available for an additional charge. If these optional benefits were not elected, the expense figures shown below would be lower. Although your actual costs may be higher or lower, based on these assumptions your costs would be:

UNIVERSAL VIA (B Share)

| | | 1 | | 3 | | 5 | | 10 |
|--|----------------|--|----------------|---|----------------|---|----------------|---|
| GROWTH PORTFOLIO | | YEAR | | YEARS | | YEARS | | YEARS |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | \$ | 11,497 | \$ | 17,655 | \$ | 23,038 | \$ | 37,527 |
| If you do not surrender your Contract: | \$ | 3,497 | \$ | 10,655 | \$ | 18,038 | \$ | 37,527 |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | 1 | | 3 | | 5 | | 10 |
| MODERATE GROWTH PORTFOLIO | | YEAR | | YEARS | | YEARS | | YEARS |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | \$ | 11,249 | \$ | 16,924 | \$ | 21,841 | \$ | 35,257 |
| If you do not surrender your Contract: | \$ | 3,249 | \$ | 9,924 | \$ | 16,841 | \$ | 35,257 |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | 1 | | 3 | | 5 | | 10 |
| MODERATE PORTFOLIO | | YEAR | | YEARS | | YEARS | | YEARS |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | \$ | 13,643 | \$ | 23,827 | \$ | 32,875 | \$ | 54,918 |
| If you do not surrender your Contract: | \$ | 5,643 | \$ | 16,827 | \$ | 27,875 | \$ | 54,918 |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | 1 | | 3 | | 5 | | 10 |
| CONSERVATIVE PORTFOLIO | | 1 YEAR | | 3 YEARS | | 5 YEARS | | 10 YEARS |
| CONSERVATIVE PORTFOLIO If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | \$ | - | \$ | - | \$ | - | \$ | |
| | \$ \$ | YEAR | \$ \$ | YEARS | \$ \$ | YEARS | \$ \$ | YEARS |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | - | YEAR 13,342 | | YEARS 22,979 | | YEARS 31,552 | | YEARS 52,712 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | - | YEAR 13,342 | | YEARS 22,979 | | YEARS 31,552 | | YEARS 52,712 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | - | YEAR 13,342 | | YEARS 22,979 15,979 | | YEARS 31,552 26,552 | | YEARS 52,712 52,712 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: | - | YEAR 13,342 5,342 | | YEARS 22,979 15,979 3 | | YEARS 31,552 26,552 5 | | YEARS 52,712 52,712 10 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: INTERNATIONAL GROWTH PORTFOLIO | \$ | YEAR 13,342 5,342 1 YEAR | \$ | YEARS 22,979 15,979 3 YEARS | \$ | YEARS 31,552 26,552 5 YEARS | \$ | YEARS 52,712 52,712 10 YEARS |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: INTERNATIONAL GROWTH PORTFOLIO If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | \$ | YEAR 13,342 5,342 1 YEAR 12,424 | \$ \$ | YEARS 22,979 15,979 3 YEARS 20,356 | \$ \$ | YEARS 31,552 26,552 5 YEARS 27,401 | \$ \$ | YEARS 52,712 52,712 10 YEARS 45,521 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: INTERNATIONAL GROWTH PORTFOLIO If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | \$ | YEAR 13,342 5,342 1 YEAR 12,424 | \$ \$ | YEARS 22,979 15,979 3 YEARS 20,356 | \$ \$ | YEARS 31,552 26,552 5 YEARS 27,401 | \$ \$ | YEARS 52,712 52,712 10 YEARS 45,521 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: INTERNATIONAL GROWTH PORTFOLIO If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | \$ | YEAR 13,342 5,342 1 YEAR 12,424 | \$ \$ | YEARS 22,979 15,979 3 YEARS 20,356 13,356 | \$ \$ | YEARS 31,552 26,552 5 YEARS 27,401 22,401 | \$ \$ | YEARS 52,712 52,712 10 YEARS 45,521 45,521 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: INTERNATIONAL GROWTH PORTFOLIO If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: | \$ | YEAR 13,342 5,342 1 YEAR 12,424 4,424 1 | \$ \$ | YEARS 22,979 15,979 3 YEARS 20,356 13,356 3 | \$ \$ | YEARS 31,552 26,552 5 YEARS 27,401 22,401 5 | \$ \$ | YEARS 52,712 52,712 10 YEARS 45,521 45,521 10 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: INTERNATIONAL GROWTH PORTFOLIO If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: MONEY MARKET PORTFOLIO | \$ \$ \$ | YEAR 13,342 5,342 1 YEAR 12,424 4,424 1 YEAR | \$ \$ \$ | YEARS 22,979 15,979 3 YEARS 20,356 13,356 3 YEARS | \$ \$ \$ | YEARS 31,552 26,552 5 YEARS 27,401 22,401 5 YEARS | \$ \$ \$ | YEARS 52,712 52,712 10 YEARS 45,521 45,521 10 YEARS |



UNIVERSAL VIA w/ Liquidity Rider (L Share)

| GROWTH PORTFOLIO | | 1 YEAR | | 3 YEARS | | 5 YEARS | | 10 YEARS |
|--|----------------|--|----------------|---|----------------|---|----------------|---|
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | \$ | 11,596 | \$ | 17,946 | \$ | 18,513 | \$ | 38,418 |
| If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: | \$ | 3,596 | \$ | 10,946 | \$ | 18,513 | \$ | 38,418 |
| | | 1 | | 3 | | 5 | | 10 |
| MODERATE GROWTH PORTFOLIO | | YEAR | | YEARS | | YEARS | | YEARS |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | \$ | 11,348 | \$ | 17,217 | \$ | 17,322 | \$ | 36,173 |
| If you do not surrender your Contract: | \$ | 3,348 | \$ | 10,217 | \$ | 17,322 | \$ | 36,173 |
| | | 1 | | 3 | | 5 | | 10 |
| MODERATE PORTFOLIO | | YEAR | | YEARS | | YEARS | | YEARS |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | \$ | 13,740 | \$ | 24,098 | \$ | 28,298 | \$ | 55,613 |
| If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: | \$ | 5,740 | \$ | 17,098 | \$ | 28,298 | \$ | 55,613 |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | 1 | | 3 | | 5 | | 10 |
| CONSERVATIVE PORTFOLIO | | 1 YEAR | | 3 YEARS | | 5 YEARS | | 10 YEARS |
| | | | \$ | - | \$ | YEARS | \$ | YEARS |
| CONSERVATIVE PORTFOLIO If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: | \$ \$ | 1 YEAR 13,439 5,439 | \$ \$ | YEARS | \$ \$ | - | \$ \$ | - • |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | | 13,439 5,439 | | YEARS 23,253 16,253 | | YEARS 26,981 26,981 | | YEARS 53,432 53,432 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: | | 13,439 5,439 1 | | YEARS 23,253 16,253 3 | | YEARS 26,981 26,981 5 | | YEARS 53,432 53,432 10 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: INTERNATIONAL GROWTH PORTFOLIO | \$ | 13,439 5,439 1 YEAR | \$ | YEARS 23,253 16,253 3 YEARS | \$ | YEARS 26,981 26,981 5 YEARS | \$ | YEARS 53,432 53,432 10 YEARS |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: | | 13,439 5,439 1 | | YEARS 23,253 16,253 3 | | YEARS 26,981 26,981 5 | | YEARS 53,432 53,432 10 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: INTERNATIONAL GROWTH PORTFOLIO If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | \$ | 13,439 5,439 1 YEAR 12,522 | \$ \$ | YEARS 23,253 16,253 3 YEARS 20,639 13,639 | \$ | YEARS 26,981 26,981 5 YEARS 22,853 22,853 | \$ \$ | YEARS 53,432 53,432 10 YEARS 46,323 46,323 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: INTERNATIONAL GROWTH PORTFOLIO If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: | \$ | 13,439 5,439 1 YEAR 12,522 4,522 1 | \$ \$ | YEARS 23,253 16,253 3 YEARS 20,639 13,639 3 | \$ | YEARS 26,981 26,981 5 YEARS 22,853 22,853 5 | \$ \$ | YEARS 53,432 53,432 10 YEARS 46,323 46,323 10 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: INTERNATIONAL GROWTH PORTFOLIO If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: MONEY MARKET PORTFOLIO | \$ \$ \$ | 13,439 5,439 1 YEAR 12,522 4,522 1 YEAR | \$ \$ \$ | YEARS 23,253 16,253 3 YEARS 20,639 13,639 3 YEARS | \$ \$ \$ | YEARS 26,981 26,981 5 YEARS 22,853 22,853 5 YEARS | \$ \$ \$ | YEARS 53,432 53,432 10 YEARS 46,323 46,323 10 YEARS |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: INTERNATIONAL GROWTH PORTFOLIO If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: | \$ | 13,439 5,439 1 YEAR 12,522 4,522 1 | \$ \$ | YEARS 23,253 16,253 3 YEARS 20,639 13,639 3 | \$ | YEARS 26,981 26,981 5 YEARS 22,853 22,853 5 | \$ \$ | YEARS 53,432 53,432 10 YEARS 46,323 46,323 10 |

16

UNIVERSAL VIA SELECT (C Share)

| GROWTH PORTFOLIO | | 1 YEAR | | 3 YEARS | | 5 YEARS | | 10 YEARS |
|--|----------------|--|----------------|---|----------------|---|----------------|---|
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | \$ | 3,794 | \$ | 11,526 | \$ | 19,454 | \$ | 40,170 |
| If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: | \$ | 3,794 | \$ | 11,526 | \$ | 19,454 | \$ | 40,170 |
| | | 1 | | 3 | | 5 | | 10 |
| MODERATE GROWTH PORTFOLIO | | YEAR | | YEARS | | YEARS | | YEARS |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | \$ | 3,547 | \$ | 10,801 | \$ | 18,276 | \$ | 37,974 |
| If you do not surrender your Contract: | \$ | 3,547 | \$ | 10,801 | \$ | 18,276 | \$ | 37,974 |
| | | 1 | | 3 | | 5 | | 10 |
| MODERATE PORTFOLIO | | YEAR | | YEARS | | YEARS | | YEARS |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | \$ | 5,933 | \$ | 17,639 | \$ | 29,135 | \$ | 56,980 |
| If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: | \$ | 5,933 | \$ | 17,639 | \$ | 29,135 | \$ | 56,980 |
| | | | | | | | | |
| | | 1 | | 3 | | 5 | | 10 |
| CONSERVATIVE PORTFOLIO | | 1 YEAR | | 3 YEARS | | 5 YEARS | | 10 YEARS |
| CONSERVATIVE PORTFOLIO If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | | 1 YEAR 5,633 | \$ | - | \$ | - | \$ | |
| | \$ \$ | | \$ \$ | YEARS | \$ \$ | YEARS | \$ \$ | YEARS |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | | 5,633 | | YEARS 16,799 16,799 | | YEARS 27,833 27,833 | | YEARS 54,848 54,848 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | | 5,633 5,633 | | YEARS 16,799 | | YEARS 27,833 | | YEARS 54,848 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: INTERNATIONAL GROWTH PORTFOLIO | | 5,633 5,633 1 | | YEARS 16,799 16,799 3 | | YEARS 27,833 27,833 5 | | YEARS 54,848 54,848 10 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: | \$ | 5,633 5,633 1 YEAR | \$ | YEARS 16,799 16,799 3 YEARS | \$ | YEARS 27,833 27,833 5 YEARS | \$ | YEARS 54,848 54,848 10 YEARS |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: INTERNATIONAL GROWTH PORTFOLIO If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | \$ | 5,633 5,633 1 YEAR 4,718 | \$ \$ | YEARS 16,799 16,799 3 YEARS 14,201 14,201 | \$ \$ | YEARS 27,833 27,833 5 YEARS 23,749 23,749 | \$ \$ | YEARS 54,848 54,848 10 YEARS 47,900 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: INTERNATIONAL GROWTH PORTFOLIO If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: | \$ | 5,633 5,633 1 YEAR 4,718 | \$ \$ | YEARS 16,799 16,799 3 YEARS 14,201 | \$ \$ | YEARS 27,833 27,833 5 YEARS 23,749 | \$ \$ | YEARS 54,848 54,848 10 YEARS 47,900 47,900 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: INTERNATIONAL GROWTH PORTFOLIO If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: MONEY MARKET PORTFOLIO | \$ | 5,633 5,633 1 YEAR 4,718 4,718 1 | \$ \$ | YEARS 16,799 16,799 3 YEARS 14,201 14,201 3 | \$ \$ | YEARS 27,833 27,833 5 YEARS 23,749 23,749 5 | \$ \$ | YEARS 54,848 54,848 10 YEARS 47,900 47,900 10 |
| If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: INTERNATIONAL GROWTH PORTFOLIO If you surrender your Contract at the end of the applicable time period: If you do <i>not</i> surrender your Contract: | \$ \$ \$ | 5,633 5,633 1 YEAR 4,718 4,718 1 YEAR | \$ \$ \$ | YEARS 16,799 16,799 3 YEARS 14,201 14,201 3 YEARS | \$ \$ \$ | YEARS 27,833 27,833 5 YEARS 23,749 23,749 5 YEARS | \$ \$ \$ | YEARS 54,848 54,848 10 YEARS 47,900 47,900 10 YEARS |

17

Portfolio Turnover

Each Investment Option pays transaction costs, such as commissions, when it buys and sells securities (or "turns over" its portfolio). A higher portfolio turnover rate may include higher transaction costs. These costs, which are not reflected in annual Contract expenses or in the examples, affect the Investment Option's performance. During the most recent fiscal year, the Investment Options' portfolio turnover rate, as a percentage of the average value of its portfolio, was as follows:

| Growth Portfolio | 6.37% |
|--------------------------------|-------|
| Moderate Growth Portfolio | 2.93% |
| Moderate Portfolio | 0.95% |
| Conservative Portfolio | 1.78% |
| International Growth Portfolio | 2.83% |
| | |

Principal Risks of Investing in the Contract

This section summarizes the principal risks of investing in the Contract. Additional details regarding the various risks and benefits of investing in the Contract are described in the relevant sections of this Prospectus, including <u>Appendix B: Additional Information About The Investment Options</u>, and the <u>Statement of Additional Information (SAI)</u>.

Liquidity Risk. This Contract is not designed for short-term investing and is not appropriate for an investor who needs ready access to cash. It should not be viewed as a liquid investment. Depending on the Contract class you select, surrender charges apply for up to nine years after your last premium payment (Class C Contracts have no surrender charge). Surrender charges will reduce the return on your investment if you withdraw money during the surrender charge period. If you need to make early or excess withdrawals, they could substantially reduce the benefits of an investment in the Contract. There may be adverse tax consequences if you make partial withdrawals from or surrender the Contract. The benefits of tax deferral also mean the Contract is better suited for investors with a long time horizon.

Adverse Tax Consequences. There are a number of tax risks that may arise in connection with purchasing the Contract. These risks include: (1) the possibility that the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") may interpret the rules that apply to variable annuities in a manner that could result in you being treated as the owner of your Contract's pro rata portion of the assets of the Variable Account, which would result in the loss of tax deferral; (2) the possibility that the IRS may take the position that the Contract does not qualify as an annuity for federal tax purposes resulting in the loss of favorable tax treatment; and (3) the possibility of a change in the present federal income tax laws that apply to your Contract, or of the current interpretations by the IRS, which may change from time to time without notice, and could have retroactive effects regardless of the date of enactment or publication, as the case may be.

You should always consult a tax advisor about the application of Federal and Puerto Rico tax law to your individual situation prior to your investment in the Contract and prior to making any decisions relating to partial withdrawals, surrenders and annuitization. The Puerto Rico and Federal Income tax treatment of variable annuity Contracts is complex and current tax treatment of variable annuity contracts may change over time. Any amendment to the PR Code or the US Internal Revenue Code may result in a change in the tax treatment of the variable annuity contract that could impact, among other things, the Contract expenses associated with the buying, exchanging, owning, or surrendering the Contract. For more details see "Tax Considerations" later in this Prospectus.

Poor Investment Performance. The value of your purchase payments invested in the various Sub-Accounts in your Contract are not guaranteed and will increase and decrease according to the investment performance of the underlying mutual funds. You assume the investment risk of the purchase payments allocated to the various Sub-Accounts in your Contract. You can lose money by investing in this Contract, including loss of the entire amount you invest (your principal). You bear the risk of any decline in your Contract's value resulting from the performance of the Sub-Accounts you have chosen.

Market and Financial Risks. Market and financial risks are inherent in any securities investment. Amounts allocated to the Investment Options are subject to the risks inherent in the securities markets and, specifically, to price fluctuations in the underlying fund's investments. Each Investment Option has its own unique risks. For more information about the risks of a particular portfolio, see "Appendix B: Additional Information About The Investment Options." You should review that information before making an investment decision. *Market risks* include 'macro' factors which do not necessarily relate to a particular issuer, but affect the way markets, and securities within those markets, perform. Market risks can be described in terms of volatility, that is, the range and frequency of market value changes. Market risks include variables such as changes in interest rates, general economic conditions, and investor perceptions regarding the value of debt and equity securities. It also includes factors such as climate warming and the COVID epidemic. *Financial risks* include factors associated with a particular company which may affect the price of its securities, such as its competitive posture, its products, its management, its earnings and its ability to meet its debt obligations.

An investment in any of the Sub-Accounts carries with it the risk that the value of the investments in the underlying mutual funds will decline, and you could lose money. This could happen if the financial investment markets as a whole decline in value or if the investments made by a mutual fund held by a Sub-Account in which you have invested declines in value. You should review the prospectuses of the underlying mutual funds carefully and analyze the risk factors disclosed therein that are applicable to each Sub-Account. Some of such risks are as follows:

Equity Risk – Common stocks and other similar equity securities are the riskiest investments in a company and they fluctuate more in value than bonds. An underlying mutual fund could lose all of its investment in a company's stock.

<u>Industry Concentration Risk</u> – Certain underlying mutual funds may concentrate their investments in a given industry or business segment. Such concentration may increase such underlying mutual fund's costs or fluctuations in the value of its investment portfolio. In addition, different funds may have overlapping investments, increasing concentration that is unknown to the separate fund managers.

<u>Credit and Interest Rate Risks</u> – The underlying mutual funds may invest in bonds and other income-producing securities, such as preferred stock. These securities are subject to credit risk and interest rate risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of a bond or other income-producing security will not make interest or principal payments when they are due. Even if an issuer does not default on a payment, a bond's value may decline if the market anticipates that the issuer has become less able or less willing to make payments on time. Even high quality bonds are subject to some credit risk. However, credit risk is higher for lower quality bonds. The value of bonds generally can be expected to fall when interest rates rise. Interest rate risk is the risk that interest rates will raise, so that value of an underlying mutual fund's investments in bonds will fall. The impact of changes in the general level of interest rates on lower quality bonds may be greater than the impact on higher quality bonds.

<u>Non-Diversification Risk</u> – Certain underlying mutual funds may be non-diversified. Non-diversification risk is the risk that large positions in a small number of issuers may cause greater fluctuations on the underlying fund's Net Asset Value (the total value of an underlying mutual fund adjusted for expenses and divided by the number of units, at the end of a market day or at the close of the New York Stock Exchange) as a result of changes in the market's assessment of the financial condition of such issuers.

<u>Foreign Securities Risk</u> – Certain underlying mutual funds invest primarily in American Depositary Receipts ("ADRs") representing interest in foreign issuers. While ADRs are not necessarily denominated in the currencies of the foreign securities they represent, they are subject to many of the risks associated with foreign securities. Such risks can increase the chances that the applicable underlying mutual funds will lose money. These risks include difficulty in pricing securities, defaults on foreign government securities, difficulties enforcing favorable judgments in foreign courts and political and social instability. The issuers of unsponsored depositary receipts are not obligated to disclose material information in the United States. Therefore, there may be less information available regarding these issuers and there may not be a correlation between such information and the market value of the depositary receipts.

<u>Illiquid Securities</u> – Some of the underlying mutual funds may invest some of their funds in illiquid securities. Illiquid securities face the risk that they may not be readily sold, particularly at times when it is advisable to avoid losses. It may also not be possible to accurately or fairly determine the value of illiquid securities.

<u>Emerging Markets</u> – Investments in the securities of issuers located in or principally doing business in emerging markets are subject to foreign investments risks. These risks are greater for investments in issuers in emerging market countries. Emerging market countries tend to have economic, political and legal systems that are less fully developed and are less stable than those of more developed countries. Emerging market securities are often particularly sensitive to market movements because their market prices tend to reflect speculative expectations. Low trading volumes may result in a lack of liquidity and in extreme price volatility.

<u>Manager Risk</u> – The portfolio is subject to the risk that the Portfolio Construction Manager's judgments and investment decisions, as well as the methods, tools, resources, information and data, and the analyses employed or relied on by the Portfolio Construction Manager to make those judgments and decisions may be incorrect or otherwise may not produce the desired results. This could cause the portfolio to lose value or its results to lag relevant benchmarks or other portfolios with similar objectives.

Specific Risk Factors Applicable to the Money Market Portfolio. An investment in the Money Market Portfolio (or any other portfolio) is not a bank deposit and is not insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") or any other government agency. Although the Money Market Portfolio seeks to preserve the value of your investment at \$1.00 per share, it is possible to lose money by investing in this portfolio, and such loss is more likely in a low interest rate environment. Circumstances could arise that would prevent the payment of interest or principal on U.S. government securities, which could adversely affect their value and the Money Market Portfolio's ability to preserve the value of your investment at \$1.00 per share. Recent changes in the rules governing money market funds are likely to result in an increased demand for U.S. government securities, which could affect the availability of such instruments for investment and the Money Market Portfolio's ability to pursue its investment strategies.

In addition, you should be aware that there have been a very small number of money market funds in other fund complexes that, in the past, have failed to pay investors \$1.00 per share for their investment in those funds (this is referred to as "breaking the buck"), and any money market fund may do so in the future. If a money market fund breaks the buck or if money market funds are perceived to be likely to do so, there could be significant redemptions from money market funds, driving market prices of securities down and making it more difficult for the portfolio to maintain a \$1.00 per share Net Asset Value. You should also be aware that Universal and its affiliates are under no obligation to provide financial support to the portfolio or take other measures to ensure that you receive \$1.00 per share for your investment in the portfolio. You should not invest in the portfolio with the expectation that any such action will be taken. Even if the underlying money market fund maintains a \$1.00 per share Net Asset Value, you could lose money if the yield is not sufficient to cover your Contract and Variable Account fees and charges.

Some of the potentially more significant risks of an investment in the Money Market Portfolio include:

<u>Yield</u> – *The yield may not be sufficient to cover the Variable Account fees and charges.* The amount of income received by the portfolio will go up or down depending on day-to-day variations in short-term interest rates, and when interest rates are very low the portfolio's expenses could absorb all or a significant portion of the portfolio's income. If interest rates increase, the portfolio's yield may not increase proportionately. For example, Transamerica Asset Management ("TAM") or its affiliates may discontinue any temporary voluntary fee limitation or recoup amounts previously waived or reimbursed. In addition, the recent adoption of more stringent regulations governing the management of money market funds could have a negative effect on yields.

Interest Rate – The interest rates on short-term obligations held in the portfolio will vary, rising or falling with short-term interest rates generally. Interest rates in the United States have recently been increasing after being at historically low levels. The portfolio's yield will tend to lag behind general changes in interest rates. The ability of the portfolio's yield to reflect current market rates will depend on how quickly the obligations in its portfolio mature and how much money is available for investment at current market rates. The U.S. Federal Reserve has raised interest rates from historically low levels. Any additional interest rate increases in the future may cause the value of fixed-income securities to decrease. During periods of extremely low or negative short-term interest rates, the portfolio may not be able to maintain a positive yield or total return or be able to preserve the value of your investment at \$1.00 per share.

<u>Liquidity</u> – The portfolio may make investments that are illiquid or that become illiquid after purchase. The liquidity and value of investments can deteriorate rapidly and those investments may be difficult or impossible to sell, particularly during times of market turmoil. These illiquid investments may also be difficult to value. If the portfolio is forced to sell an illiquid investment to meet redemption requests or other cash needs, the portfolio may be forced to sell at a loss.

<u>Redemption</u> – The portfolio may experience periods of heavy redemptions that could cause the portfolio to liquidate its assets at inopportune times or at a loss or depressed value, and that could affect the portfolio's ability to maintain a \$1.00 share price. Redemption risk is greater to the extent that the underlying fund has investors with large shareholdings, short investment horizons, or unpredictable cash flow needs. The redemption by one or more large shareholders of their holdings in the underlying fund could have an adverse impact on the remaining shareholders in the fund. In addition, the underlying fund may suspend redemptions when permitted by applicable regulations.

Alternatives to the Contract. Other annuity contracts or investments may provide more favorable returns or benefits than the Contract and/or may have lower fees and expenses.

Risks Affecting our Administration of the Contract. Universal Life's business activity and operations, and/or the activities and operations of our service providers and business partners, are subject to certain risks, including, those resulting from information systems failures, cyber-attack, or current or future outbreaks of infectious diseases, viruses (including COVID-19), epidemics or pandemics. These risks are common to all insurers and financial service providers and may materially impact our ability to administer the Contract (and to keep Contract Owner information confidential).

Business Disruption and Cybersecurity Risks

We rely on technology, including interconnected computer systems and data storage networks and digital communications, to conduct our variable product business activities. Because our variable product business is highly dependent upon the effective operation of our computer systems and those of our service providers and other business partners, our business is vulnerable to disruptions from utility outages, and susceptible to operational and information security risks resulting from information systems failure (e.g., hardware and software malfunctions) and cyber-attacks. Cyber-attacks may be systemic (e.g., affecting the internet, cloud services, or other infrastructure) or targeted (e.g., failures in or breach of our systems or those of third parties on whom we rely, including ransomware and malware attacks).

Cybersecurity risks include, but are not limited to, the loss, theft, misuse, corruption, and destruction of data maintained online or digitally, interference with or denial of service, attacks on our website (or the websites of third parties on whom we rely), disruption of routine business operations, and unauthorized release of confidential customer information. The risk of cyber-attacks may be higher during periods of geopolitical turmoil. Due to the increasing sophistication of cyber-attacks, a cybersecurity breach could occur and persist for an extended period of time without detection.

Systems failures and cybersecurity incidents affecting us, our affiliates, the underlying funds, intermediaries, service providers, and other third parties on whom we rely may adversely affect your contract value and interfere with our ability to process contract transactions and calculate contract values. Systems failures and cybersecurity breaches may cause us to be unable to process orders from our website or with the underlying funds, cause us to be unable to calculate share values, cause the release or possible destruction of confidential customer and/or business information, impede order processing or cause other operational issues, subject us and our service providers and intermediaries to regulatory fines, litigation, and financial losses, and/or cause reputational damage. Cybersecurity risks may also impact the issuers of securities in which the underlying funds invest, which may cause the underlying funds to lose value.

The preventative actions we take to reduce the frequency and severity of cybersecurity incidents and protect our computer systems may be insufficient to prevent a cybersecurity breach from impacting our operations or your contract value. There can be no assurance that we or the underlying funds or our service providers and intermediaries will be able to avoid cybersecurity breaches affecting your contract.

In addition, we are also exposed to risks related to natural and man-made disasters, including, but not limited to, storms, fires, floods, earthquakes, public health crises, malicious acts, and terrorist acts, which could adversely affect our ability to conduct business. A natural or man-made disaster, including a pandemic (such as COVID-19), could affect the ability of our employees or the employees of our service providers to perform their job responsibilities. They could interfere with our processing of contract transactions, including processing orders from owners and orders with the underlying funds, impact our ability to calculate contract value, or have other adverse impacts on our operations. These events may also negatively affect the our service providers and intermediaries, the underlying funds and the issuers of securities in which the underlying funds invest, which may cause the underlying funds to lose value. There can be no assurance that we or the underlying funds or our service providers and intermediaries will be able to avoid negative impacts associated with natural and man-made disasters.

Universal Life's Ability to Meet Annuity and Death Benefit Payments. The ability of Universal Life to timely meet its payment obligations under the Contract, including annuity and Death Benefit payments, may be affected by various factors which affect Universal Life's liquidity and, thus, its claims paying ability. Universal Life's liquidity and claims paying ability may be affected by various factors, which include, but are not limited to, the following:

- Rating agencies lowering Universal Life's rating.
- Investments made by Universal Life experience higher than anticipated losses.
- Disruption in the financial markets.
- Changes in interest rates.
- Actual experience adversely varies from Universal Life's underwriting assumptions.
- Reinsurers refuse or fail to pay claims when due.

The Fortune V Separate Account and Universal Life Insurance Company

Universal Life Insurance Company is a stock life insurance company organized as Eastern America Life Insurance Company in 1993 under the laws of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, with its home office at Metro Office Park Street 1, Lot 10, Guaynabo, PR 00968. Universal Life is a provider of several insurance products: individual life, group life, group disability, credit life, annuities & IRAs. It is admitted to do business for life, disability and variable insurance by the Office of Commissioner of Insurance in the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Universal Life is a member of the Universal Group of companies that operate in Puerto Rico and United States. Universal Life is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Universal Insurance Company, Inc.

Universal Life established the Variable Account on March 1, 2007, pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Puerto Rico Insurance Code. The Variable Account is registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended ("1940 Act"), as a management investment company. It is the Variable Account through which the Company sets aside, separate and apart from its general assets, assets attributable to the variable portion of its variable annuity contracts. Registration under the 1940 Act does not involve supervision of management or investment practices or policies by the SEC.

Income, gains, and losses credited to, or charged against, the Variable Account, whether or not realized, reflect the Variable Account's own investment experience and not the investment experience of Universal Life's other assets. The Variable Account's assets are held separately from Universal Life's assets and are not chargeable with liabilities incurred in any other business of Universal Life. Universal Life is obligated to pay all amounts promised to Contract Owners under the Contract.

The General Account

Our general obligations and any guaranteed benefits under the Contract are supported by the Company's general account and are subject to the Company's claims paying ability. An owner should look to the financial strength of the Company for its claims paying ability.

The Variable Account Sub-Accounts

The Variable Account is divided into six (6) Sub-Accounts among which the Contract Owners may allocate their purchase payments, subject to the terms and conditions in the Contract. The Sub-Accounts consist of segregated and separately-managed pools of assets of the Variable Account (portfolios), and each is managed by Universal Financial Services (UFS) as the investment adviser contracted by Universal Life to manage the Sub-Account. The Sub-Accounts are available for investment only through the purchase of the Contract. Each Sub-Account is non-diversified and will have a generally defined investment strategy.

The Portfolio Construction Manager may fulfill the defined investment strategy of the Sub-Accounts by investing directly in mutual funds that are themselves consistent with the defined strategy. In addition, the Portfolio Construction Manager, under the direction of Universal Financial Services (UFS), will have discretion to change the underlying investments of a Sub-Account at any time as deemed appropriate and consistent with the defined investment strategy, and Universal Life will be able to replace the Portfolio Construction Manager as it judges appropriate.



Amounts allocated to a Sub-Account by the Contract Owner will be used to purchase Accumulation Units, representing value units of the total investment of the Sub-Account. After the initial purchase of Accumulation Units, the value of the Contract's investment in a Sub-Account will be based on the number of Accumulation Units held and the current Accumulation Unit value, which will fluctuate with the investment performance of the underlying mutual funds held by the Sub-Account. Prior to Annuitization, transfers of the Contract's value among the Sub-Account Investment Options can be made by the Contract Owner a limited number of times per calendar year (20), subject to certain additional limitations. However, Universal Life can refuse, limit or otherwise restrict transfer requests or take any reasonable action it deems necessary to protect the Contract Owners from harmful trading practices that negatively impact underlying Sub-Account performance. The Contract Value during the Accumulation Period of the Contract, and the amount available for Annuitization, will be based on the total value of all Accumulation Units of all the Sub-Accounts among which the Variable Account value was allocated by the Contract Owner.

The particular Sub-Accounts available under the Variable Account may change from time to time at Universal Life's sole discretion. Specifically, Sub-Accounts that are initially available may be removed, merged, combined, or closed off to future investment. New Sub-Accounts may be added. Contract Owners will receive notice from Universal Life of any such changes that affect their Contract in the form of supplements or amendments to this Prospectus.

The prospectus of each underlying mutual fund held by the Sub-Accounts contains more detailed information, including information regarding fees and expenses in connection with investing in such mutual funds that you should be aware of. Prospectuses for such underlying mutual funds should be read in conjunction with this Prospectus. For more information regarding underlying mutual funds please refer to <u>https://www.transamerica.com/investments-fund-center</u>.

Investment Objectives and Policies

The investment objective of each Sub-Account (Investment Option or portfolio) and the strategies each Sub-Account employs to achieve its objective are set forth below. There can be no assurance that a Sub-Account will achieve its objective.

Growth Portfolio: Seeks long-term capital appreciation by investing, under normal circumstances, primarily in underlying funds that invest in U.S. and foreign (including emerging market) equities, commodity-related securities, and alternative investments. Equity investments may be made across a range of capitalization size, industries and sectors. The underlying funds may also invest in real estate investment trusts ("REITs"). The portfolio may also invest directly in U.S. government securities and/or short-term commercial paper.

Moderate Growth Portfolio: Seeks capital appreciation with current income as a secondary objective. The portfolio seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing, under normal circumstances, in underlying funds that are expected to achieve a mix over time of approximately 70% of net assets in equities, which may include both stocks and commodity-related securities, and approximately 30% of net assets in fixed-income, which may include bonds, floating-rate bank loans, cash, cash equivalents, and other money market instruments. These percentages may vary. The underlying funds may invest in a variety of U.S. and foreign (including emerging market) equity and fixed-income (including high-yield) securities and alternative investments. Equity investments may be made across a range of capitalization size, industries and sectors. The underlying funds may also invest in REITs.

Moderate Portfolio: Seeks capital appreciation and current income. The portfolio seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing, under normal circumstances, in underlying funds that are expected to achieve a mix over time of approximately 50% of net assets in equities, which may include both stocks and commodity-related securities, and approximately 50% of net assets in fixed-income, which may include bonds, floating-rate bank loans, cash, cash equivalents, and other money market instruments. These percentages may vary. The portfolio is subject to implied volatility guidelines. Based on these guidelines, which include a formula using the level of implied market volatility, the Portfolio Construction Manager may increase equity exposure to approximately 66% or may decrease equity exposure to approximately 30%. Notwithstanding the guidelines, the Portfolio Construction Manager may elect to allocate fewer assets to equities when it believes it is advisable to do so. The underlying funds may invest in a variety of U.S. and foreign (including emerging market) equity and fixed-income (including high-yield) securities and alternative investments. Equity investments may be made across a range of capitalization size, industries and sectors. The underlying funds may also invest in REITs.

Conservative Portfolio: Seeks current income and preservation of capital. The portfolio seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing, under normal circumstances, in underlying funds that are expected to achieve a mix over time of approximately 35% of net assets in equities, which may include both stocks and commodity-related securities, and approximately 65% of net assets in fixed-income, which may include bonds, floating-rate bank loans, cash, cash equivalents, and other money market instruments. These percentages may vary. The portfolio is subject to implied volatility guidelines. Based on these guidelines and the level of implied market volatility, the Portfolio Construction Manager may increase equity exposure to approximately 51% or may decrease equity exposure to approximately 15%. Notwithstanding the guidelines, the Portfolio Construction Manager may elect to allocate fewer assets to equities when it believes it is advisable to do so. The underlying funds may invest in a variety of U.S. and foreign (including emerging market) equity and fixed-income (including high-yield) securities and alternative investments. Equity investments may be made across a range of capitalization size, industries and sectors. The underlying funds may also invest in REITs.

International Growth Portfolio: Seeks long term capital appreciation. The portfolio seeks to achieve its investment objective by investing, under normal circumstances, primarily in underlying funds that invest in international (developed and emerging markets) equities, including global REITs. Equity investments may be made across a range of capitalization size, industries and sectors. These underlying funds generally expect to be invested in more than three different countries.

Money Market Portfolio: Seeks maximum current income from money market securities consistent with liquidity and preservation of principal by investing in Transamerica Government Money Market Fund I2. The underlying fund's sub-adviser, Aegon USA Investment Management, LLC (the "sub-adviser"), invests the underlying fund's assets in high quality, U.S. dollar-denominated short-term money market instruments. These instruments include:

- Short-term U.S. government obligations, corporate bonds and notes, bank obligations (such as certificates of deposit and bankers' acceptances), commercial paper, asset-backed securities and repurchase agreements
- Obligations issued or guaranteed by the U.S. and foreign governments and their agencies and instrumentalities
- Obligations of U.S. and foreign banks, or their foreign branches, and U.S. savings banks.

The underlying fund may invest without limit in obligations of U.S. banks.

Bank obligations purchased for the underlying fund are limited to U.S. or foreign banks with total assets of \$1.5 billion or more. Similarly, savings association obligations purchased for the underlying fund are limited to U.S. savings association obligations issued by U.S. savings banks with total assets of \$1.5 billion or more. Foreign securities purchased for the underlying fund must be U.S. dollar-denominated and issued by foreign governments, agencies or instrumentalities, or banks that meet the minimum \$1.5 billion total asset requirement. These foreign obligations must also meet the same quality requirements as U.S. obligations.

The underlying fund will enter into repurchase agreements only with financial institutions that the sub-adviser determines are creditworthy. A financial institution must furnish collateral to the underlying fund at least equal in value to the amount of its repurchase obligation. This collateral generally consists of U.S. government securities, but may also consist of non-U.S. government securities including securities that could not be held by the underlying fund without the seller's repurchase commitment. When the underlying fund enters into a repurchase agreement with collateral that it could not otherwise hold, the fund takes on additional credit and other risks. The sub-adviser is responsible for ensuring that each repurchase agreement is eligible for purchase by the underlying fund.

As a money market fund, the underlying fund tries to maintain a share price of \$1.00 (but there is no guarantee that it can do so), and must follow strict rules as to the credit quality, diversification, liquidity and maturity of its investments. Each security, at the time of purchase by the underlying fund, has been determined by the sub-adviser to present minimal credit risk. Where required by these rules, the underlying fund's sub-adviser or Board of Trustees will decide whether the security should be held or sold in the event of credit downgrades or certain other events occurring after purchase.

General – All Sub-Account Investment Options

Allocation of assets among the underlying funds is based on factors such as diversification, general market outlooks, volatility in the equity markets, historical performance, current valuations, and other global economic factors.

Each Sub-Account's investment objective and, unless otherwise noted, its investment policies and techniques may be changed by the Board of Directors of the Fortune V Separate Account without approval of Contract Owners. A change in the investment objective or policies of a Sub-Account may result in the Sub-Account having an investment objective or policies different from those which a shareholder deemed appropriate at the time of investment.

Whenever a Sub-Account is requested to vote on a fundamental policy of a Fund, the Company will follow the procedures described later in this Prospectus under the section entitled "Voting Rights."

It is not possible to predict the extent to which a Sub-Account will be invested in a particular underlying fund at any time. A Sub-Account may be a significant shareholder in certain underlying funds. The Portfolio Construction Manager, Morningstar Investment Management LLC, may change the Sub-Account's asset allocations and underlying funds at any time without notice to Contract Owners and without shareholder approval.

Under adverse or unstable market, economic or political conditions, a Sub-Account may take temporary defensive positions in cash and short-term debt securities without limit.

Additional information regarding each Investment Option, including (i) its name, (ii) its type or a brief statement concerning its investment objectives, (iii) its investment adviser and any sub-investment adviser, (iv) current expenses, and (v) performance is available in the back of this Prospectus. See <u>Appendix A:</u> <u>Investment Options Available Under the Contract</u>. Further information regarding the Variable Account and the Investment Options, including management information, can also be found in this Prospectus. See <u>The Fortune V Separate Account and Universal Life Insurance Company</u>, <u>Appendix A: Investment Options Available Under the Contract</u>, and <u>Appendix B: Additional Information About the Investment Options</u>. The Variable Account does not disclose its portfolio securities to any person, other than in public filings in which portfolio securities are required to be disclosed.

Unsuitable for Short Term Trading

The Contracts are intended for long-term financial planning, and are, thus, unsuitable for short-term goals. Neither the Contracts described in this Prospectus, the Sub-Accounts, nor the underlying mutual funds are designed to support active trading strategies that require frequent movement between or among Sub-Accounts (sometimes referred to as "market-timing" or "short-term trading"). A Contract Owner who intends to use an active trading strategy should consult his/her registered representative and request information on other variable annuity contracts that offer segregated and separately-managed pools of assets or underlying mutual funds that are designed specifically to support active trading strategies. Universal Life discourages (and will take action to deter) short-term trading in this Contract because the frequent movement between or among Sub-Accounts may negatively impact other investors in the Contract. See "Transfers" in this Prospectus.



Benefits Available Under the Contract

The following tables summarize information about the benefits available under the Contract.

BENEFITS

| NAME OF BENEFIT | PURPOSE | IS THE BENEFIT STANDARD OR OPTIONAL | MAXIMUM FEE | BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF RESTRICTIONS/LIMITATIONS |
|--|---|--|---|--|
| Standard Death Benefit | Guarantees your Beneficiaries will receive a Death Benefit at least equal to the greatest of: (i) your Contract Value; or (ii) the total of all purchase payments (less an adjustment for partial withdrawals) | Standard (automatically included with the Contract) | No additional charge | Partial withdrawals could significantly reduce the benefit possibly by an amount greater than the amount withdrawn. |
| One-Year Enhanced Death Benefit Option | Provides a Death Benefit equal to the higher of (i) the Standard Death Benefit, or (ii) the highest Contract Value on any Contract Anniversary prior to the Owner's 86 th birthday (less an adjustment for subsequent partial withdrawals, plus purchase payments received). | Optional | 0.20% (as an annualized percentage of the Contract Value) | Available only at the time of Contract application. Available only to Contracts with an Owner age 70 or younger on the Date of Issue. The step-up applies only to Contract Value on Contract Anniversaries prior to the Owner's 86 th birthday Partial withdrawals could significantly reduce the benefit, possibly by an amount greater than the amount withdrawn. |
| Principal Protection Rider | Guarantees that your Contract Value will at least equal your Guaranteed Future Value, adjusted for partial withdrawals, regardless of the performance of the Sub-Accounts you select. | Optional | 2.35% (as an annual percentage of the Guaranteed Future Value on rider anniversary) | No longer available for purchase. Guaranteed Future Value date is 13 or 15 years after you elect the rider. Partial withdrawals may reduce the Guaranteed Future Value, possibly by an amount greater than the amount withdrawn. Investment restrictions limit available Investment Options under the Contract. Cannot be combined with any other living benefit rider. |
| Income for Life Rider | Provide a specified annual percentage of the Total Withdrawal Base, regardless of the performance of the Sub-Accounts you select. | Optional | 2.50% (as an annual percentage of the Total Withdrawal Base on rider anniversary) | No longer available for purchase. Excess withdrawals may significantly reduce the total withdrawal base. Investment restrictions limit available Investment Options under the Contract. Cannot be combined with any other living benefit rider. |

STANDARD CONTRACT OWNER SERVICES (Automatically Available)

| NAME OF BENEFIT | PURPOSE | MAXIMUM FEE | BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF RESTRICTIONS/LIMITATIONS |
|--------------------------------|---|-------------|---|
| Automatic Asset Rebalancing | Automatically rebalances your Contract Value (either quarterly, semi-annually, or | None | • Cannot be used with the Dollar Cost Averaging option. |
| | annually) to maintain the percentage allocated to each Investment Option at a pre- set level. | | This program may not result in profit or protect Contract Owners from loss. |
| | | | • Universal Life may discontinue this service at any time. |
| Dollar Cost Averaging | Automatically transfers a specific amount of money from any Sub-Account at set intervals (monthly, quarterly, semi-annually, or | None | • This program may not result in profit or protect Contract Owners from loss. |
| | annually). | | • Universal Life may discontinue this service at any time. |
| Systematic Withdrawals | Allows you to establish automatic partial withdrawals of \$100 or more (on a monthly, | None | • Withdrawals may be subject to surrender charges. |
| | quarterly, semi-annual, or annual basis). | | • Withdrawals may be taxable and before age 59 ½, subject to tax penalties. |
| | | | • Universal Life may discontinue this service at any time. |

Death Benefit

The Contract Owner may elect either the Standard Death Benefit, which is available with the Contract at no additional charge, or the One-Year Enhanced Death Benefit Rider, which is offered under the Contract for an additional charge. If no election is made at the time of application, the Death Benefit will be the Standard Death Benefit.

If the Contract Annuitant (or Joint Annuitant) and the Owner are not the same person and such Contract Annuitant dies before the Annuitization Date, the "Death Benefit" section does not apply and contractual rights succeed in the following order:

- (1) If there is a surviving Joint Annuitant, he/she becomes the new Contract Annuitant;
- (2) If there is no surviving Joint Annuitant, the Contract Owner can name a new Annuitant in accordance with applicable requirements of Puerto Rico laws.

Death of Contract Owner/Annuitant

Whether a party to the Contract has certain rights (including the right to receive the Death Benefit) depends on whether certain parties have been named and whether the Contract Owner and the Annuitant are the same person.

In the event of the death of any party to the Contract including, but not limited to, the Contract Owner (or any Joint Owner) and the Annuitant (or any Joint Annuitant), the rights of any remaining parties under the Contract and the heirs of the deceased party with respect to the Contract and payments there under will be subject at all times to the applicable inheritance laws of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, including those provisions relating to forced heirs. Any payments required to be made by Universal Life under the Contract (including payment of the Death Benefit) after the death of any party to the Contract will be made by Universal Life in accordance with the applicable inheritance laws of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, and any such payments will be processed after Universal Life shall have received proof of death and any legally required court of other documents involving the estate of the deceased party to the Contract. Contract Owners are urged to consult their legal adviser to discuss any implications that Puerto Rico inheritance laws may have with respect to other parties to the Contract and with respect to the prospective heirs of such Contract Owner.

If a Contract Owner (including a Joint Owner) who is also the Annuitant dies before the Annuitization Date, a Death Benefit is payable to the surviving Joint Owner.

If there is no surviving Joint Owner, the Death Benefit is payable to the Beneficiary. Multiple Beneficiaries will share the Death Benefit equally unless otherwise specified.

If no Beneficiaries survive the Contract Owner/Annuitant, the Contingent Beneficiary receives the Death Benefit. Multiple Contingent Beneficiaries will share the Death Benefit equally unless otherwise specified.

If no Contingent Beneficiaries survive the Contract Owner/Annuitant, the last surviving Contract Owner's estate will receive the Death Benefit.

If the Contract Owner/Annuitant dies after the Annuitization Date, any benefit that may be payable will be paid according to the selected annuity payment option.

Death Benefit Payment

The recipient of the Death Benefit may elect to receive the Death Benefit:

- (1) in a lump sum;
- (2) as an annuity for life (or for life expectancy);
- (3) in a 5 year Settlement Contract; or
- (4) in any other manner permitted by law and approved by Universal Life.

The Death Benefit Option selected will not impact the calculation of the Death Benefit.

Universal Life will pay (or will begin to pay) the Death Benefit within 30 days of receiving proof of death, instructions as to the payment of the Death Benefit and any other documents that may be required by Universal Life and/or under applicable Puerto Rico laws in good order.

Standard Death Benefit

If the Owner dies prior to the Annuitization Date and the total of all purchase payments made to the Contract is less than or equal to \$3,000,000, the Standard Death Benefit will be the greatest of:

- (1) the Contract Value; or
- (2) the total of all purchase payments, less an adjustment for partial withdrawals.

The adjustment for amounts withdrawn will reduce the total of all purchase payments in the same proportion that the Contract Value was reduced on the date(s) of the partial withdrawal(s).

Standard Death Benefit Example 1:

- a) Total purchase payments = \$100,000
- b) Contract Value at time of death = \$80,000
- c) Contract Value before amounts withdrawn \$83,000
- d) Amounts withdrawn = \$10,000
- e) Amounts withdrawn in % = 12.04%
- f) Death Benefit adjusted by 12.04%; the same proportion that the Contract Value was adjusted for when the partial withdrawal(s) took place.

Death Benefit Amount = \$87,960

Calculation for Standard Death Benefit:

- Amounts withdrawn / Contract Value before amounts withdrawn = \$10,000 / \$83,000 = 12.04%
- Total purchase payments Proportion of adjustment = \$100,000 12.04% = \$87,960

If the Owner dies prior to the Annuitization Date and the total of all purchase payments made to the Contract is greater than \$3,000,000, the Standard Death Benefit will be determined using the following formula:

$A \times F + B (1 - F)$, where

 $\mathbf{A} =$ the greatest of:

- (1) the Contract Value; or
- (2) the total of all purchase payments, less an adjustment for partial withdrawals.

The adjustment for amounts withdrawn will reduce the total of all purchase payments in the same proportion that the Contract Value was reduced on the date(s) of the partial withdrawal(s).

B = the Contract Value; and

 \mathbf{F} = the ratio of \$3,000,000 to the total of all purchase payments made to the Contract.

Standard Death Benefit Example 2:

- a) Total purchase payments = \$4,000,000
- b) Contract Value at time of death = \$3,800,000
- c) Contract Value before amounts withdrawn \$3,830,000
- d) Amounts withdrawn = \$170,000
- e) Amounts withdrawn in % = 4.44%
- f) Death Benefit adjusted by 4.44%; the same proportion that the Contract Value was adjusted for when the partial withdrawal(s) took place.

Death Benefit Amount = \$3,822,400

Calculation for Standard Death Benefit:

- Amount withdrawn / Contract Value before amounts withdrawn = \$170,000 / \$3,830,000 = 4.44%
- Total purchase payments Proportion of adjustment = \$4,000,000 4.44% = \$3,822,400.

Calculation for ratio on Contracts over \$3,000,000:

Standard Death Benefit x ratio of \$3,000,000 to total of all purchase payments + Contract Value x (1- ratio of \$3,000,000 to total of all purchase payments) = 3,822,400 x 0.75 + \$3,800,000 x (1 - 0.75) = \$3,816,800

One-Year Enhanced Death Benefit Option

Only at issue for an additional charge equal to an annualized rate of 0.20% of the daily net assets of the Variable Account, an applicant can purchase the One-Year Enhanced Death Benefit Option. This option is only available to Contracts with Owners age 70 or younger on the Date of Issue.

If the Owner dies prior to the Annuitization Date and the total of all purchase payments made to the Contract is less than or equal to \$3,000,000, the Death Benefit will be the greatest of:

- (1) the Contract Value;
- (2) the total of all purchase payments, less an adjustment for partial withdrawals; or
- (3) The stepped-up Death Benefit value, which is equal to the highest Contract Value on any Contract Anniversary prior to the Owner's 86th birthday, less an adjustment for amounts subsequently withdrawn, plus purchase payments received after that Contract Anniversary.

The adjustment for amounts withdrawn will reduce items (2) and (3) above in the same proportion that the Contract Value was reduced on the date(s) of the partial withdrawal(s).



One-Year Enhanced Death Benefit Example 1:

- a) Total purchase payments = \$100,000
- b) Contract Value at time of death = \$80,000
- c) Contract Value before amounts withdrawn = \$83,000
- d) Highest Anniversary Value = \$120,000
- e) Amounts withdrawn = \$10,000
- f) Amounts withdrawn in % = 12.04%
- g) Death Benefit adjusted by 12.04%; the same proportion that the Contract Value was adjusted for when the partial withdrawal(s) took place.

Death Benefit after adjustment of Highest Anniversary Value = \$105,552

Calculation:

- Amounts withdrawn / Contract Value before amounts withdrawn = \$10,000 / \$83,000 = 12.04%
- Highest Anniversary Value Proportion of adjustment = \$120,000 12.04% = \$105,552

If Universal Life does not receive all information necessary to pay the Death Benefit within one year of the Owner death, the Death Benefit will be the greater of (1) or (2) above.

If the Owner dies prior to the Annuitization Date and the total of all purchase payments made to the Contract is greater than \$3,000,000, the Death Benefit will be determined using the following formula:

 $A \times F + B (1 - F)$, where

 $\mathbf{A} =$ the greatest of:

- (1) the Contract Value;
- (2) the total of all purchase payments, less an adjustment for amounts withdrawn; or
- (3) the highest Contract Value on any Contract Anniversary prior to the Owner's 86th birthday, less an adjustment for amounts subsequently withdrawn, plus purchase payments received after that Contract Anniversary.

The adjustment for amounts withdrawn will reduce items (2) and (3) above in the same proportion that the Contract Value was reduced on the date(s) of the partial withdrawal(s).

If Universal Life does not receive all information necessary to pay the Death Benefit within one year of the Owner's death, the calculation for A above will be the greater of (1) or (2) above.

 $\mathbf{B} =$ the Contract Value; and

 \mathbf{F} = the ratio of \$3,000,000 to the total of all purchase payments made to the Contract.

One-Year Enhanced Death Benefit Example 2:

- a) Total purchase payments = \$4,000,000
- b) Contract Value at time of death = \$3,800,000
- c) Contract Value before amounts withdrawn = \$3,830,000
- d) Highest Anniversary Value = \$4,200,000
- e) Amounts withdrawn = \$170,000
- f) Amounts withdrawn in % = 4.44%
- g) Death Benefit adjusted by 4.44%; the same proportion that the Contract Value was adjusted for when the partial withdrawal(s) took place.

Death Benefit after adjustment of highest Anniversary Value = \$4,013,520

Calculation for Enhanced Death Benefit:

- Amounts withdrawn / Contract Value before amounts withdrawn = \$170,000 / \$3,830,000 = 4.44%
- Highest Anniversary Value Proportion of adjustment = \$4,200,000 4.44% = \$4,013,520

Calculation for ratio on Contracts over \$3,000,000:

• Enhanced Death Benefit x ratio of \$3,000,000 to total of all purchase payments + Contract Value x (1-ratio of \$3,000,000 to total of all purchase payments) = 4,013,520 x 0.75 + \$3,800,000 x (1-0.75) = \$3,960,140

Optional Benefit Riders

Liquidity Rider

This optional rider reduces the number of years each purchase payment is subject to Surrender Charges. This rider is an available addition to the Class B share (effectively changing it to Class L share contracts), therefore reducing the surrender period from nine to four years. You can only elect this rider at the time you purchase the Contract, and its selection is irrevocable.

Rider Fee. There is an extra charge for this rider, which is included as a part of the Contract Variable Account Charge. A rider fee equal to an effective annual rate of 0.35% of the daily Net Asset Value in the Variable Account is deducted in calculating the Accumulation Unit Values (increasing the Variable Account Charge from 1.40% to 1.75%). The rider fee is charged prior to Annuitization.

For Contracts sold between November 1st, 2011 and July 31st, 2013, the rider fee for the optional Liquidity Rider was 0.10% (instead of the current 0.35%).

Example: Assume that you make an initial premium payment of \$100,000, and make no partial withdrawals or subsequent premiums, and that after four full years, your contract value has declined to \$89,000 (due to negative investment performance and deduction of charges).

If you surrender your contract in the fifth year, and you DO NOT have the Liquidity Rider, you would be charged a surrender charge of \$5,000 (\$100,000 x 5%).

But if you surrender your contract in the fifth year, and you DO have the Liquidity Rider, your surrender charge would be zero.

Living Benefit Riders

The following optional benefit riders were formerly available for Contracts issued prior to April 1st, 2021: the Principal Protection Rider and the Income for Life Rider. You may have elected to purchase Principal Protection Rider Option A or Option B; or Income for Life Rider Option A or Option B. The Living Benefits Riders were available only at inception. These riders, described more fully below, are no longer available for purchase.

Principal Protection Rider

We guarantee the future value described below regardless of the performance of the Sub-Accounts you select.

Guaranteed Future Value. We guarantee that, on the Guaranteed Future Value Date (15 years after you elect the rider for Option A and 13 years after you elect the rider for Option B), your Contract Value will at least equal your Guaranteed Future Value adjusted for withdrawals. The Guaranteed Future Value on the rider date (i.e., the date the rider is added to the Contract) is the cumulative premiums during the first 6 months after Contract issue. If the Contract Value is less than the Guaranteed Future Value on the Guaranteed Value Date, we will add an amount equal to the difference to your Contract Value. After the Guaranteed Future Value Date, the Principal Protection Rider terminates.

Example. Assume that you make a \$100,000 premium and elect the Principal Protection Rider with Option A in your application, and that you make no partial withdrawals or additional premium payments, so your Guaranteed Future Value is \$100,000.

Also assume that after fifteen years (on your Guaranteed Future Value Date) your contract value has declined to \$78,000 (due to negative investment performance and deduction of charges).

On your Guaranteed Future Value Date, we will add \$22,000 to your contract value (to bring it up to \$100,000) and the Rider then terminates.

Rider Fee. A rider fee of 0.95% for **Option A Principal Protection 15** and 1.35% for **Option B Principal Protection 13**, as an annual percentage of the Guaranteed Future Value on the rider anniversary, is deducted on each rider anniversary for the Guaranteed Future Value and upon rider termination.

There is a pro-rata deduction for any off-anniversary surrenders. Subject to market conditions, the Company may increase the rider fee percentage up to 1.00% more than the original fee, so that a rider fee of 1.95% would be deducted for Option A, and 2.35% would be deducted for Option B.

The Contract Owner can revoke the rider after 30 days if the rider fee is increased by more than 0.75%.

After the rider date and before the Guaranteed Future Value Date, the Guaranteed Vulture value is equal to:

- the guaranteed future value on the rider date; less
- subsequent adjusted partial withdrawals (as described below).

After the Guaranteed Future Value Date, the Guaranteed Future Value Equals Zero.

Guaranteed Future Value Adjusted for Partial Withdrawals. If you take a partial withdrawal, it will reduce your Guaranteed Future Value. The amount of the reduction is referred to as the adjusted partial withdrawal amount, which will be equal to the greater of:

- 1) the Gross Partial Withdrawal amount; or
- 2) the result of (A divided by B), multiplied by C, where:



- A. is the amount of Gross Partial Withdrawal;
- B. the Contract Value immediately prior to the Gross Partial Withdrawal; and
- C. is the Guaranteed Future Value immediately prior to the Gross Partial Withdrawal.

In other words, if your Contract Value is greater than the Guaranteed Future Value at the time you make a partial withdrawal, then your Guaranteed Future Value is reduced by the same amount we reduce your Contract Value. However, if your Contract Value is less than the Guaranteed Future Value at the time you make a partial withdrawal, then your Guaranteed Future Value will be reduced by more than the amount we reduce your Contract Value.

Available Sub-Account Choices. Conservative Asset Allocation Portfolio, Moderate Asset Allocation Portfolio, and Money Market Portfolio are available investment options in the Principal Protection Rider.

The Principal Protection Rider cannot be combined with the Income for Life Rider.

Please note: You do not have any protection under the Principal Protection Rider unless you hold the Contract with the rider for fifteen (15) years for Option A or thirteen (13) years for Option B. If you think that you may terminate the Contract or elect to start receiving annuity payments (or if you must begin taking required minimum distributions) before the Guaranteed Future Value Date, electing the rider may not be in your best interests.

Income for Life Rider

If you elected the Income for Life Rider we will provide a specified annual percentage of the Total Withdrawal Base regardless of the performance of the Sub-Accounts you select.

Total Withdrawal Base ("TWB"). The Total Withdrawal Base is used to calculate the Maximum Annual Withdrawal Amount ("MAWA"). At rider inception, the initial TWB is equal to the Contract Value. Thereafter, the TWB is increased by subsequent premium payments, growth and automatic step-ups and reduced for excess withdrawals. *The automatic step-up and the growth features do not affect the Contract Value. These features only affect the Total Withdrawal Base*.

On each rider anniversary, the TWB will be set to the greatest of:

- 1) The current TWB
- 2) The Contract Value on the rider anniversary;
- 3) The current TWB immediately prior to anniversary processing multiplied by the Growth Factor.

The Growth Factor is 1.05 for the first 10 rider years and 1.03 thereafter.

Item 3 is set to zero after the latest of 10 rider years or actual age 59.

Item 3 is set to zero if there have been any withdrawals in the current rider year.

If the largest value is 2 above, the rider will be deemed to have a "step-up". If the largest value above is 1) the Contract did not "step-up".

On Item 3, the 5% or 3% growth is only credited to the TWB on the rider anniversary if no withdrawal is taken during the year. There is not an adjustment or credit for partial years of interest.



Rider Fee. For Option A. Income for Life Conservative, a rider fee of 1.15% is deducted on each rider anniversary as a percentage of the Total Withdrawal Base, and for Option B. Income for Life Moderate, a rider fee of 1.50% is deducted. There is a pro-rata deduction for any off-anniversary surrenders subject to market conditions. The Company reserves the right to increase the rider fee by 1.00%, to 2.15% and 2.50%, respectively.

The annual rider fee is based on the TWB on the rider anniversary immediately before any automatic step-up or growth is applied. A pro-rated rider fee assessed at Contract surrender is based on the TWB at the time of the surrender and the number of days since the prior rider anniversary. Subject to market conditions, Universal Life may increase the rider fee percentage up to 1.00% more than original fee. The rider fee will be for Contract life. The rider is revocable if the Company increases fee percentage by more than 0.75%.

You have the right to reject an automatic step-up within 30 days following a rider anniversary, if the rider fee percentage increases. If you reject an automatic step-up, you must notify us in a manner which is acceptable to us; however, you are eligible for future automatic step-ups. Changes as a result of the automatic step-up feature will be reversed. Any increase in the rider fee or withdrawal percentage will also be reversed.

The Income for Life Rider cannot be combined with the Principal Protection Rider.

Maximum Annual Withdrawal Amounts ("MAWA"). The MAWA is the maximum amount that can be withdrawn in a rider year without reducing the TWB. On each rider anniversary the MAWA is the withdrawal percentage multiplied by the TWB. The MAWA is not prorated in the first rider year. The MAWA for the upcoming year is calculated after the TWB is recalculated on the rider anniversary. This is also the benefit amount paid if the Contract Value is exhausted.

If additional premium payments are applied after the rider date, the TWB is increased by the amount of the premium and the MAWA will be recalculated on the date the premium is applied.

Excess Withdrawals. Partial withdrawals that are less than or equal to the MAWA will not reduce the Total Withdrawal Base. Excess withdrawals occur when the sum of gross withdrawals in a rider year exceed the MAWA. Any withdrawal taken before the rider anniversary immediately following the Annuitant's 59th birthday is considered an excess withdrawal.

Excess withdrawals will reduce the total withdrawal base by the TWB Adjustment. The TWB Adjustment is the greater of 1 and 2, where:

- 1) is the excess gross withdrawal amount; and
- 2) is A divided by B and multiplied by C
 - A. The excess withdrawal
 - B. The Contract Value after the MAWA has been withdrawn but prior the excess withdrawal
 - C. The Total Withdrawal Base prior to the withdrawal

Withdrawal Percentages. The Withdrawal Percentage is initially locked in at the time of the first withdrawal if the withdrawal occurs following the first rider anniversary after attainment of actual age 59. The Withdrawal Percentage is not recalculated at the time of an automatic step-up. This percentage will be zero until the rider anniversary following the Annuitant's 59th birthday. The Withdrawal Percentages are:

| Age | Single Life Withdrawal Percentage |
|---------------|-----------------------------------|
| 0 - 59 | 0.00% |
| 60 - 64 | 4.00% |
| 65 and higher | 5.00% |

Ages are determined using the actual age (the age attained at last birthday) at the most recent Contract Anniversary.

Rider Termination. This rider may terminate if the base Contract is terminated or if the rider is assigned without our consent.

Misstatement of Age provision. If a misstatement of age causes incorrect payments to be made, the TWB and MAWA will be adjusted to their correct values based on the actual age.

Available Sub-Account Choices.

Option A. Income for Life Conservative Rider has available the following investment options: Conservative Asset Allocation, Moderate Asset Allocation and Money Market Portfolio.

Option B. Income for Life Moderate Rider has available the following investment options: Conservative Asset Allocation, Moderate Asset Allocation, and Money Market Portfolio. At our discretion, we may make changes to the Sub-Account options available under the Income for Life Riders.

Example:

Assume that you purchase the contract at age 50, and you make a \$100,000 initial premium payment, and that you make no partial withdrawals or subsequent premium payments.

Also assume that after 15 years, at age 65, your contract value has declined to \$78,000 (due to negative investment performance and deduction of charges). At that time, your TWB will equal \$162,889.46 (\$100,000 increased by the Growth Factor of 1.05 for the first ten years, and zero thereafter).

At age 65, the MAWA (for a single life) is \$\$,144.47 (the Withdrawal Percentage of 5.00 % times the TWB of \$162,889.46).

Contract Owner Services

Asset Rebalancing

"Asset Rebalancing" is the automatic reallocation of Contract Value in the Sub-Accounts to a predetermined percentage. Requests for Asset Rebalancing must be on a Universal Life-approved form.

Asset Rebalancing occurs monthly, quarterly, semi-annually, or annually, or any frequency permitted by Universal Life. If the last day of the period falls on a Saturday, Sunday, recognized holiday, or any other day when the New York Stock Exchange is closed, Asset Rebalancing will occur on the next business day. Each Asset Rebalancing reallocation is considered a transfer event and counts towards the twenty (20) free transfers each calendar year (or 11 transfers in 2 consecutive calendar quarters). Contract Owners should consult a financial adviser to discuss the use of Asset Rebalancing. Universal Life reserves the right to suspend or discontinue offering the Asset Rebalancing program. Universal Life does not guarantee that this program will result in profit or protect Contract Owners from loss.

Dollar Cost Averaging

"Dollar Cost Averaging" is a transfer program that allows you to make regular, level investments over time. It involves the automatic transfer of a specified amount or percentage from certain Sub-Accounts into other Sub-Accounts. Universal Life does not guarantee that this program will result in profit or protect Contract Owners from loss.

Contract Owners direct Universal Life to automatically transfer specified amounts or percentages between Sub-Accounts. Transfers occur monthly or on another frequency if permitted by Universal Life. Dollar Cost Averaging transfers are not considered transfer events and do not count towards the quarterly and annual transfer event limits previously discussed. Universal Life will process transfers until either the value in the originating Investment Option is exhausted, or the Contract Owner instructs Universal Life in writing to stop the transfers.

Universal Life reserves the right to suspend or discontinue offering a Dollar Cost Averaging program Universal Life does not guarantee that this program will result in profit or protect Contract Owners from loss.

Systematic Withdrawals

The Contract Owner may elect, on a form provided by Universal Life, to take systematic withdrawals of \$100 or more on a monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual basis. Universal Life will process the withdrawals on a pro-rata basis from each Sub-Account of the Variable Account unless instructed otherwise. Systematic withdrawals may be subject to surrender charges, taxes, and tax penalties if the withdrawal is taken before the age of 59½.

Unless the Contract Owner has made an irrevocable election of withdrawals of substantially equal periodic payments, the systematic withdrawals may be modified at any time by written notification to Universal Life. Universal Life may discontinue prospective systematic withdrawal programs.



Management of the Variable Account

The management of the Variable Account's business and affairs is under the supervision of the Board of Directors of Fortune V Separate Account (the "Board"). A majority of the members of the Board are non-interested persons of Universal Life as defined in Section 2(a)(19) of the 1940 Act.

Universal Financial Services (UFS), located at Metro Office Park, Street 1, Lot 10, 3rd Floor, serves as the investment adviser contracted by Fortune V Separate Account to oversee the operations and investment management of the Sub-Accounts, to choose different investment alternatives for the Variable Account, and to oversee and review the investment objectives and policies and investment performance of each Sub-Account. UFS is a registered investment adviser and an affiliate of Universal Life (Universal Financial Services and Universal Life are both wholly owned subsidiaries of Universal Group, Inc.). UFS has approximately \$374 million in assets under management as of December 31, 2023.

A discussion regarding the basis for the Board approving the investment advisory agreement of the Variable Account is available in the Variable Account's semi-annual report to shareholders, for the period ending on May 17, 2023. Pursuant to such investment advisory agreement UFS charges a fee to the Sub-Accounts of 0.35% of the value of the assets of the Sub-Accounts.

The portfolio managers of UFS oversee the Portfolio Construction Managers and compliance with the investment objectives and policies of each Investment Option. The portfolio managers of Universal Financial Services are:

- Jose C. Benitez Ulmer President of Universal Life Insurance Company and Universal Financial Services (2006). Previously, Senior Account Manager, Manulife Financial.
- Nancy I. Martínez-Rivera As of August 15th, 2022, assumed the role as Compliance Director for Universal Life Insurance Company, Chief Compliance Officer of Universal Financial Services. Previously, served as Principal Operations Officer for Citi International Financial Services, LLC.

The Fortune V Separate Account has selected Morningstar Investment Management, LLC^1 (Morningstar) as the Portfolio Construction Manager to serve as asset allocation consultant in connection with the management of the Sub-Accounts with the exception of the Money Market Portfolio. Morningstar serves as a Portfolio Construction Manager and, as such, provides asset allocation and underlying fund selection services.

Morningstar is a registered investment adviser and wholly owned subsidiary of Morningstar, Inc. Morningstar has approximately \$52.6 billion in assets under management as of December 31, 2023.

The Portfolio Construction Managers for the Fortune V Separate Account are:

- Michael Stout is a portfolio manager for Morningstar Investments Management LLC and a member of the Asset Allocation Committee. He focuses on
 asset-allocation strategies employing mutual funds and ETFs, and co-manages two mutual funds at the firm. Mike was an original member of the
 Morningstar Investment Management Group's predecessor organization in 1998.
- Dominic Pappalardo is a Senior Portfolio Manager for Morningstar Investment Management LLC. Mr. Pappalardo has oversight responsibilities for managing the Institutional Solutions Group, which delivers customized solutions for institutional and third-party platform clients. Prior to joining Morningstar in 2020, he spent 19 years working in all aspects of fixed income portfolio management at McDonnell Investment Management, an affiliate of Natixis Investment Managers.

¹ Morningstar Investment Management, LLC serves as a Portfolio Construction Manager and, as such, provides asset allocation and underlying fund selection services. Neither Morningstar, Inc., nor Morningstar Investment Management, LLC endorses the portfolio managers or sub-advisers of the underlying mutual funds. Morningstar Investment Management, LLC fund selections for each Sub-Account are selected from among those funds offered by the Variable Account. Morningstar Investment Management, LLC strongly encourages you to obtain and review the prospectuses of the underlying mutual funds prior to making an investment decision.

³⁹

The Asset Allocation Portfolios (The five Sub-Accounts other than the Money Market Portfolio) pay the Portfolio Construction Manager a fee at the annual rate of 0.10% of the value of the assets of the applicable Sub-Accounts. The SAI provides additional information about the portfolio managers' compensation, other accounts managed by the portfolio managers, and the portfolio managers' ownership of securities in the Variable Account.

A discussion regarding the basis for the Board approving the Asset Allocation Management Agreement between Morningstar and the Adviser is available in the Variable Account's semi-annual report to shareholders, for the period ending on June 30, 2023.

Portfolio Construction Process

The portfolio construction process begins with the essential investment goals and risk expectations for each portfolio. The Portfolio Construction Manager follows an investment approach that it believes will meet those goals and expectations. Asset allocation and broad diversification are key principles embedded in the portfolio construction. The Portfolio Construction Manager also aims to select underlying funds managed by talented investment managers, and endeavors to combine them in a way so that certain investment managers' styles complement those of other investment managers.

The experienced investment professionals of the Portfolio Construction Manager oversee the entire process, working to understand the investment objectives, tailoring an asset allocation targeted to the portfolios' expected performance profiles, selecting investment managers that work well in combination with one another, and monitoring the portfolios of the Sub-Accounts on an ongoing basis.

Asset Allocation

Asset allocation within the portfolios is based on the Portfolio Construction Manager's judgment regarding the balance between appropriate diversification and relative value among the various asset classes represented in the portfolios. The Portfolio Construction Manager regularly gauges the relative value of the different asset classes, as well as their fundamentals and valuation-implied expected returns over the medium term. While the portfolios will normally be broadly diversified across asset classes and investment styles, the Portfolio Construction Manager will often overweight and underweight asset classes based on relative value. The Portfolio Construction Manager's asset-allocation decisions are informed through the research conducted by its global team of investment professionals. In-depth research into the various asset classes, by teams specializing in those asset classes, also factor into the inputs of an asset-allocation valuation tool the Portfolio Construction Manager uses to help us surface investment ideas. Based on fundamental inputs coming from its broader asset-class research, that tool outputs estimated fair values and estimated "valuation-implied returns" ("VIRs") for some 200 equity and 150 fixed-income asset classes. These estimates assume a 10-year timeframe for valuation and profitability levels to revert to normal levels (they also incorporate various other fundamentals). Likewise, the return estimates are for a 10-year period. These return estimates (VIRs) are theoretical in nature, and are not taken at face value. Instead, the Portfolio Construction Manager focuses on the relativities among the VIRs, and how they've shifted over time, to highlight whether any particular asset classes are looking noticeably more or less attractive than others, or noticeably more or less attractive than usual, based on this particular metric. The Portfolio Construction Manager incorporates that information into its decisions about where to prioritize its fundamental research at different points in time. The VIR framework is not a quantitative system that drives investing decisions. Instead, it is an idea-generation tool-among other idea sources-that helps the Portfolio Construction Manager identify potential opportunities for further research and analysis. Ultimately, all portfolio decisions are made qualitatively by the portfolio managers, based on fundamental asset-class research conducted by the Portfolio Construction Manager's worldwide team of analysts and portfolio managers.

Selecting Investments

The Portfolio Construction Manager selects underlying funds from the mutual-fund platform maintained by Transamerica Asset Management ("TAM"). A list of the mutual funds currently included in that platform is available in <u>Appendix B</u>: Additional Information About the Investment Options. TAM often solicits the input of the Portfolio Construction Manager when adding and removing funds from its platform, but TAM ultimately makes the final decision on the platform's makeup. Portfolio managers are evaluated not just on performance and managerial skill, but on their stylistic characteristics relative to other managers on the platform and their typical performance patterns relative to the other managers. The ultimate goal is to own a mix of funds that are both good-performing members of their categories and a good fit with other funds in the portfolio.

Ongoing Monitoring: Ensuring that the Sub-Accounts Remain on Track

The Portfolio Construction Manager continually monitors the Sub-Accounts' portfolio characteristics, risks, and performance behavior, and continually evaluates the underlying mutual funds owned in the portfolios. The Portfolio Construction Manager monitors the portfolios' asset-class weightings and fund exposures on a daily basis, comparing the actual allocations to the desired allocations. The Portfolio Construction Manager rebalances and/or reallocates the portfolios, as it deems necessary; it also allocates daily cash inflows and outflows in a way that helps keep the portfolios near their desired asset-class mixes.

Voting Rights

Contract Owners have certain voting rights with respect to the Fortune V Separate Account. In certain circumstances, Contract Owners may possibly have the opportunity to vote with respect to (1) the election of the Variable Account's Board of Directors, (2) the investment advisory and investment sub-advisory contracts for the Variable Account's Sub-Accounts, (3) the appointment of the independent auditor for the Variable Account, (3) certain changes in fundamental investment policies, and (4) certain other matters, such as important changes in the Rule 12b-1 Distribution Financing Plan and the Rule 18f-3 Multi-Class Plan. However, it is not anticipated that there will be annual or other regular opportunities for Contract Owners to elect directors or vote on any other matters; there is no plan or intention to ever have a vote of Contract Owners unless a vote is required by the Investment Company Act of 1940 or SEC regulations thereunder (or other applicable law). If there is a vote of Contract Owners, each Contract Owner's number of votes will be based on their Contract Value.

Charges and Deductions

Surrender Charge (Contingent Deferred Sales Charge)

A charge is deducted for certain 'early' surrenders and partial withdrawals of Contract Value. This surrender charge (Contingent Deferred Sales Charge, or "CDSC") is based on the number of years that have elapsed since each purchase payment being withdrawn, and depends on the Class of Contract that you selected at issue. The surrender charge is calculated by multiplying the applicable surrender charge percentage (noted below) by the amount of premium payments withdrawn or surrendered. For purposes of calculating the surrender charge, withdrawals are considered to come first from the oldest premium payment made to the Contract, then the next oldest premium payment, and so forth ("First In; First Out"). Earnings on surrendered or withdrawn purchase payments are not considered until all purchase payments are withdrawn.

The following are the surrender charge percentages:

| B Share Universal VIA CDSC Schedule | | | | | | | | | |
|---|----|----|----|----|----|----|----|----|----|
| Years Since Premium Payment | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | 9 |
| Percentage of Premium Payment Withdrawn | 8% | 8% | 7% | 6% | 5% | 4% | 3% | 2% | 1% |

| L Share Universal VIA w/ Liquidity Rider CDSC Schedule | | | | | | | |
|--|----|----|----|----|--|--|--|
| Years Since Premium Payment | 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | | | |
| Percentage of Premium Payment Withdrawn | 8% | 8% | 7% | 6% | | | |

| C Share Universal VIA Select CDSC Schedule | | | | | |
|--|-----|--|--|--|--|
| Years Since Premium Payment | ALL | | | | |
| Percentage of Premium Payment Withdrawn | 0% | | | | |

Please note that since the surrender charge is a percentage of the applicable premium, it can be more than the specified percentage of the amount withdrawn. For example, if you purchase a B or L share Contract with a single premium payment of \$10,000, and negative investment performance reduces the Contract Value to \$7,000 in the first year and you completely surrender the Contract at that time, the surrender charge would be \$800 (8% of the \$10,000 premium payment surrendered).

Allocation of Surrender Charge: The CDSC is allocated in accordance by instructions provided by the contract owner. The Contract Owner may elect, on a form provided by Universal Life, to take systematic Surrenders of \$100 or more on a monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or annual basis. Universal Life will process the Surrenders on a pro-rata basis from each Sub-Account of the Variable Account unless instructed otherwise.

CDSC Waivers and Reductions. Universal Life will waive or reduce the surrender charge for the following surrenders or partial withdrawals:

 <u>CDSC Free Partial Withdrawal Amount ("Free Amount")</u> – Each Contract Year (beginning with the Date of Issue) you may withdraw, without a surrender charge, an amount equal to the greater of (a) 15% of the net difference between the purchase payments still subject to the surrender charge, less purchase payments that have been withdrawn and that were subject to the surrender charge, or (b) the amount required to meet minimum distribution requirements under the US Internal Revenue Code. This is known as the Free Amount.

The CDSC Free Partial Withdrawal privilege is non-cumulative, meaning that any part of the Free Amount not taken in a given year cannot be carried over and added to the available Free Amount in any subsequent years.

The Free Amount only applies to partial withdrawals; if the Contract is surrendered, the surrender charge will apply to all purchase payments surrendered. For this purpose, (a) withdrawal of 90% or more of the Contract Value is deemed to be a surrender; and (b) a withdrawal of the entire Surrender Value in multiple partial withdrawals in any one Contract Year is deemed to be a surrender. The Free Amount does not apply to these surrenders.

- <u>Death Benefit Payments</u> A surrender charge is not charged on payment of the Death Benefit if the annuitant dies before the Annuitization Date. However, if the Contract is continued and purchase payments are made after the death of the Annuitant, then a surrender charge will apply to those purchase payments.
- 3. <u>Annuity Payments</u> A surrender charge is not applied to amounts applied to an annuity payment option.
- 4. <u>Certain Contract Exchanges</u> Universal Life may decide not to charge a surrender charge if the Contract is surrendered in exchange for another annuity contract issued by Universal Life or one of its affiliated insurance companies. Please note that a surrender charge may apply to the new contract received in exchange. Universal Life may reduce the surrender charge on the Contract if another contract issued by Universal Life or one of its affiliates is exchanged for the Contract.
- 5. <u>Long-Term Care</u> A surrender charge will not be charged if the Contract Owner (or Annuitant if the Contract Owner is not a natural person) is confined to a Long Term Care Facility or Hospital (both as defined in the Contract) for a continuous period of 90 days or more at any time after the third Contract Anniversary. If there is a Joint Owner, a surrender charge will not be charged if either Joint Owner meets the preceding requirements. A request to waive a surrender charge under this provision must be received while the Owner or Annuitant is confined to the Long Term Care Facility or within 90 days after confinement ends.
- 6. <u>Terminal Illness</u> A surrender charge will not be charged if the Contract Owner (or a Joint Owner or Annuitant if the Contract Owner is not a natural person) is diagnosed by a physician (who is not a party to the Contract nor an immediate family member of a party to the Contract) with a Terminal Illness at any time after the Date of Issue. To be considered a "Terminal Illness," death must be expected within 12 months of the diagnosis.

Variable Account Charge

The Variable Account Charge compensates Universal Life for administrative and distribution expenses, as well as expenses associated with issuing, distributing, and maintaining the Contracts, and also for assuming certain administrative, expense, and mortality and insurance risks in connection with the Contract. Universal Life also intends to profit from this charge.

The Variable Account Charge is a percentage of the Contract Value and varies according to the Contract Class you choose. On an annualized basis, the Variable Account Charge is as follows:

| Contract Class | Variable Account Charge | Surrender Charge Period |
|---|-------------------------|-------------------------|
| Universal VIA – Class B | 1.40% | 9 years |
| Universal VIA w/Liquidity Rider – Class L | 1.75% | 4 years |
| Universal VIA Select – Class C | 1.95% | No surrender charge |

As indicated above, the higher Variable Account Charges correspond to a shorter surrender charge period. The Universal VIA (Class B) Contract has a nine year surrender charge period and a 1.40% Variable Account Charge; The Universal VIA w/Liquidity Rider (Class L) Contract has a four year surrender charge period and a 1.75% Variable Account Charge; and the Universal VIA Select (Class C) Contract has no surrender charge and a 1.95% Variable Account Charge.

The Contract type or class must be selected at issue (when you buy the Contract) and cannot be changed. Holding the Class L and Class C share Contracts for an extended period will cost more than holding the Class B Contracts, and the higher cost of the L share and C share Contracts does not stop at the end of the surrender charge period, but continues as long as you own the Contract (before you begin receiving annuity payments).



Universal Life deducts this charge from the Variable Account each business day based on the value of the Variable Account assets. If the Variable Account Charge is insufficient to cover actual expenses (including annuity payments and Death Benefits), the loss is borne by Universal Life. Universal Life expects to profit from this charge.

For Contracts sold before November 1st, 2011, the Variable Account Charge for the Universal VIA – Class B Contracts was 1.65%, instead of the current 1.40%.

The Fortune V "Rule 12b-1 Plan"

As explained above, in the Fortune V Separate Account, the L Share and C Share Classes, as compared to the base B Share Class, have shorter surrender charge periods and higher Variable Account Charges.

The higher Variable Account Charges for the L share and C share Contracts (the amount by which the 1.75% and 1.95% Variable Account Charges exceed the 1.40% charge) come out of the Variable Account's assets and compensate the Company for the lower revenue expected to be derived from the surrender charge. Amounts derived from the Variable Account Charges become part of the company's general assets, and the Company uses its assets to pay expenses associated with the distribution of the Contracts (including marketing expenses, commissions and other compensation paid to dealers, prospectus preparation and delivery, etc.). Therefore, some or all of the higher Variable Account Charge may be deemed to be directly or indirectly financing sales or distribution activity out of the Variable Account's assets.

Accordingly, the amount of the Variable Account Charge for the L Share and C Share Contracts that exceeds the base Variable Account Charge for the B Share Contracts might be viewed as using Variable Account assets to finance distribution of the Contracts. This could result in the Account being deemed to be acting as a distributor of the Contracts in violation of Rule 12b-1 under the 1940 Act, unless the Variable Account adopts a "Plan" pursuant to Rule 12b-1.

Therefore, in 2021 the Fortune V Separate Account adopted a "Rule 12b-1 Plan," to ensure compliance with Section 12(b) of the Investment Company Act of 1940. The Rule 12b-1 Plan does not increase, decrease, or otherwise change any of the fees and charges deducted under the Contracts or from the Variable Account; and the Plan does not add to, delete from, or otherwise change the services provided to the Variable Account by the Company or by Universal Financial Services, Inc. ("UFS," the investment adviser contracted to manage the Sub-Accounts and the distributor or principal underwriter of the Contracts). The Plan authorizes and approves the current charges and all related activity of the Company and UFS. The Plan does not change the rights or benefits of Contract Owners; the Plan merely reflects the on-going operations of the Variable Account and the current terms and provisions of the Contracts. The Plan does not amend, revise, or alter the Contracts in any way. Additional information regarding the Rule 12b-1 Plan is in the Statement of Additional Information.

Puerto Rico Tax Charge

Universal Life deducts on an annual basis from each Variable Account a Puerto Rico tax equal to 0.10% of the Net Asset Value of the Variable Account as of December 31 of each calendar year. This Puerto Rico tax is payable by Universal Life to the Puerto Rico Treasury Department pursuant to Section 1023.01 of the P.R. Code.

Investment Management and Portfolio Construction Manager Fees

As discussed above, all six Sub-Accounts pay UFS an annual investment management fee of 0.35% of the value of the assets of the Sub-Accounts. In addition, the five Asset Allocation Portfolios (the five Sub-Accounts other than the Money Market Portfolio) pay the Portfolio Construction Manager a fee at the annual rate of 0.10% of the value of the assets of the applicable Sub-Accounts.

Other Sub-Account Expenses

Each Sub-Account will also directly bear its own operating expenses. In addition, each Sub-Account also indirectly bears "Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses," which are the expenses of the underlying mutual funds in which the Sub-Account invests, as a percentage of Sub-Account net assets. For information regarding the level of these operating expenses and acquired fund fees and expenses, see "Fee Table," above.



Contract Maintenance Charge

Universal Life deducts a \$50 Contract Maintenance Charge on each Contract Anniversary and at the time of a surrender of the Contract. This charge compensates Universal Life for administrative expenses related to issuing and maintaining the Contract. The deduction of the Contract Maintenance Charge will be taken proportionately from each Sub-Account based on the value in each option as compared to the total Contract Value.

If the Contract Value is greater than or equal to \$100,000 on a Contract Anniversary, then this charge is waived for that year and all subsequent years. If the Contract is surrendered and the Contract Value at the time of surrender is greater than or equal to \$100,000 the charge is also waived.

Universal Life will not increase the Contract Maintenance Charge. Universal Life will not reduce or eliminate the Contract Maintenance Charge where it would be discriminatory or unlawful.

One-Year Enhanced Death Benefit Option

The Contract offers two Death Benefits. A Standard Death Benefit is provided by the Contract at no additional cost. For an additional charge at an annualized rate of 0.20% of the daily net assets of the Variable Account, the Contract Owner may elect the One-Year Enhanced Death Benefit Option. This option is only available to Contracts with Owners age 70 or younger on the Date of Issue. This option can only be elected at the time of application and will replace the standard Contract Death Benefit. Once elected, the optional Death Benefit may not be removed from the Contract. The charge associated with this option will be assessed only until Annuitization.

For Contract Owners that have elected this option, and which have made purchase payments of less than or equal to \$3,000,000, the Death Benefit will generally be the greatest of:

- (1) the Contract Value;
- (2) the total of all purchase payments, less an adjustment for amounts surrendered; or
- (3) The stepped-up Death Benefit value, which is the highest Contract Value on any Contract Anniversary prior to the Owner's 86th birthday, less an adjustment for amounts subsequently surrendered, plus purchase payments received after that Contract Anniversary.

Optional Living Benefit Rider Charges

Liquidity Rider

The fee for this rider is included as a part of the Contract Variable Account Charge. A rider fee equal to an effective annual rate of 0.35% of the daily Net Asset Value in the Variable Account is deducted in calculating the Accumulation Unit Values (increasing the Variable Account Charge from 1.40% to 1.75%). The rider fee is charged prior to Annuitization.

For Contracts sold between November 1st, 2011 and July 31st, 2013, the rider fee for the optional Liquidity Rider was 0.10% (instead of the current 0.35%).

Principal Protection Rider (no longer available for purchase)

A rider fee of 0.95% for **Option A Principal Protection 15** and 1.35% for **Option B Principal Protection 13**, as an annual percentage of the Guaranteed Future Value on rider anniversary, is deducted on each rider anniversary for the Guaranteed Future Value and upon rider termination.

There is a pro-rata deduction for any off-anniversary surrenders. Subject to market conditions, the Company may increase the rider fee percentage up to 1.00% more than the original fee, so that a rider fee of 1.95% would be deducted for Option A, and 2.35% would be deducted for Option B.



Income for Life Rider (no longer available)

For **Option A. Income for Life Conservative**, a rider fee of 1.15% is deducted on each rider anniversary as a percentage of the Total Withdrawal Base, and for **Option B. Income for Life Moderate**, a rider fee of 1.50% is deducted. There is a pro-rata deduction for any off-anniversary surrenders subject to market conditions. The Company reserves the right to increase the rider fee by 1.00%, to 2.15% and 2.50%, respectively.

The annual rider fee is based on the TWB on the rider anniversary immediately before any automatic step-up or growth is applied. A pro-rated rider fee assessed at Contract surrender is based on the TWB at the time of the surrender and the number of days since the prior rider anniversary. Subject to market conditions, Universal Life may increase the rider fee percentage up to 1.00% more than original fee. The rider fee will be for Contract life. The rider is revocable if the Company increases fee percentage by more than 0.75%.

The Contract; Purchases and Contract Value

The variable annuity contracts described herein are offered exclusively to Residents of Puerto Rico. For these purposes, a "Resident of Puerto Rico" is: (i) an individual (A) having his or her principal residence within the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico who has been a resident of Puerto Rico during a period that includes an entire taxable year, (B) who is a bona fide resident of Puerto Rico pursuant to Sections 933 and 937(a) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, and (C) a resident of Puerto Rico for purposes of the Puerto Rico Internal Revenue Code; and (ii) a non-business trust whose trustee, if an individual, has his or her principal residence in Puerto Rico and principal place of business are located within the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico, all of whose Beneficiaries have their principal residence in Puerto Rico and which is either a Qualified Trust or an Agent Trust (as defined herein under "Tax Considerations" in this Prospectus).

The Contract in General

The Contract described in this Prospectus is an individual flexible purchase payment deferred annuity contract, which, for purposes of the P.R. Code, as of the date of this Prospectus, shall be entitled to the deferral of taxation on the income earned in the Contract until it is distributed or deemed to be distributed.

The Contract described in this Prospectus is intended to provide benefits to individuals or to entities such as a trust as further described in this Prospectus. It is not intended to be used:

- by institutional investors;
- in connection with other Universal Life contracts that have the same Annuitant; or
- in connection with other Universal Life contracts that have different Annuitants, but the same Contract Owner.

Variable annuities are complex investment products with unique benefits and advantages that may be particularly useful in meeting long-term savings and retirement needs. There are costs and charges associated with these benefits and advantages – costs and charges that are different, or do not exist at all, within other investment products. *With help from financial consultants and advisers, investors are encouraged to compare and contrast the costs and benefits of the variable annuity described in this Prospectus against those of other investment products.*

This process of comparison and analysis should aid in determining whether the purchase of the Contract described in this Prospectus is consistent with your investment objectives, risk tolerance, investment time horizon, marital status, tax situation and other personal characteristics and needs.

The Contract described in this Prospectus is intended to provide certain specified benefits to the Contract Owner and his/her Beneficiaries. By providing these annuity benefits, Universal Life assumes certain risks. If Universal Life determines that the risks it intended to assume in issuing the Contract have been altered by misusing the Contract as described above, Universal Life reserves the right to take any action it deems necessary to reduce or eliminate the altered risk, including, but not limited to, rescinding the Contract and returning the Contract Value (less any applicable surrender charge). Universal Life also reserves the right to take any action it deems necessary to reduce or eliminate altered risk resulting from materially false, misleading, incomplete or otherwise deficient information provided by the Contract Owner.

If this Contract is purchased to replace another variable annuity, be aware that you might be subject to a new surrender charge schedule. In addition, the mortality tables used to determine the amount of annuity payments may be less favorable than those in the contract being replaced.

The Contract is offered to customers of various financial institutions and brokerage firms. No financial institution or brokerage firm is responsible for the guarantees under the Contract. Guarantees under the Contract are the sole responsibility of Universal Life.

In general, deferred variable annuities are long-term investments; they are not intended as short-term investments. Accordingly, Universal Life has designed the Contract to offer features, pricing, and Investment Options that encourage long-term ownership. It is very important that Contract Owners and prospective Contract Owners understand all the costs associated with owning a Contract, and if and how those costs change during the lifetime of the Contract. Contract and optional charges may not be the same in later Contract Years as they are in early Contract Years. The various Contract and optional benefit charges are assessed in order to compensate Universal Life for administrative services, distribution and operational expenses, and assumed actuarial risks associated with the Contract.



Right to Examine and Cancel ("Free Look")

Contract Owners have a fifteen calendar day right to review and examine the Contract. The Contract may be returned to Universal Life's home office for any reason within fifteen days of delivery from Universal Life's home office and Universal Life will refund the Contract Value. This is known as the Free Look Period. The refunded Contract Value will reflect the value of the underlying investments in the Contract, adjusted for any Contract charges, unless otherwise required by law. Please be advised that the purchase payments received by Universal Life during the Free Look Period will be invested in accordance with the instructions of the Contract Owner. If the Contract Owner decides to cancel during the Free Look Period, the value of the Contract will therefore depend on the value of the underlying investments in the Contract.

Minimum Initial and Subsequent Purchase Payments

The Contract is issued in consideration of the purchase payment(s) made by the Contract Owner. Purchase payments are accepted by Universal Life at its home office in San Juan, Puerto Rico. The minimum initial purchase payment is required on the Date of Issue (the effective day of the first purchase payment applied to the Contract) and must be at least \$10,000 for non-qualified Contracts and \$5,000 for IRA Contracts. The Contract Owner may satisfy the minimum initial purchase payment by making periodic purchase payments until the first Contract Anniversary (as long as minimums are achieved within the first year). Universal Life does not require any additional purchase payments after the minimum initial purchase payment has been satisfied and the Contract will not lapse or otherwise be cancelled for failure to make additional purchase payments. Universal Life accepts additional purchase payments of \$500 or more. If additional purchase payments are made via automated clearinghouse, the minimum subsequent purchase payment amount is reduced to \$100. Subsequent purchase payments will be subject to a new surrender charge schedule. Universal Life reserves the right to make an exception to this requirement.

Notwithstanding the preceding paragraph, total cumulative purchase payments under the Contract and any other annuity contract issued by Universal Life with the same Annuitant may not exceed \$1,000,000 (and will be returned to the Contract Owner), unless Universal Life agrees to accept purchase payments exceeding \$1,000,000. If any party to the Contract ceases to be a Puerto Rico Resident prior to the Annuitization Date, additional purchase payments to the Contract are not permitted and the Contract Owner is required to take the steps described in the "Parties to the Contract" section of this Contract. Purchase payment(s) are not permitted after the Annuitization Date.

There are no minimum account value requirements at this time as long as the initial payment requirement was met at the time of the issue of the contract.

Pricing

Initial purchase payments allocated to Sub-Accounts will be priced at the Accumulation Unit value determined no later than 2 business days after receipt of an order to purchase, if the application and all necessary information are complete. If the application is not complete, Universal Life may retain a purchase payment for up to 5 business days while attempting to complete any outstanding requirement. The purchase payment will be returned unless the prospective purchaser specifically allows Universal Life to hold the purchase payment until the application is completed.

Subsequent purchase payments allocated to Sub-Accounts will be priced at the next available Accumulation Unit value after the payment is received no later than two business days. Purchase payments will not be priced when the New York Stock Exchange is closed or on the following U.S.-recognized holidays:

New Year's Day

Good Friday

Memorial Day

- Martin Luther King, Jr. Day
- Juneteenth Independence Day
- Presidents' Day
- Labor Day Thanksgiving
 - Christmas
- 48

Universal Life also will not price purchase payments if:

- (1) trading on the New York Stock Exchange is restricted;
- (2) an emergency exists making disposal or valuation of securities held in the Variable Account impracticable;
- (3) the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, by order, permits a suspension or postponement for the protection of security holders.

Allocation of Purchase Payments

Universal Life allocates purchase payments to Sub-Accounts in accordance to the investment options selected on the time of application as instructed by the Contract Owner. Instructions must be received in order to proceed with issuing the Contract, if we do not receive instructions to allocate the investment options, the contract will not be issued until such information is complete. Under the investment structure, the Variable Account is divided into six Sub-Accounts among which the Contract Owners may allocate their purchase payments, subject to the terms and conditions in the Contract. The Sub-Accounts consist of segregated and separately-managed pools of assets of the Variable Account, and each is managed by Universal Financial Services as the investment adviser contracted by Universal Life to manage the Sub-Account.

The Sub-Accounts are available for investment only through the purchase of the Contract. Each Sub-Account has a generally defined investment strategy (*e.g.*, growth, moderate growth, moderate, conservative, money market and international growth investments). Amounts allocated to a Sub-Account by the Contract Owner will be used to purchase Accumulation Units, representing value units of the total investment of the Sub-Account. Certain transactions may be subject to conditions imposed by the underlying mutual funds, as well as those set forth in the Contract.

Determining the Contract Value

The Contract Value is the sum of the value of the amounts invested in the Sub-Accounts of the Variable Account. If charges are assessed against the whole Contract Value, Universal Life will deduct a proportionate amount from each Sub-Account based on current cash values.

The value of amounts invested in each Sub-Account is determined by multiplying the number of Accumulation Units in the Sub-Account by the Accumulation Unit value for each Sub-Account was initially set at \$10 per unit when the Sub-Account was established. The Accumulation Unit Value of each Sub-Account fluctuates with the investment performance of the corresponding investments and securities (*i.e.*, the mutual fund shares) held in the Sub-Account. Universal Life calculates the Accumulation Unit values (generally once each business day, at the close of regular trading on the New York Stock Exchange) based on the values of the shares of the underlying mutual funds (the Net Asset Value per share, or NAV) and taking into account changes in the fund's NAV and any dividends paid or distributed by the fund. The Accumulation Unit Values are also decreased by asset-based charges (*e.g.*, the Variable Account Charge, the additional charge for the Enhanced Death Benefit, the optional living benefits riders, and the investment management and portfolio construction manager fees) and by the Sub-Account's operating expenses (the "Other Expenses"). The Acquired Fund Fees and Expenses are reflected in the underlying funds' NAVs.

For each Contract, the number of Accumulation Units credited to the Contract in a Sub-Account (A) is increased by purchase payments and transfers allocated to the Sub-Account, and (b) is decreased by partial withdrawals and surrenders, transfers to other Sub-Accounts, and certain Contract charges (*e.g.*, the Contract Maintenance Charge and the Puerto Rico tax charge).

Though the number of Accumulation Units will not change as a result of investment experience, the value of an Accumulation Unit may increase or decrease from Valuation Period to Valuation Period, which is the period of time commencing at the close of a Valuation Date and ending at the close of business for the next succeeding Valuation Date.

The prospectuses for the underlying funds will explain the circumstances under which such funds will use fair value pricing and the effects of such pricing.



Type of Contract

The Contract described in this Prospectus allows for the deferral of taxation on the income earned in the Contract until it is distributed or deemed to be distributed.

The Contract is a Non-Qualified U.S. Contract for tax purposes under the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. A Non-Qualified U.S. Contract is a contract that does not qualify for certain tax benefits under the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, and which is not an U.S. IRA, a Roth IRA, a SEP IRA, a Simple IRA, or a Tax Sheltered Annuity.

IRA and Nondeductible IRA Contributions Limit

Several limitations will apply if you elect to qualify the Contract as an IRA or Nondeductible IRA. The applicable rules and limitations are provided by Section 1081.02 and Section 1081.03 of the P.R. Code. Universal Life intends to comply with all these requirements. The most significant limitations are;

- (i) Maximum Contributions the maximum contribution allowed to an IRA and Nondeductible IRA contract with a deduction during a taxable year is defined under Section 1033.15 of the P.R. Code (this will be the maximum allowed under this Contract). While contributions to an IRA are deductible, no deduction is allowed with respect to contributions to a Nondeductible IRA.
- (ii) Date of Contribution the last day that IRA and Nondeductible IRA contributions will be accepted for a taxable year will be the deadline for filing Puerto Rico income tax returns, including extensions.
- (iii) Maximum Age for Contribution contributions to an IRA can be made by individuals for a taxable year in which the individual reaches 75 years that receive income from employment, including self-employment. The age limitation does not apply to a Nondeductible IRA.
- (iv) IRA Early Distributions generally a distribution from your IRA will be included in your gross income. The amount includible in gross income is measured by the excess of the amount distributed over your tax basis in the Contract. A distribution from your IRA before age 60 will be subject to a penalty tax of 10% or 15% for contracts who choose prepayment of earnings under Law 77 and Section P.R. Code 1023.23. There will be no penalty tax if the distribution qualifies for any of the following exceptions: death, disability, unemployment, payment for dependent's college tuition, principal home purchase, repair to principal home due to damage caused by hurricane, fire, earthquakes, to avoid imminent foreclosure or incurring in default of the mortgage of principal residence, including refinancing, (up to the higher of one half of the fund deposited or \$20,000) as a result of job loss or substantial verifiable income reduction to provide for certain terminal illness expenses, for acquisitions of dependent computer up to \$1,200, (one every 6 years) to acquire certain renewable energy equipment (Up to \$20,000), (one every 10 years), for the payment of child support past due for a period of 6 months or more,, or rollover to a Nondeductible IRA. The 10% or 15% penalty will be withheld by Universal Life unless the owner provides enough proof that the distribution qualifies for the above exceptions. List of required documents can be found in the Universal VIA IRA Disclosure Statement.
- (v) IRA Distributions IRA distributions must begin on the taxable year in which the owner reaches age 75; or a period that commences no later than the year in which the owner reaches age 75 based on the life or the life expectancy of the owner or his/her spouse, or any period not extending beyond the life or the life expectancy of the owner or his/her spouse.
- (vi) Nondeductible IRA Distributions Earnings accumulated from a Nondeductible IRA will be exempt from taxes if the distribution is made after owner attains age 60. Early distributions from a Nondeductible IRA could be subject to the IRA early distribution penalties.

You should consult your tax counsel in relation with the rules and regulations applicable to an IRA or a Nondeductible IRA.

Distribution of the Contracts

The principal underwriter of the Contracts is Universal Financial Services, Inc. (UFS), Metro Office Park Street 1, Lot 10, Guaynabo PR 00969. UFS is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Universal Group, Inc., and a commonly controlled affiliate of Universal Life.

Universal Life pays commissions to the firms that sell the Contract. The maximum upfront commission payable on this Contract is 5.5% of the premium(s) paid. Note that the individual registered representatives typically receive only a portion of this amount; the remainder is retained by the selling firm. Instead of a premium-based commission, Universal Life may also pay an asset-based commission (sometimes referred to as "trails" or "residuals") or a combination of the two.

In addition to or partially in lieu of commissions, Universal Life may also pay the licensed firms a marketing allowance, which may be based on the firm's ability and demonstrated willingness to promote and market Universal Life's products. How any marketing allowance is spent is determined by the firm following FINRA Regulations, but generally will be used to finance firm activities that may contribute to the promotion and marketing of Universal Life's products.

Any person or firm that offers or sells the Contract must hold the appropriate insurance and securities agent and registered representative licenses issued by the Puerto Rico Commissioner of Insurance and/or the Puerto Rico Commissioner of Financial Institutions.

Transfers

Transfer Requests

Prior to Annuitization, transfers of the Contract's value among the Sub-Account Investment Options can be made by the Contract Owner a limited number of times per calendar year. Generally, Contract Owners may transfer Variable Account value among the Investment Options under your Contract at any time and in any amount, up to 20 times per calendar year, or 11 transfers in 2 consecutive calendar quarters, subject to certain additional limitations (see below). However, Universal Life can refuse, limit or otherwise restrict transfer requests or take any reasonable action it deems necessary to protect the Contract Owners from harmful trading practices that may negatively impact underlying Sub-Account performance or other Contract Owners.

Universal Life will accept Sub-Account transfer requests in writing, or over the telephone if advance authorization is provided by the Contract Owner. Universal Life will use reasonable procedures to confirm that instructions are genuine and will not be liable for following instructions that it reasonably determined to be genuine. All telephone calls will be recorded for quality and security purposes. Universal Life may withdraw the telephone privileges at any time.

Amounts transferred to the Sub-Accounts will receive the Accumulation Unit value next determined after the transfer request is received by Universal Life.

Transfer Restrictions

The Contract described in this Prospectus, the Sub-Accounts, and the underlying mutual funds are *not* designed to support active trading strategies that require frequent movement between or among Sub-Accounts (sometimes referred to as "market-timing" or "short-term trading"). A Contract Owner who intends to use an active trading strategy should consult his/her registered representative and request information on other variable annuity contracts that offer underlying mutual funds that are designed specifically to support active trading strategies.

Universal Life discourages (and will take action to deter) short-term trading in this Contract because the frequent movement between or among Sub-Accounts may negatively impact other investors in the Contract. Short-term trading can result in:

- the dilution of the value of the investors' interests in the underlying mutual fund;
- underlying mutual fund managers taking actions that negatively impact performance (keeping a larger portion of the underlying mutual fund assets in cash or liquidating investments prematurely in order to support redemption requests); and/or
- increased administrative costs due to frequent purchases and redemptions.

To protect investors in this Contract from the negative impact of these practices, Universal Life has implemented, or reserves the right to implement, several processes and/or restrictions aimed at eliminating the negative impact of active trading strategies.

U.S. Mail Restrictions

Universal Life monitors transfer activity in order to identify those who may be engaged in harmful trading practices. Transaction reports are produced and examined. Generally, a Contract may appear on these reports if the Contract Owner (or a third party acting on his/her/its behalf) engages in a certain number of "transfer events" in a given period. A "transfer event" is any transfer, or combination of transfers, occurring on a given trading day (Valuation Period). For example, if a Contract Owner executes multiple Sub-Account transfers in one day, this counts as one transfer event. A single transfer occurring on a given trading day and involving only two Sub-Accounts will also count as one transfer event.

As a result of this monitoring process, Universal Life may restrict the method of communication by which transfer orders will be accepted. In general, Universal Life will adhere to the following guidelines:

| Trading Behavior | Universal Life's Response |
|--|--|
| 6 or more transfer events in one calendar | Universal Life will mail a letter to the Contract Owner notifying them that: |
| quarter | (1) they have been identified as engaging in harmful trading practices; and |
| | (2) if their transfer events exceed 11 in 2 consecutive calendar quarters or 20 in one calendar year, the Contract Owner will be limited to submitting transfer requests via U.S. mail. |
| More than 11 transfer events in 2 consecutive calendar quarters OR More than 20 transfer events in one calendar year | Universal Life will automatically limit the Contract Owner to submitting transfer requests via U.S. mail. |

Each January 1st, Universal Life will start the monitoring, so that each Contract starts with 0 (zero) transfer events each January 1. See, however, the "Other Restrictions" provision below.

Managers of Multiple Contracts

Some investment advisers/representatives may manage the assets of multiple Universal Life contracts pursuant to trading authority granted or conveyed by multiple Contract Owners. These multi-contract advisers will generally be required by Universal Life to submit all transfer requests via U.S. mail.

Other Restrictions

Universal Life reserves the right to refuse or limit transfer requests, or take any other action it deems necessary, in order to protect Contract Owners, Annuitants, and Beneficiaries from the negative investment results that may result from short-term trading or other harmful investment practices employed by some Contract Owners (or third parties acting on their behalf). In particular, trading strategies designed to avoid or take advantage of Universal Life's monitoring procedures (and other measures aimed at curbing harmful trading practices) that are nevertheless determined by Universal Life to constitute harmful trading practices, may be restricted.

Any restrictions that Universal Life implements will be applied consistently and uniformly.

Surrenders and Partial Withdrawals

Surrenders and Partial Withdrawals Prior to Annuitization

Prior to Annuitization and before the Annuitant's death, Contract Owners may withdraw some or surrender all of their Contract Value. Requests must be in writing and Universal Life may require additional information. When taking a surrender, the Contract must accompany the written request. Universal Life may require a signature guarantee.

Universal Life will pay any amounts withdrawn from the Sub-Accounts within seven days. However, Universal Life may suspend or postpone payment when it is unable to value the Variable Account (Sub-Account) assets or price a purchase payment or transfer.

Partial Withdrawals

If a Contract Owner requests a partial withdrawal, Universal Life will redeem Accumulation Units from the applicable Sub-Accounts. The amount withdrawa from each Investment Option will be in proportion to the value in each option at the time of the partial withdrawal request (unless otherwise requested and agreed to). There is no minimum amount that a contract owner can request to withdraw.

Partial withdrawals are subject to the surrender charge provisions of the Contract. If a surrender charge is assessed, the Contract Owner may elect to have the surrender charge deducted from either:

- (a) the amount requested; or
- (b) the Contract Value remaining after the Contract Owner has received the amount requested.

If the Contract Owner does not make a specific election, any applicable surrender charge will be deducted from the amount requested by the Contract Owner.

The surrender charge deducted is a percentage of the premium payment withdrawn by the Contract Owner. Amounts deducted for surrender charges are not themselves subject to surrender charges.

Partial withdrawals will reduce the Contract Value and Death Benefit, and may reduce the Death Benefit by an amount more than the dollar amount withdrawn.

Surrenders

Upon surrender, the Contract Value may be more or less than the total of all purchase payments made to the Contract. The Contract Value will reflect:

- the investment performance of the underlying mutual funds;
- the underlying mutual fund charges; and
- all of the Annual Expenses listed in the Fee Table, and the \$50 Contract Maintenance Charge if applicable.

Surrenders are subject to the surrender charge provisions of the Contract. The CDSC Free Partial Withdrawal Privilege does not apply to surrenders of the Contract. For purposes of the CDSC Free Partial Withdrawal Privilege, a surrender is:

- multiple partial withdrawals taken within a one-year period that deplete the entire Contract Value; or
- any single withdrawal of 90% or more of the Contract Value.

Upon surrender, the Contract, and all benefits, rights and privileges under your Contract terminate.



Surrenders Required by the U.S. Internal Revenue Code

Certain surrenders may be required by the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. For purposes of this section, "surrender" may also be referred to as a "distribution" or a "required distribution."

In no case may surrender be delayed beyond the time specified by United States Internal Revenue Code Section 72(s).

If any Contract Owner or Joint Owner dies (including an Annuitant who becomes the Contract Owner of the Contract on the Annuitization Date), certain distributions are required by Section 72(s) of the United States Internal Revenue Code. The following distributions will be made in accordance with these requirements (regardless of any other provisions in the Contract):

- (1) If any Contract Owner dies on or after the Annuity Commencement Date and before the entire interest under the Contract has been distributed, then the remaining portion of such interest shall be distributed at least as rapidly as under the method of distribution in effect as of the date of such Contract Owner's death.
- (2) If any Contract Owner dies before the Annuity Commencement Date, then the entire interest in the Contract (consisting of either the Death Benefit or the Contract Value reduced by certain charges as set forth elsewhere in the Contract) shall be distributed within 5 years of the death of the deceased Contract Owner, provided however:
 - (a) If any portion of such interest is payable to or for the benefit of a natural person who is a surviving Contract Owner, Joint Owner, Annuitant, Beneficiary, or Contingent Beneficiary as the case may be (each a "Designated Beneficiary"), such portion may, at the election of the Designated Beneficiary, be distributed over the life of such Designated Beneficiary, or over a period not extending beyond the life expectancy of such Designated Beneficiary, provided that payments begin within one year of the date of the deceased Contract Owner's death (or such longer period as may be permitted by federal income tax regulations). Life expectancy and the amount of each payment will be determined as prescribed by federal income tax regulations.
 - (b) In the event that the Contract Owner is not a natural person (e.g., a trust), then, for purposes of these distribution provisions, (i) the death of the Annuitant shall be treated as the death of any Contract Owner, (ii) any change of the Annuitant shall be treated as the death of any Contract Owner, and (iii) in either case the appropriate distribution required under these distribution rules shall be made upon such death or change, as the case may be. The Annuitant is the primary Annuitant as defined in Section 72(s) (6) (B) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code.

These distribution provisions shall only be applicable to an annuity contract that is subject to the provisions of Section 72(s) of the United States Internal Revenue Code by reason of Section 72(s) (5) or any other law or rule.

Additional Tax Information

It is intended that the Contract be treated as an "annuity contract" for federal income tax purposes. Universal Life will interpret and administer all sections of the Contract in accordance with United States Internal Revenue Code Section 72(s). Universal Life reserves the right to amend this Contract to comply with requirements set out in the U.S. Internal Revenue Code and regulations and rulings there under, as they may exist from time to time.

Surrenders are calculated by use of the expected return multiples specified in Tables V and VI of Section 1.72-9 of the U.S. Treasury Regulations and calculated in accordance with the calculation methods made available by Universal Life, prescribed by such regulations and elected by the Contract Owner.

Under the P.R. Code, surrenders for Non-Qualified Contracts prior to Annuitization are treated as non-taxable return of principal until the principal is fully recovered; thereafter, all partial withdrawals will be taxable as ordinary income. Surrenders after Annuitization are treated as part taxable income and part nontaxable return of principal. The amount excluded from gross income after Annuitization is equal to the amount of the surrender in excess of 3% of the total purchase payments paid, until an amount equal to the total purchase payments paid has been excluded; thereafter, the entire surrender is included in gross income. Puerto Rico does not impose an early withdrawal penalty tax on Non-Qualified Contracts. Generally, Puerto Rico does not require income tax to be withheld from Distributions of Income to Puerto Rico Residents except for IRA distributions prior to age 60 which do not qualify for a penalty exception.

Surrenders and Partial Withdrawals After Annuitization

After the Annuitization Date, surrenders and partial withdrawals other than regularly scheduled annuity payments are not permitted.

Ownership and Interests in the Contract

Contract Owner

Prior to the Annuitization Date, the Contract Owner has all rights under the Contract, unless a Joint Owner is named. If a Joint Owner is named, each Joint Owner has all rights under the Contract. *Purchasers who name someone other than themselves as the Contract Owner will have no rights under the Contract.* On the Annuitization Date, the Annuitant becomes the Contract Owner.

Contract Owners may name a new Contract Owner at any time before the Annuitization Date. Any change of Contract Owner automatically revokes any prior Contract Owner designation. Changes in Contract ownership may result in Puerto Rico income taxation and other taxes.

As described below, additional parties listed in the Contract may be entitled to certain rights, but only under specific conditions, as described in the Contract. Any designation by the Contract Owner of a Beneficiary, Annuitant, and Contingent Beneficiary must be made in accordance with the applicable requirements of Puerto Rico laws.

Puerto Rico Residents

The Contracts to be issued through the Variable Account may be offered, sold or transferred exclusively to Residents of Puerto Rico. All parties to the Contract (not including Beneficiaries and Contingent Beneficiaries, which are not parties to the Contract), must be Residents of Puerto Rico on the Date of Issue. Whether an individual is a Resident of Puerto Rico depends on the facts and circumstances of each individual, which may change from year to year. Universal Life suggests to each investor to seek advice from its counsel to assess if the investor is a Resident of Puerto Rico.

If any party ceases to be a Resident of Puerto Rico at any time prior to Annuitization, you must notify Universal Life no later than thirty (30) days after such change in residency occurred.

If the Contract has been annuitized and the Annuitant (then the Contract Owner) ceases to be a Resident of Puerto Rico, the Contract Owner is required to notify Universal Life of the change in residency no later than thirty (30) days after such change occurred. Annuity payments by Universal Life after such change in residency may be subject to withholding tax under applicable Puerto Rico tax laws.

Joint Owner

Joint Owners each own an undivided interest in the Contract. A Joint Owner may be named only in accordance with Puerto Rico law.

Generally, the exercise of any ownership rights under the Contract must be in writing and signed by both Joint Owners. However, if a written election, signed by both Contract Owners, authorizing Universal Life to allow the exercise of ownership rights independently by either Joint Owner is submitted, Universal Life will permit Joint Owners to act independently. If such an authorization is submitted, Universal Life will not be liable for any loss, liability, cost, or expense for acting in accordance with the instructions of either Joint Owner.

If either Joint Owner dies before the Annuitization Date, the Death Benefit is payable.

Annuitant

The Annuitant is the person who will receive annuity payments and upon whose continuation of life and annuity payment involving life contingencies depends. This person must be age 85 or younger at the time of Contract issuance, unless Universal Life approves a request for an Annuitant of greater age.

The Contract Owner, if an individual may name someone other than himself/herself as the Annuitant, and if an entity, must name a living entity as the Annuitant. The Contract Owner may not name a new Annuitant without Universal Life's consent. The designation of an Annuitant must be made by the Contract Owner in accordance with the applicable requirements of Puerto Rico estate laws.

Co-Annuitant or Joint Annuitant

If permitted by law, the person designated by the Contract Owner to be the recipient of certain rights or benefits under the Contract if the Annuitant dies before the Annuitization Date. In such a case, the designation must be made by the Contract Owner in accordance with the applicable requirements of Puerto Rico laws.

Beneficiary and Contingent Beneficiary

The Beneficiary is the person who is entitled to the Death Benefit if the owner dies before the Annuitization Date and there is no Joint Owner. The Contract Owner can name more than one Beneficiary. Multiple Beneficiaries will share the Death Benefit equally, unless otherwise specified. The designation of a Beneficiary or Contingent Beneficiary must be made by the Contract Owner in accordance with the applicable requirements of Puerto Rico laws, including estate laws.

A Contingent Beneficiary will succeed to the rights of the Beneficiary if no Beneficiary is alive when a Death Benefit is paid. The Contract Owner can name more than one Contingent Beneficiary. Multiple Contingent Beneficiaries will share the Death Benefit equally, unless otherwise specified.

Changes to the Parties to the Contract

Prior to the Annuitization Date (and subject to any existing assignments), the Contract Owner may request to change the following (provided that any new party to the Contract must be a Puerto Rico Resident):

- Contract Owner
- Joint Owner
- Annuitant (subject to Universal Life's underwriting and approval)
- Beneficiary
- Contingent Beneficiary

As is the case with certain of the initial designations of various Contract parties, the change of such Contract parties by the Contract Owner must be made in accordance with the applicable requirements of Puerto Rico laws.

The Contract Owner must submit the request to Universal Life in writing before the Annuitization Date. Once Universal Life receives and records the change request, the change will be effective as of the date the written request was received in good order, whether or not the Contract Owner or Annuitant is living at the time it was recorded. The change will not affect any action taken by Universal Life before the change was recorded.

In addition to the above requirements, any request to change the Contract Owner must be signed by the existing Contract Owner and the person designated as the new Contract Owner. Universal Life may require a signature guarantee.

Universal Life reserves the right to reject any change request that would alter the nature of the risk that Universal Life assumed when it originally issued the Contract.



Assignment

A Collateral Assignment is when the ownership rights in a Contract or account are transferred from one person to another to serve as collateral for a debt. This transfer is usually made with the provision that the ownership rights revert to the original owner when the debt is repaid. A Collateral Assignment of a nonqualified annuity is considered a taxable event to the Owner of the Contract. Contract rights are personal to the Contract Owner and may not be assigned without Universal Life's written consent. A Collateral Assignment of Contract Form must be completed and signed by the Assignor and Assignee in order for the Assignment to be effective. Universal Life reserves the right to refuse to recognize assignments that alter the nature of the risks that Universal Life assumed when it originally issued the Contract. A Contract Owner may assign some or all rights under the Contract. Assignment is recorded by Universal Life's home office, the assignment will become effective. If you elect to qualify the Contract as an IRA or Nondeductible IRA, you will not be able to assign the Contract under any circumstances.

Universal Life is not responsible for the validity or tax consequences of any assignment. Universal Life is not liable for any payment or settlement made before the assignment is recorded. Assignments will not be recorded until Universal Life receives sufficient direction from the Contract Owner and the assignee regarding the proper allocation of contract rights.

Amounts pledged or assigned may be treated as distributions and will be included in gross income to the extent that the cash value exceeds the investment in the Contract for the taxable year in which it was pledged or assigned.

Assignment of the entire Contract Value may cause the portion of the Collateral Assignment exceeding the purchase payments in the Contract and previously taxed amounts to be included in gross income for Puerto Rico income tax purposes each year that the assignment is in effect.

Annuity Period

Annuity Commencement Date

The Annuity Commencement Date is the date on which annuity payments are scheduled to begin. The Contract Owner could designate the Annuity Commencement Date at the time of application. If no Annuity Commencement Date is designated at the time of application, Universal Life will establish the Annuity Commencement Date as the date the Annuitant reaches age 90.

The Contract Owner may change the Annuity Commencement Date before Annuitization. This change must be in writing and approved by Universal Life. The Annuity Commencement Date may not be later than the first day of the first calendar month after the Annuitant's 90th birthday unless approved by Universal Life.

Annuitizing the Contract

Annuitization Date

The Annuitization Date is the date that Universal Life calculates the schedule of annuity payments and begins the processing necessary to start annuity payments. The date that annuity payments actually begin varies, but generally is within 30 days after Universal Life calculates the annuity payment schedule. The Annuitization Date will be the first day of a calendar month unless otherwise agreed. The Annuitization Date must be at least 2 years after the Contract is issued, but may not be later than either:

- the age (or date) specified in your Contract; or
- the age (or date) specified by law.

The U.S. Internal Revenue Code may require that distributions be made prior to the Annuity Starting Date specified above (see Required Distributions).

Annuitization

Annuitization is the period during which annuity payments are received. once Annuitization is chosen, the full Contract Value is transferred from the Variable Account to the general account of Universal Life. An annuitization form must be completed and signed by the owner of the Contract. Annuitization is irrevocable once payments have begun. All future payments will be made to the annuitant based on the selected annuitization option.

Fixed Annuity Payments

The Contract provides for fixed annuity payments (*i.e.*, level annuity payments). Universal Life guarantees that each fixed annuity payment will be the same throughout Annuitization, except as provided in the Income of a Specified Amount annuity payment option

Frequency and Amount of Annuity Payments

Annuity payments are based on the annuity payment option elected.

If the net amount to be annuitized is less than \$2,000, Universal Life reserves the right to pay this amount in a lump sum instead of periodic annuity payments.

Universal Life reserves the right to change the frequency of payments if the amount of any payment becomes less than \$250. The payment frequency will be changed to an interval that will result in payments of at least \$250.



Annuity Payment Options

The Annuitant must elect an annuity payment option before the Annuitization Date. If the Annuitant fails to elect an annuity payment option, Universal Life will assume a Life Income with a 10-Year (or 120 months) Term annuity payment option. Once elected, the annuity payment option may not be changed. The annuity payment options available may be limited based on the Annuitant's age (and the joint Annuitant's age, if applicable) or requirements under the P.R. Code and other applicable laws.

If, at the Annuitization Date, the total of all purchase payments made to the Contract is less than or equal to \$2,000,000, the annuity payment options available are:

- Income for a Specified Period
- Life Income
- Income for a Specified Amount
- Standard Joint and Survivor

Fixed Income Option 1 – Income for a Specified Period

Period Certain Annuity Payments will use the mortality factors monthly installments broken down by the numbers of years payable for the Annuity Benefit. The guaranteed fixed income options are based on a guaranteed interest rate of 1.5% as defined in the Policy Form section "Fixed Annuity Payment Options".

The specified period may not exceed your life expectancy. No funds will remain at the end of the specified period. The minimum period for annuitization is five (5) years.

Fixed Income Option 2 – Life Income

You may choose between:

- (a) No Period Certain We will make level payments only during the Annuitant's lifetime.
- (b) 10 Years Certain We will make level payments for the longer of the Annuitant's lifetime or ten years.

The amount of the fixed payment is determined by multiplying each \$1,000 of Contract Value by the mortality factors included in the Annuitization tables for Life Annuity and Life Annuity with 10 Year Period Certain defined in the Policy Form section "Fixed Annuity Payment Options".

Please note that if the annuitant dies after the Annuitization start date, payments will cease after the date of death.

Fixed income options 2(a) is not available for Annuitant age(s) greater than 85.

Fixed Income Option 3 - Income of a Specified Amount

We will make payments for any specified amount you choose until the amount applied to this option, with interest, is exhausted. The duration of the payments may not exceed the Annuitant's life expectancy. This will be a series of level payments followed by a small final payment.

Fixed Income Option 4 - Joint and Survivor Annuity

No Period Certain – We will make payments during the joint lifetime of the Annuitant and a Joint Annuitant of your choosing. We will make payments based on youngest surviving owner. The amount of the fixed payment is determined by multiplying each \$1,000 of Contract Value by the mortality factors included in the annuitization tables for Joint & Survivor Annuity.

Income option 4 is not available for Annuitant age(s) greater than 85.



Any Other Option

Annuity payment options not set forth herein may be available. Any annuity payment option not set forth in this provision must be approved by Universal Life, at its discretion.

Adjusted Age

Payments under Fixed Income options 2 and 4 are determined based on the adjusted age of the Annuitant. Adjusted age adjusts your actual age downward, which results in smaller annuity payments to you than if your age were not adjusted. This adjusted age reduces the benefits under the Contract and could result in significantly lower annuity payments.

The adjusted age is the Annuitant's actual age on the Annuitant's nearest birthday, at the Annuity Commencement Date, adjusted as follows:

| Annuity Commencement Date | Adjusted Age |
|---------------------------|--------------------|
| Before 2010 | Actual Age |
| 2010 - 2019 | Actual Age minus 1 |
| 2020 - 2026 | Actual Age minus 2 |
| 2027 - 2033 | Actual Age minus 3 |
| 2034 - 2040 | Actual Age minus 4 |
| After 2040 | Determined by us |

Annuity Payment Options for Contracts with Total Purchase Payments Greater Than \$2,000,000

If, at the Annuitization Date, the total of all purchase payments made to the Contract is greater than \$2,000,000, Universal Life may limit the annuity payment option to the longer of:

- (1) a Fixed Life Annuity with a 10 Year Term Certain; or
- (2) a Fixed Life Annuity with a Term Certain to Age 95.

Additionally, Universal Life may limit the amount that may be annuitized on a single life to \$2,000,000. If the total amount to be annuitized is greater than \$2,000,000, then for the purpose of Annuitization only, Universal Life may permit additional Annuitants to be named.



Taxes

Tax Considerations

General

The following discussion summarizes the material Puerto Rico and United States federal tax considerations relating to the purchase, ownership and disposition of the Contract. This discussion does not intend to describe all the tax considerations that may be relevant to a particular person in light of that person's particular circumstances and does not describe any tax consequences arising under the laws of any state, locality or taxing jurisdiction other than Puerto Rico and the United States.

The discussion assumes that the Contract is an annuity and endowment contract for purposes of the P.R. Code, and an annuity contract for purposes of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. Universal Life will take all the necessary steps to ensure that the Contract is classified on a continued basis as an annuity and endowment contract for purposes of the P.R. Code, and an annuity contract for purposes of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. However, there is no assurance that such classification will not be challenged by the Puerto Rico Treasury Department or the U.S. Internal Revenue Service, and, if challenged, that Universal Life will prevail. If the Contract is not classified as an annuity and endowment contract for purposes of the P.R. Code, and as an annuity contract for purposes of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, the Owner of the Contract may be taxed currently on the earnings of his or her Contract, or may be considered the Owner of the underlying securities and taxed on its transfer by gift or death and on the earnings of the assets in the separate account underlying her or his Contract.

This discussion is based on the tax laws of Puerto Rico and the United States as in effect on the date of this Prospectus, as well as regulations, administrative pronouncements and judicial decisions available on or before such date and now in effect. All the foregoing is subject to change, which change could apply retroactively and could affect the continued validity of this summary. A prospective Owner of a Contract should be aware that Universal Life's opinion is not binding on the Puerto Rico Treasury Department, any municipality or agency of Puerto Rico, the United States Internal Revenue Service or the courts. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the opinions set forth herein, if challenged, would be sustained.

You should consult your own tax advisor as to the application to your particular situation of the tax considerations discussed in this Prospectus, as well as the application of any state, local, foreign or other tax.

This Contract is for sale to individuals who are Residents of Puerto Rico who intend to remain Residents of Puerto Rico prior to and during the Annuitization period.

The Contract is also for sale to trusts organized under the laws of Puerto Rico that: (i) form part of a qualified employees' retirement plan, all of the participants of which are Residents of Puerto Rico, that is exempt under Section 1081.01 of the P.R. Code and described under Section 1022(i)(1) of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended, (hereinafter a "Qualified Trust"), or (ii) a trust that: (A) constitutes a grantor trust for purposes of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code and the P.R. Code, (B) all grantors, fiduciaries, trustees, Beneficiaries and Contingent Beneficiaries of the trust are individuals who are Residents of Puerto Rico and intend to remain Residents of Puerto Rico prior to and during the Annuitization period, and (C) holds the Contract as an agent of one or more its grantors (hereinafter an "Agent Trust"). The tax considerations described herein are limited to those applicable to a Puerto Rico Resident, to a Qualified Trust, and to an Agent Trust. Please see "Glossary of Terms – Puerto Rico Resident or a Resident of Puerto Rico" for a discussion of the applicable requirements relating to residency in Puerto Rico.

Whether an individual is a Resident of Puerto Rico depends on the facts and circumstances of each individual, which may change from year to year. Similarly, whether a trust is a Qualified Trust or an Agent Trust depends on the facts and circumstances of each trust, and may change from time to time. Each individual and trust should seek advice from its own tax counsel to assess if he or she is a Resident of Puerto Rico, or the trust is a Qualified Trust, or an Agent Trust.

Puerto Rico Taxation

Puerto Rico Income Tax Consequences

Universal Life obtained rulings from the Puerto Rico Secretary of the Treasury regarding the proper classification of the Contract under the P.R. Code (the "PR Tax Rulings"). The PR Tax Rulings were issued under the Puerto Rico Internal Revenue Code of 1994, as amended. Pursuant to Section 6091.04 of the P.R. Code, the PR Tax Rulings shall continue in effect to the extent issued under identical wording of law. This section on Puerto Rico Taxation follows the PR Tax Rulings to the extent issued under wording of law identical to the P.R. Code.

Individuals

A Puerto Rico Resident is generally subject to income taxes under the P.R. Code on its gross income from all sources. The P.R. Code provides for certain exclusions and exemptions.

Distributions from the Contract

Under the terms of the PR Tax Rulings the Contract will be classified as an annuity and as an endowment contract for purposes of the P.R. Code. For purposes of the P.R. Code, investments held by the separate account under the Contract will be considered as owned and shall constitute assets of Universal Life. Consequently, current accumulations of the earnings held in the separate account under the Contract will be taxable to Universal Life to the extent provided by the P.R. Code. The Contract Owner or its Beneficiary will be taxed on the accumulations of earnings under the Contract in the taxable year in which such earnings are considered to have been distributed under certain special rules of the P.R. Code.

For purposes of the P.R. Code, an "annuity" is generally defined as any amount, based on a computation with reference to life expectancy or mortality tables and payable over a period longer than one year, received in periodical installments, whether annually, semiannually, quarterly, monthly, or otherwise. Amounts distributed under the Contract as annuities for a taxable year should be included in the Annuitant's gross income as ordinary income, except that any portion of the annual amount distributed in excess of three percent (3%) of the aggregate amount of the premiums paid will be excluded from gross income. Such exclusion from gross income will not be available once the aggregate amount excluded from gross income with respect such distributions equals the total amount of the premiums paid (the "3% Rule"). The amount excluded under the 3% Rule is not subject to the Alternative Basic Tax. See "<u>Alternative Basic Tax</u>" below.

Partial payments not distributed as annuities are excludable from gross income up to the point where the amounts distributed equal the total amount of premiums paid. The amount so excluded is not subject to the Alternative Basic Tax. See "<u>Alternative Basic Tax</u>" below. Any distributions in excess of the total amount of the premiums paid will be taxable as ordinary income.

Global Payments

The PR Tax Rulings confirm the general rule that any gain realized upon a distribution in full redemption or surrender of the Contract shall be treated as ordinary income.

However, the P.R. Code provides an exception to the preceding general rule. Pursuant to Section 1023.08 of the P.R. Code, at the election of the taxpayer, amounts distributed under the Contract that must be included in gross income and qualify as a "Global Payment" may be treated as a long-term capital gain subject to the maximum fifteen percent (15%) income tax rate of Section 1023.02 of the P.R. Code. - For the fifteen percent (15%) income tax rate to be available the Contract Owner shall elect and agree in writing for the fifteen percent (15%) income tax to be withheld and remitted by Universal to the Puerto Rico Treasury Department. The term "Global Payment" is defined by Section 1023.08 of the P.R. Code and the PR Tax Rulings as amounts distributed during the same taxable year under the Contract. However, the PR Tax Rulings provide that such amount must be in full payment of the total balance payable under the Contract, and cancellation thereof. The long-term capital gain arising from a Global Payment is subject to the Alternative Basic Tax. See "<u>Alternative Basic Tax</u>" below.



Sale, Exchange or other Disposition of the Contract

Any sale or exchange of the Contract by the Contract Owner will be regarded as a sale or exchange under the P.R. Code that will give rise to ordinary gain or loss. Any loss generated will only be deductible if the Contract sold or exchanged has a refund feature (i.e., if the annuity guarantees some return of capital, or premiums paid, upon the death of the Annuitant). Recognition of gain or loss from the sale or exchange of the Contract may be subject to the exemptions and limitations discussed hereof.

Pursuant to P.R. Code Section 1034.04(b)(9) and the PR Tax Rulings no gain or loss should be recognized if a life, endowment or annuity insurance contract, including a contract **issued by an insurance company organized under the laws of P.R. or a State of the United States**, is exchanged for the Contract, or if total distributions from said **insurance** contracts are contributed to the Contract within the 60 days following the date of distribution. The PR Tax Rulings also provide that notwithstanding the non-recognition treatment on the exchange, any accrued income deferred as a consequence of the tax-free exchange will retain its character as ordinary income. Unless otherwise provided under regulations issued by the Puerto Rico Secretary of the Treasury, this non-recognition provision will not be available to the extent that such exchange or indirect transfer results in the transfer of property to a person that is a nonresident of Puerto Rico.

Pursuant to P.R. Code Sections 1023.20 and 1031.01(b)(13) **future** distributions under the Contract will be exempt from income taxation under the P.R. Code, including the Alternative Basic Tax (see "<u>Alternative Basic Tax</u>" below), if: (i) on or before April 30, 2015, an individual taxpayer exchanged a life, endowment or annuity insurance contract for the Contract, (ii) such exchange qualifies for non-recognition of gain or loss under P.R. Code Section 1034.04(b)(9) of the P.R. Code, related to tax free exchanges and transfers of life, endowment and annuity contracts **including insurance contracts issued by an insurance company organized under the laws of P.R. or a State of the United States**; (iii) a tax equal to ten percent (10%) of the accumulated earnings was paid to the Secretary of the Treasury on a date not after April 30, 2015; and, (iv) the Contract provided that no additional contribution or premium payments may be made after April 30, 2015.

Pursuant to the PR Tax **Rulings**, for income tax purposes under the **P.R.** Code (i) a gift of the Contract by the Contract **Owner** shall be treated as a sale or exchange of the Contract, (ii) the Contract will not be considered a capital asset and any gain or loss resulting from the exchange or sale of the Contract will be treated as ordinary income or loss, (iii) gain or loss should be recognized on a gift of the Contract based on the cash Surrender Value of the Contract as of the date of the gift, and (iv) no gain or loss shall be recognized by the decedent's estate or by his heirs as a result of the transfer of the Contract by reason of death of a Contract Owner.

The PR Tax **Rulings** also **provide** that, if upon death of the Contract **Owner**, the heir or Beneficiary of the Contract elects to receive a lump-sum payment under the Contract, he shall include in his gross income, **as ordinary income**, an amount equal to the excess of the amount received over the sum of (i) the adjusted basis **of the heir or Beneficiary** in the Contract, and (ii) any Death Benefit excludable from gross income.

However, any distribution considered a Global Payment under Section 1023.08 of the P.R. Code is includible in gross income as a long-term capital gain, and therefore, subject to the preferential 15% income tax rate, if so elected by the taxpayer. Such distribution may be subject to the Alternative Basic Tax. (See "<u>Global Payments</u>" above and "<u>Alternative Basic Tax</u>" below).

Pursuant to the PR Tax Rulings, if the heir or Beneficiary does not elect a lump sum distribution, the accumulated benefits will be taxable when distributed under the same income recognition rules that would have been applicable to the deceased Contract Owner, except that the heirs' tax basis on the Contract shall be as described below.

The basis of a Contract acquired from the decedent by bequest, devise or inheritance after December 31, 2017, shall be the same basis it had at the time of death in the hands of the decedent.

Life Insurance Benefits

Life insurance benefits are generally excluded from gross income under Section 1031.01(b)(1) of the P.R. Code and are not subject to the Alternative Basic Tax. See "Alternative Basic Tax" below. The PR Tax Rulings provide that any amounts paid or payable upon death of the Contract Owner that exceeds the higher of:

- i. the Surrender Value of the Contract as of the time of death, or
- ii. the premiums paid for or the cost of the Contract less amounts previously received by the Contract Owner that were excluded from gross income,

shall be treated as amounts received under a life insurance contract that shall be excluded from gross income pursuant to Section 1031.01(b)(1) of the P.R. Code. Provided, however, that these amounts should be specifically designated as death payments for which the deceased Contract Owner did not have a non-forfeitable right to receive the payments while living.

Qualified Trusts

Pursuant to Section 1081.01 of the P.R. Code, a Qualified Trust is generally exempt from income taxation on earnings accumulated or distributed under the Contract or on any income realized from the sale or exchange of the Contract. Whether a trust is a Qualified Trust depends on the facts and circumstances of each trust, which may change from year to year. In addition, the exemption under Section 1081.01 of the P.R. Code is subject to certain exceptions. Each fiduciary of a trust should seek advice from its tax counsel to assess if the trust is a Qualified Trust, and if the exemption allowable under Section 1081.01 of the P.R. Code with respect to the Contract will not fall within one of the exceptions provided by the P.R. Code.

Agent Trusts

The grantor of an Agent Trust will be subject to income tax under the P.R. Code as if he or she were the direct Owner of the Contract under the rules discussed above. A trustee or fiduciary should review its trust documents and consult its own tax advisors in order to determine if the trust is an Agent Trust.

Alternative Basic Tax

The alternative basic tax (the "ABT") provision of the P.R. Code applies to individuals having an ABT Net Income in excess of \$25,000. The ABT tax rates for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2018, are: one percent (1%) if ABT Net Income is greater than \$25,000 but not over \$50,000; three percent (3%) if ABT Net Income is over \$50,000 but not greater than \$75,000; five percent (5%) if ABT Net Income is over \$75,000 but not greater than \$150,000; ten percent (10%), if ABT Net Income is over \$150,000 but not over \$250,000; and twenty four percent (24%), if the ABT Net Income exceeds \$250,000. The ABT rates are not progressive. Once the taxpayer reaches the next level, all the ABT Net Income is subject to the higher ABT rate.

The ABT Net Income is the net taxable income subject to regular income tax, increased for certain items of otherwise exempt income, income subject to special tax rates, such as long-term capital gains and certain limitations on otherwise deductible items. An individual taxpayer subject to ABT shall pay the higher of the regular income tax or the ABT. Subject to certain limitations, the excess of the ABT over regular tax may be claimed as a credit in future taxable years, but only with respect to ABT paid in a year commencing before January 1, 2014 and taxable years commencing after December 31, 2018.

Puerto Rico Estate and Gift Tax Consequences

No estate of gift tax is imposed by the PR Code on transfers by reason of death, bequests or gifts occurring after December 31, 2017. Notwithstanding, these transfers are still subject to certain filing and other requirements.



Individual Retirement Annuity - Deductible and Nondeductible

This discussion pertains only to a Contract Owner who elects to acquire the Contract as an individual retirement annuity (the "IRA"), as defined by Section 1081.02 of the P.R. Code, or as a nondeductible individual retirement account as defined by Section 1081.03 of the P.R. Code (the "Nondeductible IRA"), and is limited to the Puerto Rico income tax consequences thereof. If such election is made the Contract will be subject to all the requirements and limitations discussed below, and to those applicable to a Contract that is not an IRA. This discussion does not take into consideration the effect of any election or prepayment of income taxes that the Contract Owner may have carried out pursuant to the P.R. Code or any predecessor act. The Contract Owners should consult their own tax advisor as to the income tax effect of such prepayment or elections.

A Contract Owner may close the IRA, without any penalties except for any fees, by providing a written cancellation notification to Universal Life within seven (7) business days following the opening of the IRA or Nondeductible IRA. Such cancellation notification should be mailed to Universal Life so that it is postmarked (or certified or registered, if sent by certified or registered mail) no later than such seven (7) business day period.

Individual Retirement Annuity - Deductible

The P.R. Code enables eligible individuals to make annual tax-deductible contributions to an IRA (the "IRA Contributions") in order to provide for their retirement. The total amount of the permissible annual IRA Contributions is deductible by the Contract Owner in computing his or her taxable income for Puerto Rico income tax purposes for the year with respect to which the IRA Contributions are made. All retirement planning should be done on a long-term basis. The P. R. Code imposes penalties and restrictions in order to discourage or prevent using IRA Contributions for other purposes other than retirement.

Eligibility

A Contract Owner is eligible to qualify his/her Contract as an IRA if he or she has not attained the age of 75 years in the taxable year for which is making the IRA Contribution, and receives salaries and compensation, which includes, among other things, wages, salaries, professional fees, income from occupations, salesman's commissions, tips or self-employment income. However, compensation does not include interest, dividends, rents, royalties, capital gains or other non-employment income. For married taxpayers filing a joint Puerto Rico income tax return, an IRA may be opened for each spouse, even if only one of the spouses receives qualified compensation.

Nontransferable and Non-forfeitable

A Contract Owner may not transfer ownership of his or her IRA without disqualifying it from tax-favored treatment, except to his or her former spouse as a result of a divorce decree or under a written instrument arising from a divorce. A Contract Owner has a fully vested interest in his or her IRA which is non-forfeitable.

Contributions and Deductions

The total permissible maximum annual contribution to an IRA is \$5,000 for a taxable year (or such maximum annual contribution as may be allowed in any future taxable year), or a Contract Owner's adjusted gross income received from salaries or the earnings attributed to professions or occupations, whichever is less. A married taxpayer who files a joint P.R. income tax return may contribute an additional \$5,000 for a taxable year (or such maximum annual contribution as may be allowed in any future taxable year) to a separate IRA established by or for such Contract Owner's spouse (even if said spouse derived no gross income from the above-mentioned sources) provided that their combined total contribution shall not exceed \$10,000 for a taxable year, or the combined adjusted gross income received from salaries or the earnings attributed to professions or occupations, whichever is less. Such contributions are tax deductible for Puerto Rico income tax purposes, subject to the following limitations:



- Excess IRA Contributions If a Contract Owner contributes to an IRA an amount in excess of the maximum amount permissible and, the excess is not
 returned (along with the amount of net income attributable to such excess contribution) by no later than the deadline for the filing of such Contract
 Owner's income tax return for the year with respect to which the excess IRA Contributions were made (including any applicable extension of the time
 for filing), the entire balance of such IRA will be deemed to have been distributed to such Contract Owner. The amount of an IRA treated as distributed
 will be subject to the "Distribution" and "Premature Distribution" rules described herein.
- No IRA Contributions Permitted in Taxable Year in which a Contract Owner Attains 75 Years of Age No IRA Contributions may be made to an IRA for the taxable year in which a Contract Owner attains 75 years of age or thereafter.
- Deadline for IRA Contributions IRA Contributions by a Contract Owner for a given taxable year must be made no later than the date prescribed by law for such Contract Owner to file his or her Puerto Rico income tax return for that year (including any applicable extension to the time for filing).
- Investments in Life Insurance Not Permitted That part of the IRA Contributions invested by the IRA in life insurance contracts shall not be deductible.

Distributions

The distribution to a Contract Owner of the entire balance accrued in an IRA must be made, or commenced to be made by, no later than the end of the year in which such Contract Owner reaches 75 years of age. Such distribution must occur at least at a minimum prescribed rate, as further described below.

- Tax Treatment upon Distributions Amounts distributed under the Contract shall be taxed under the rules applicable to a Contract that is not an IRA, except that the premiums paid for purposes of determining the cost to be recovered under the Contract shall be increased by the share of income distributed out of the Contract which is exempt from Puerto Rico income taxes. Premiums paid shall be excluded in the computation of cost to be recovered under the Contract.
- Distribution for Purchase or Construction of First Principal Residence Notwithstanding the preceding, the Puerto Rico income taxation on certain
 distributions from an IRA shall be deferred if a Contract Owner uses the amount distributed for the purchase or construction of such Contract Owner's
 first principal residence and complies with the applicable requirements of the P.R. Code and the regulations issued thereunder as provided in Section
 1081.02(d)(6) of the P.R Code.
- Form of Distributions The Contract Owner's total interest in an IRA must be distributed on or before the closing of the taxable year in which he or she attains 75 years of age, unless such total interest distributed in periodic payments in such taxable year over; (i) the life of such Contract Owner or the lives of such Contract Owner and his or her spouse, or (ii) during a period that shall not extend beyond the life expectancy of such Contract Owner or the joint life expectancy of such Contract Owner and his or her spouse. Accordingly, if a Contract Owner does not choose a method of distribution on or before the closing of the taxable year in which he or she attains 75 years of age, the entire balance of a Contract Owner's IRA will be distributed in a lump sum payment by the end of the taxable year in which he or she attains 75 years of age.
- Death of a Contract Owner Upon a Contract Owner's death, the entire balance of such Contract Owner's IRA must be distributed to such Contract Owner's Beneficiary or Beneficiaries within a period of five (5) years from the death of such Contract Owner. Notwithstanding this, if (i) a Contract Owner elected to receive distributions from such Contract Owner's IRA over a fixed term permitted by the P.R. Code and, (ii) such distributions have commenced, the distributions will continue as scheduled. The same rule applies at the death of the surviving spouse of a Contract Owner with respect to his or her Beneficiaries if distributions to the surviving spouse have commenced pursuant to Section 1081.02(b)(3) of the P.R Code.

Any distribution to a Contract Owner's Beneficiary, upon the death of such Contract Owner, is subject to Puerto Rico inheritance rules and other applicable laws and regulations.

• No Capital Gains Treatment - A lump sum distribution from a Contract Owner's IRA is not eligible for capital gains treatment for Puerto Rico income tax purposes. However, Contract Owners should consult their own tax counsel to determine if a lump sum distribution from a Contract Owner's IRA may qualify for the long-term capital gain treatment for Global Payment under Section 1023.08 of the P.R. Code.

Premature Distributions

Early Distribution Penalty - Distributions from a Contract Owner's IRA may be made at any time but any actual or deemed distribution to the Contract Owner for whose benefit such account was established, is made before such Contract Owner attains 60 years of age is generally subject to a ten percent (10%) penalty on the amount includable in gross income, or fifteen percent (15%) for Contracts Owner who elected prepayment of earnings under P.R. Code Section 1023.23, unless the distribution is on account of:

- i. Contract Owner's disability (as defined in the P.R. Code);
- ii. Contract Owner's unemployment;
- iii. the need of funds to cover the expenses of a Contract Owner's direct dependents in connection with their university studies;
- iv. the purchase or construction of a Contract Owner's first principal residence (subject to compliance with certain requirements of the P.R. Code);
- v. the repair or reconstruction of a Contract Owner's principal residence as a result of fire, hurricane, earthquake or other fortuitous cause;
- vi. the acquisition of a computer for a dependent of the Contract Owner within the second degree of consanguinity who is pursuing a university or lower level degree, up to an amount of \$1,200 and only once every six (6) years;
- vii. the treatment of severe, chronic, degenerative and terminal disease of a family member up to the fourth degree of consanguinity and second degree of affinity; or
- viii. the avoidance of the imminent foreclosure or delay in the mortgage payments, including refinancing, of the Contract Owner's principal residence due to loss of his employment or substantial reduction of income, up to the greater of fifty percent (50%) of the amount in the Contract or \$20,000 (subject to the submission of evidence of need, circumstances and uses).
- ix. up to the maximum amount of twenty thousand (20,000) dollars, for the purchase of an efficient and environmental friendly renewal energy system for the Contract Owner's residence, that is, every equipment or personal property, or combination of the same, that produces energy from renewable sources, such as, solar, wind, geothermical, oceanic, hydroelectric energy, or renewable fuels, without including fossil fuels. This withdrawal may be carried out once every ten (10) years.
- x. for the payment of child support past due of six month or more.

In addition, the Early Distribution Penalty shall not apply if the amount distributed is transferred by a Contract Owner to another IRA of such Contract Owner in a Rollover Contribution (as defined below) within 60 days of such Contract Owner's receipt of the distribution, or if the amount distributed may be excluded from gross income. Regulation Article 1081.02(g)-1(a) states that the Early Distribution Penalty shall be imposed on a distribution to the "individual for whose benefit the account was established". From this wording it can be reasonably interpreted that a distribution by reason of Beneficiary death should not subject to the penalty as the distribution is not one made to the deceased Beneficiary. This interpretation should be consulted with your tax counsel.

• Withholding of the Early Distribution Penalty - The ten percent (10%) or fifteen percent (15%) penalty will be withheld from a distribution unless a Contract Owner provides the required evidence to Universal Life that the distribution is exempt from the penalty.



Special Prepayment Election and Increased Early Distribution Penalty

Under P.R. Code Section 1023.23 an Owner of a Contract that qualifies as an IRA may elect to prepay a tax equal eight percent (8%) of the accumulated balance in the Contract that would be includable in gross income upon actual or deemed distribution. The prepayment must have been made on or before April 30, 2015. The prepayment shall have the effect of increasing Owner's tax basis in the Contract for an amount equal to the unrealized appreciation for which the special tax of eight percent (8%) was paid. The Early Penalty Distribution rate discussed above is increased from ten percent (10%) to fifteen percent (15%) with respect to a distribution from a Contract for which an election under P.R. Code Section 1023.23 was made or an amount rolled over from such Contract. In the computation of the amount of gross income subject to the penalty, the increase in tax basis attributable to the election under P.R. Code 1023.23 shall be ignored.

IRA May Not Be Used as Collateral

A Contract Owner's interest in an IRA or in assets held in such IRA may not be used as security for a loan, and any amount so utilized shall be deemed to have been distributed to such Contract Owner and may be subject to the ten percent (10%) or fifteen percent (15%) penalty for premature distributions described above.

No Policy Loans

If a Contract Owner borrows any sum of money under, or using said contract during any taxable year, the Contract shall cease to be an IRA as of the first day of said taxable year, and the Contract Owner shall include in his gross income for said year a sum equal to the fair market value of said policy on the first day of said year and may be subject to the ten percent (10%) or fifteen percent (15%) penalty for premature distributions described above.

Rollover Distribution

Amounts distributed from an IRA established by a Contract Owner or from a pension, profit-sharing or stock bonus plan described in Section 1081.01 of the P.R. Code (the "Qualified Plan") may be transferred to another IRA established by such Contract Owner, (these IRA Contributions being referred to as "Rollover Contributions") in an amount not greater than the maximum amount described above. A Rollover Contribution is, however, not tax-deductible for the year with respect to which such Rollover Contribution is made. If a Rollover Contribution is made by a Contract Owner who received the amount involved as a distribution from another IRA of such Contract Owner or a Qualified Plan, the transfer must be made not later than 60 days of the receipt of the distribution. If the transfer is made, but not on a timely basis, the transfer may well result in an excess IRA Contribution as referred to under the "Excess IRA Contributions" section above with the adverse consequences, which pertain to excess IRA Contributions. Only one transfer from one IRA to another IRA can be made in any one-year period ending on the date of receipt of the distribution being transferred.

The Contract Owner should consult his or her tax counsel since to the extent that the Contract is treated as an endowment contract for purposes of the P.R. Code a Rollover Contribution to the Contract may not be allowed.

An individual retirement account maintained under the United States Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, is generally not an IRA under the P.R. Code to or from which assets of a Puerto Rico IRA may be transferred.

Required Filings

A Contract Owner must report annually the IRA Contributions on such Contract Owner's Puerto Rico income tax return in order to qualify for the Puerto Rico income tax deduction and benefits of an IRA.

Taxation of the IRA

A Contract Owner is not subject to Puerto Rico income taxes on the income generated by the assets held in an IRA until a distribution is made or treated as made under the P.R. Code. An IRA may be subject to tax on its unrelated business income under P.R. Code Section 1102.01.



Nondeductible Individual Retirement Account

A Nondeductible IRA is an IRA that is designated as such when established, but to which certain special rules apply.

Contributions

No deduction will be allowed to the Contract Owner with respect to contributions to a Nondeductible IRA. In addition, the annual nondeductible contribution to a Nondeductible IRA; (i) must be made by the due date of the income tax return (including extensions) of the taxable year for which the contribution is made; (ii) is limited to the annual limitation amount applicable to a deductible IRA, but reduced by the amount of contributions for the taxable year made to all other IRAs (other than nondeductible IRAs) maintained for the benefit of the Contract Owner, and (iii) may be made after the Contract Owner has reached age 70 ½.

Distributions

A Qualified Distribution from a Nondeductible IRA may be excluded from the Contract Owner's gross income and, therefore, will not be subject to Puerto Rico income taxes. A Qualified Distribution is defined as a distribution that is; (i) made on or after the date on which the Contract Owner reaches the age of 60, (ii) made to a Beneficiary by reason of death of the Contract Owner, or (iii) a Premature Distribution not subject to the Early Distribution Penalty (see previous discussion of Premature Distributions). In addition, a Nondeductible IRA is not subject to the mandatory age distribution provision applicable to a Deductible IRA.

A distribution that is not a Qualified Distribution must be included in the gross income to the extent that it exceeds the basis of the Contract Owner in the Nondeductible IRA. Generally, for these purposes, the tax basis of the Contract Owner shall consist of the contributions to the nondeductible IRA, plus Qualified Rollovers (as defined below) and tax-exempt income earned thereon. A distribution that is not a Qualified Distribution may be subject to Premature Distribution penalty (See "Premature Distributions").

Rollover Contributions

A distribution may be rolled over to a Nondeductible IRA only if the rollover is a "Rollover". A Qualified Rollover is generally defined as: (i) a rollover from an IRA or another Nondeductible IRA to a Nondeductible IRA, provided that it meets the criteria applicable to rollovers to a Deductible IRA without taking in consideration the limitation related to rollover of distributions received within the preceding year (see above discussion Rollover Distributions); (ii) a rollover within the following 60 days of receiving the entire distribution from a retirement plan qualified under Section 1081.01 of the P.R. Code but only if such distribution is a total distribution within a single taxable year by reason of separation from service of the employee; and (iii) a rollover of the balance of the savings account of participants in the Retirement Saving Account Program created under Act 447 of 1951 but only if such rollover meets the requirements of Article 3-109(B)(5) of such Act 447.

Amounts distributed by a Deductible IRA or a retirement plan qualified under Section 1081.01 of the P.R. Code may not be excluded from gross income by reason of been rolled over into a Nondeductible IRA and shall generally be considered distributed and includible in Gross Income, as defined by Section 1082.03(d)(4)(A)(i). However, the penalty shall not apply to a Premature Distribution transferred to a Nondeductible IRA pursuant to a Qualified Rollover.

Collateral

A Contract Owner's interest in a Nondeductible IRA or in assets held in such IRA may not be used as security for a loan, and any amount so utilized shall be deemed to have been distributed to such Contract Owner and may be subject to the **Early Distribution Penalty For Premature Distributions** described above.

70

Taxation of Distributions by Reason of Disaster Declared by the Governor of Puerto Rico

Pursuant to Section 1081.02(d)(1) of the P.R. Code and subject the terms established by the Secretary in response to a disaster declaration by the Governor of Puerto Rico the first ten thousand (\$10,000) dollars paid or distributed to cover Eligible Expenses from a Deductible IRA's may be excluded from gross income, and any distribution in excess of the first ten thousand (\$10,000) dollars excluded from gross income but not exceeding one hundred thousand (\$100,000) dollars will be subject to a special tax of ten (10) percent, in lieu of any other tax, including the ABT. The amount distributed shall be determined on an aggregate basis considering all distributions from Deductible IRAs and qualified employees' retirement plans. For the special tax to apply the ten (10) percent tax, will be required to withheld at source. Under Section 1081.01(b)(1)(D)(vi)(II) the term "Eligible Expenses" is broadly defined as expenses, either ordinary or extraordinary, incurred by an individual, spouse, ascendants, and/or descendants, to compensate for any loss or damage, and/or to cover basic needs suffered as a result of natural disaster. The Secretary is authorized to establish by regulation, administrative determination, circular letter or information bulletin of general application the documents that the participant or beneficiary must submit in connection with a disaster distribution.

The above treatment is afforded under Section 1081.02(d)(1) of the P.R. Code. Section 1081.02(d)(5) provides that the treatment under Section 1081.02(d)(1) shall not apply to an individual retirement annuity. On the other hand, Section 1081.02(d)(1)(J)(v) includes insurance companies as entities that may be subject to the distribution procedures to be prescribed by the Secretary with respect to the above special treatment. You should consult your tax counsel in relation to the application of the above treatment to Contracts qualified as an individual retirement annuity under the P. R. Code.

71

United States Federal Income Taxes

Introduction

The Contract is designed for use for retirement income purposes by individuals who are bona fide residents of Puerto Rico pursuant to sections 933 and 937(a) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code and who, together with all other parties to the Contract, including beneficiaries, remain bona fide residents of Puerto Rico prior to and during the Annuitization period. Also, the Contract may be sold to certain Agent Trusts and Qualified Trusts (as previously explained). The discussion contained herein is general in nature and is not intended as tax advice. Thus, you are advised that any discussion of tax issues herein is not intended or written to be used as an opinion to avoid penalties imposed under the U.S. Internal Revenue Code.

Universal Life Insurance Company's Tax Status under the U.S. Internal Revenue Code

Universal Life is a life insurance company organized under the laws of and doing business in Puerto Rico. Universal Life's primary place of business is in Puerto Rico. Universal Life has obtained a legal opinion confirming that for purposes of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code Universal Life is not engaged in a trade or business in the United States. It is the intention of Universal Life not to enter into activities that may be construed as conducting a trade or business in the United States for purposes of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. The Variable Account and Sub-Accounts are not separate entities and for U.S. federal income tax purposes their operations are part of Universal Life.

Since Universal Life is a foreign corporation not engaged in a trade or business in the United States, and the Variable Accounts and Sub-Accounts are not separate entities, any fixed and determinable annual and periodical income from sources within the United States earned by Universal Life through the Variable Accounts and Sub-Accounts may be subject to U.S. withholding taxes. U.S. Source income that may be subject to tax includes, but is not limited to, interest that is not otherwise exempt (i.e., portfolio interest), and dividends on shares of stock of U.S. organized corporations that are held through the pools of assets or mutual funds in which these accounts invest. The US withholding tax rate on such interest and dividends is 30% and 10% respectively.

The economic consequences of such U.S. withholding taxes on the income of the Sub-Account are passed-through to the Contract Owner as a reduction in value of the Sub-Accounts and the Contract.

General Federal Income Tax Requirements for Annuities

Section 72 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code governs generally the taxation of annuities. While there is no one general definition of "annuity" in the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, the essential characteristic of an annuity contract is that it provides for the payment of periodic payments that amortize principal (i.e., amounts to be received as an annuity). For a contract to be treated as an annuity contract for federal income tax purposes, section 72(s) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, however, requires that the contract provide that distributions be made in accordance with the following rules:

- (1) If any Contract Owner dies on or after the Annuitization Date and before the entire interest in the contract has been distributed, then the remaining interest must be distributed at least as rapidly as the distribution method in effect on the Contract Owner's death.
- (2) If any Contract Owner dies before the Annuitization Date, then the entire interest in the contract (consisting of either the Death Benefit or the Contract Value reduced by charges set forth elsewhere in the contract) will be distributed within 5 years of the Contract Owner's death.

These above requirements will be satisfied as to any interest payable to or for the benefit of a Designated Beneficiary if it is distributed over the life of the Designated Beneficiary or over a period not longer than the life expectancy of the Designated Beneficiary. Payments must begin within one year of the Contract Owner's death unless otherwise permitted by U.S. income tax regulations. A Designated Beneficiary is the person designated by the Contract Owner as a Beneficiary and to whom ownership of the contract passes by reason of the death, and must be a natural person. Universal Life believes and has received a legal opinion that the Contract contains the requisite U.S. Internal Revenue Code section 72(s) provisions.



Furthermore, section 817(h) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code generally requires that a variable annuity contract that is based on a separate account be adequately diversified to be taxed as an annuity contract. The Internal Revenue Service has published regulations prescribing diversification standards to be met by nonqualified variable annuity contracts as a condition to being taxed as annuities under section 72 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. The standards provide that investments of a segregated asset account (or Sub-Account) are adequately diversified if no more than (1) 55% of the value of its assets is represented by any one investment, (2) 70% is represented by any two investments, (3) 80% is represented by any three investments, and (4) 90% is represented by any four investments. Without regard to whether the Contract is a "variable contract" within the meaning of section 817(d) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, Universal Life will administer the Variable Account so that the Sub-Accounts meet the U.S. Internal Revenue Code section 817(h) diversification standards imposed by the Internal Revenue Service.

In addition, a contract that purports to be an annuity contract has been held not to be an annuity for purposes of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, if the contract is part of an arrangement under which the Contract Owner is in substance the Owner of the investment assets underlying the purported annuity. In general, the position of the Internal Revenue Service as set forth in rulings is that the policy Owner is the direct Owner of the assets underlying the variable annuity contract if either: (i) the assets held in the separate account under the variable annuity are available to members of the general public; or (ii) the Contract Owner has the power to direct the custodian to sell, purchase, or exchange specific assets held under the annuity or has significant ownership rights as to warrant their direct ownership of the assets for tax purposes. Rev. Rul. 2003-91, 2003-2 C.B. 347; Rev. Rul. 2003-92, 2003-2 C.B. 350; Rev. Rul. 82-54, 1982-1 C.B. 11; Rev. Rul. 81-225, 1981-2 C.B. 12; Rev. Rul. 80-274, 1980-2 C.B. 27; and Rev. Rul. 77-85, 1977-1 C.B. 12. Universal Life believes that it is the legal Owner of the assets in the Variable Account and all the Sub-Accounts. Universal Life believes and has received a legal opinion that Universal Life will be treated as the Owner of the assets underlying the Contract for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Federal Income Taxation of Annuities Owned by Puerto Rico Residents

United States citizens are taxed on their world-wide income. Thus, under the general rules, United States citizens who are residents of Puerto Rico are subject to tax by the United States on income from all sources. However, section 933 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code provides that gross income from sources within Puerto Rico is exempt from United States federal income taxation, if the income is derived by bona fide resident of Puerto Rico pursuant to U.S. Internal Revenue Code section 937(a) and the regulations promulgated thereunder. Section 937(b) provides that rules similar to the rules for determining whether income is from sources within the United States should be used for purposes of determining whether income is from sources within Puerto Rico. However, U.S. Internal Revenue Code. Treas. Reg. § 1.937-2(c) (2) provides an anti-abuse rule that income shall be considered to be from sources with the United States if, pursuant to a plan or arrangement the income is received in exchange for consideration provided to another person and such person (or another person) provides the same consideration (or consideration of a like kind) to a third person in exchange for one or more payments constituting income from sources within the United States. The Contract is designed for purchase by individuals, who together with all the other parties to the Contract (including beneficiaries), are and remain bona fide residents of Puerto Rico prior to and during the Annuitization period; however, Universal Life makes no attempt to determine whether such individuals are bona fide residents of Puerto Rico, within the meaning of sections 933 and 937(a) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code.

Although there is no specific provision in the U.S. Internal Revenue Code that addresses the issue of whether income on a variable annuity contract issued by a foreign insurance company generates U.S. or foreign-source income, Rev. Rul. 2004-75, 2004-2 C.B. 109, adopts the place of incorporation of the insurance company issuing the contract to determine the source of the income. Under such interpretation, income under an annuity contract issued by a Puerto Rico company is Puerto Rico source income.

The Contract is intended to meet the requirements of an annuity contract for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Universal Life will interpret and administer the Contract in accordance with the requirements of the sections 72(s) and 817(h) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, and reserves the right to amend the Contract to comply with the requirements set out in the U.S. Internal Revenue Code and regulations and rulings thereunder, as they may exist from time to time. Universal Life has obtained a legal opinion that the Contract should be considered an annuity contract for federal income tax purposes and that Universal Life should be treated as the Owner of the investment assets in the Variable Account, that the income from the Contract should be treated as Puerto Rico source income, and that conduit arrangement anti-abuse rule is not likely to be applied to the Contract. Such opinions are based on the United States income tax laws as interpreted by the Internal Revenue Service at the time of the opinion, but the opinion provides no guarantee that the Internal Revenue Service will so conclude. Prospective purchasers of the Contract or Contract Owners planning to exercise an option under the Contract should consult their own tax advisers to determine the possible tax consequences applicable for their individual situations.

73

Transfers, Assignments, or Exchanges of a Contract

A transfer of ownership of the Contract, the designation of an Annuitant who is not also the Owner, or the exchange of the Contract may result in tax consequences to the Contract Owner. For example, a sale, exchange, or other disposition of the Contract may give rise to a gain or loss equal to the difference between the fair market value of the Contract and the adjusted tax basis of the Contract in the hands of the Owner. The gain derived from the sale, exchange or other disposition of the Contract by a Resident of Puerto Rico should constitute income from sources within Puerto Rico, and should not be includable in the gross income of the Resident of Puerto Rico pursuant to section 933 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. Limitations on a deduction of a loss may be imposed, such as for a loss allocable to or chargeable against amounts so excluded from gross income by the Resident of Puerto Rico's.

However, section 1035(a) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code provides generally that no gain or loss shall be recognized on the exchange of an annuity contract for an annuity contract. Whether or not an exchange for the Contract qualifies under this provision will depend on the character of the contract being exchanged and the manner in which the exchange is accomplished. In addition, U.S. Internal Revenue Code section 1035(c) provides that, "to the extent provided in regulations," section 1035(a) shall not apply to any exchange having the effect of transferring property to any person other than a United States person. No regulations have been issued to date to implement this provision. Accordingly, a Contract Owner contemplating any such transfer, assignment, or exchange should contact a competent tax adviser with respect to the potential tax effects of such a transaction.

Early Distribution Penalty

The U.S. Internal Revenue Code imposes a penalty of 10% if a distribution from an annuity contract is made before the Contract Owner reaches age 59½. Since the amount of the penalty is equal to 10% of the portion of any distribution from an annuity contract that is includable in gross income for federal income taxes, such penalty will not be imposed on a distribution from the Contract that is excludable from gross income by a Puerto Rico Resident under section 933 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code.

Agent Trusts

Generally, annuity contracts owned by non-natural persons (e.g., corporations, partnerships, <u>trusts</u>, and similar entities) are not treated as annuity contracts under section 72(u) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, and the income on the contract for any taxable year is taxed as ordinary income during such taxable year. These provisions do not apply to a Contract that is held by a trust or other entity <u>as an agent for</u> a natural person (i.e., an individual). Thus, if a trust holds the Contract for an <u>individual Beneficiary</u> of the trust, the consequences of ownership by a non-natural person may not apply.

To the extent an Agent Trust is a grantor trust for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the grantor of the Agent Trust may be deemed the direct owner of the Contract such that the Contract will not be treated as owned by a non-natural person. The grantor-owner of the Contract may be subject to United States federal income taxes under the rules described above for an individual Resident of Puerto Rico. But see U.S. Treas. Reg. section 1.937-1(b) (3) which provides that "juridical" persons (e.g., trusts) do not qualify for the provisions of section 933. A trustee or fiduciary should review its trust documents and consult its own tax advisers in order to determine if the trust is an Agent Trust.

Qualified Trusts

Section 72(u) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code might disqualify the Contract as an annuity contract in the hands of a Qualified Trust if the Trust qualifies as a U.S. person because it would not be a trust under a plan described in Section 401(a) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. Section 401(a) applies to trusts created or organized in the United States. However, assuming that a Qualified Trust is properly established under P.R. law, and that no U.S. court is able to exercise primary supervision over it and one or more U.S. persons do not have authority to control all substantial decisions of the trust (i.e., it is not a U.S. person under U.S. Internal Revenue Code section 7701(a) (30) (E) and (a) (31)), the Qualified Trust would not be subject to U.S. federal income tax. Whether a trust that is a Qualified Trust is a U.S. person for federal income taxes depends on the facts and circumstances of each trust, which may change from year to year. In any case, because a Qualified Trust is exempt from income taxation under Section 501 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, earnings accumulated or distributed under the Contract as well as any gain realized from the sale or exchange of the Contract should not be subject to income tax. Each fiduciary of a trust should seek advice from its tax counsel to assess if the trust is a Qualified Trust, and whether it might be a U.S. person.



Federal Estate and Gift Taxes

A Contract Owner who at the time of his death was a domicile of Puerto Rico and who acquired United States citizenship solely by reason of citizenship, birth or residence in Puerto Rico will be considered a *nonresident not a citizen of the United States* for purposes of the estate and gift taxes imposed under the U.S. Internal Revenue Code.

A *nonresident not citizen of the United States* is subject to United States federal estate taxes on the part of his estate that at the time of death is located in the United States. In absence of specific provisions under the U.S. Internal Revenue Code, the rule applicable to a debt obligation appears an adequate rule to determine the location of an annuity contract for federal estate tax purposes. Under these criteria, the Contract should be considered property situated outside the United States, and therefore, not includible in the taxable estate of a Contract Owner who at the time of death was domiciled in Puerto Rico and acquired United States citizenship solely by reason his birth or residence in Puerto Rico.

A donor who at the time of a gift of the Contract was domiciled in Puerto Rico and acquired his United States citizenship solely by reason his citizenship, birth or residence in Puerto Rico will be considered a *nonresident not a citizen of the United States* for purposes of the gift taxes imposed under the U.S. Internal Revenue Code. A *nonresident not citizen of the United States* is subject to United States federal gift taxes on the transfer by gift of certain tangible property located in the United States. Thus, a transfer by gift of the Contract is not subject to gift tax if the donor is domiciled in Puerto Rico and acquired United States citizenship, birth or residence in Puerto Rico.

A domicile of Puerto Rico is generally an individual who is a Resident of Puerto Rico with no definite present intention of living elsewhere. Thus, each individual should consult his or her tax counsel to assess if he or she is domiciled in Puerto Rico. In addition, an individual domiciled in Puerto Rico who acquired his U.S. citizenship by reason other than his citizenship, birth or residence in Puerto Rico should seek advice from his tax counsel since a Contracts held by these U.S. citizens may be subject to U.S. federal estate and gift taxes upon transfer of the Contract by reason of death or a gift.

Certain ERISA Considerations

A fiduciary of a pension, profit- sharing, retirement, or other employee benefit plan subject to Title I of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA") (each such plan, a "Plan"), should consider the fiduciary standards under ERISA in the context of the Plan's particular circumstances and consult with its counsel before authorizing an investment of such Plan's assets in a Contract.

Tax Changes

The foregoing tax information is based on our understanding of U.S. and Puerto Rico tax laws. It is NOT intended as tax advice. All information is subject to change without notice. Furthermore, the determination whether the Contract qualifies as an annuity and endowment contract under the P.R. Code and as an annuity under the U.S. Internal Revenue Code depends on Universal Life continued compliance with the applicable provisions of the P.R. Code and the U.S. Internal Revenue Code relating to the classification of a particular instrument as an annuity or endowment contract.

Statements and Reports

Universal Life will mail Contract Owners statements and reports. Therefore, Contract Owners should promptly notify Universal Life of any address change.

These mailings will contain:

- Statements showing the Contract's quarterly activity;
- Confirmation statements showing transactions that affect the Contract's value. Confirmation statements will not be sent for recurring transactions (i.e., Dollar Cost Averaging). Instead, confirmation of recurring transactions will appear in the Contract's quarterly statements;
- Annual and Semi-Annual Reports containing financial statements for the Variable Account and such other information as is required to be provided pursuant to the requirements of the 1940 Act.

Contract Owners should review statements and confirmations carefully. All errors or corrections must be reported to Universal Life immediately to assure proper crediting to the Contract.



Legal Proceedings

There are no pending legal proceedings that are likely to have a material adverse effect on Universal Life, Universal Financial Services or the Variable Account.

In 2017, the Company entered into a reinsurance agreement (the "Agreement") with PB Life and Annuity Co. Ltd. ("PBLA"), a member of the Global Growth family of companies that was founded and is ultimately owned by Greg Lindberg. Pursuant to the Agreement, PBLA agreed to reinsure liabilities with respect to certain fixed annuity contracts ("PBLA Annuity Contracts") sold by the Company (the reinsured contracts do not include the contracts described in this prospectus). The Agreement required PBLA to keep these assets invested in certain types of 'qualifying assets' in compliance with Puerto Rico law and other requirements. PBLA failed to do so. The Company, consequently, stopped ceding new business under the Agreement to PBLA and initiated contractual and other legal proceedings, including arbitration, to secure the amounts backing the statutory reserves for the PBLA Annuity Contracts.

To date, an arbitration panel ruled in the Company's favor, requiring that \$524 million be paid into a trust for the benefit of the Company. This arbitration award was confirmed by U.S. Courts. *See* PB Life & Annuity Co. v. Universal Life Ins. Co. (S.D.N.Y., July 30, 2020). In addition, the Company has obtained judgements against Mr. Lindberg, finding him legally responsible, in addition to PBLA, for the payment of the arbitration award. The Supreme Court of Bermuda appointed Deloitte LTD, Bermuda, as provisional receiver for the PBLA operations.

On August 30, 2022, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") filed a complaint in federal court in North Carolina charging Mr. Lindberg and others with defrauding clients in violation of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940. The Company is identified as one of PBLA's clients.

On September 19, 2022, the Durham County Superior Court ordered a mediation process among all parties in controversy, the Bermuda companies, the North Carolina rehabilitator and the Owner and his entities. Settlement discussions started on November 2, 2022 and continue to date. Notwithstanding, on December 30, 2022, the Company received a partial payment of \$25 million.

Subsequently, an agreement was reached with the Owner for which the economic benefits of preferred stocks, plus accrued preferred returns, of AAPC, currently held in an independent trust for approximately \$260 million, were assigned to the Company. By the end of September 2023, the Company received additional cash amounting to \$11.1M as part of the monetization efforts.

Management remains confident about a positive outcome derived from the combination of the disposition of assets in the trust, PBLA general account assets and its legal strategy to execute the guarantees provided under the reinsurance transaction. No impairment in the investment held by the Company is foreseen as of the date these financial statements are issued. Additional information on these matters continues to be included in the Notes to the Company's statutory basis financial statements.

76

Financial Statements

The statutory basis financial statements of Universal Life are included in Appendix F of the Statement of Additional Information. The financial statements of the Variable Account are incorporated herein by reference (https://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1864054/000182912624001376/fortune5_ncsr.htm) from the Variable Account's Annual Report on Form N-CSR for the year ending December 31, 2023. The statutory basis financial statements of Universal Life that are included in Appendix F are different from the financial statements of the Variable Account. The statutory basis financial statements of Universal Life should be considered only as bearing upon the ability of Universal Life to meet its obligations under the Contracts and should not be considered as bearing on the investment performance of the assets held in the Variable Account.

APPENDIX A

Investment Options Available Under the Contract

The following is a list of Investment Options available under the Contract. The current expenses and performance information below reflects Contract fees and expenses that are paid by each investor. Depending on the optional benefits you choose, you may not be able to invest in certain Investment Options.

Each Investment Option's past performance is not necessarily an indication of future performance.

| Type/ Investment Objective | Investment Option Adviser/Subadviser | Current Expenses ⁽¹⁾ "(excluding optional benefit expenses)" | Average Annual Total Returns ⁽¹⁾ (as of 12/31/23) | | |
|----------------------------------|--|--|---|--------|---------|
| | | | 1 year | 5 year | 10 year |
| Asset Allocation | Universal VIA Asset Allocation – <u>Growth Portfolio</u> | 2.97% | 15.97% | 8.97% | 6.33% |
| | Adviser: Universal Financial Services; Subadviser (Portfolio Construction Manager): Morningstar Investment Management LLC | | | | |
| Asset Allocation | Universal VIA Asset Allocation – Moderate Growth Portfolio | 2.72% | 13.38% | 6.96% | 5.20% |
| | Adviser: Universal Financial Services; Subadviser (Portfolio Construction Manager): Morningstar Investment Management LLC | | | | |
| Asset Allocation | Universal VIA Asset Allocation – Moderate Portfolio | 2.66% | 10.07% | 3.98% | 3.61% |
| | Adviser: Universal Financial Services; Subadviser (Portfolio Construction Manager): Morningstar Investment Management LLC | | | | |
| Asset Allocation | Universal VIA Asset Allocation – <u>Conservative Portfolio</u> | 2.70% | 9.13% | 2.69% | 2.71% |
| | Adviser: Universal Financial Services; Subadviser (Portfolio Construction Manager): Morningstar Investment Management LLC | | | | |
| Asset Allocation | Universal VIA Asset Allocation – International Growth Portfolio | 3.91% | 11.84% | 5.82% | 2.67% |
| | Adviser: Universal Financial Services; Subadviser (Portfolio Construction Manager): Morningstar Investment Management LLC | | | | |
| Money Market | Universal VIA – <u>Money Market Portfolio</u> | 3.82% | 4.76% | 1.68% | 0.97% |
| | Adviser: Universal Financial Services | | | | |

(1) These expenses and Total Returns are for the B Class of shares with a 1.40% Variable Account Charge and do not reflect the additional charge for the One-Year Enhanced Death Benefit Option.

Investment Restrictions

If you elected the Principal Protection rider or the Income for Life rider, which are both no longer available for purchase, your Contract is subject to investment restrictions which limit the available Investment Options. The available Investment Options for each benefit are listed below.

Moderate Portfolio

• Conservative Portfolio

• Money Market Portfolio

A-1

APPENDIX B

Additional Information About the Investment Options

List of Underlying Funds

The following lists contain the names of the underlying funds in which the Sub-Accounts may invest, as of the date hereof and it is subject to change from time to time. For a summary of the respective investment objectives and principal investment strategies, expenses and risks of each underlying fund, please refer to the information about such underlying fund which is contained in that underlying fund's prospectus, available at https://www.transamerica.com/investments-fund-center.

Growth Portfolio:

| Transamerica Capital Growth I2 | | | |
|---|--|--|--|
| Transamerica Emerging Market Opps I2 | | | |
| Transamerica Energy Infrastructure I2 | | | |
| Transamerica International Equity I2 | | | |
| Transamerica International Growth I2 | | | |
| Transamerica International Sm Cp Val I2 | | | |
| Transamerica International Stock I2 | | | |
| Transamerica Large Cap Value I2 | | | |
| Transamerica Mid Cap Growth I2 | | | |
| Transamerica Mid Cap Value Opps I2 | | | |
| Transamerica Small Cap Growth I2 | | | |
| Transamerica Small Cap Value I2 | | | |
| Transamerica Sustainable Equity Inc I2 | | | |
| Transamerica US Growth I2 | | | |

Moderate Growth Portfolio:

| Transamerica Bond I2 | | | | |
|---|--|--|--|--|
| Transamerica Capital Growth I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Core Bond I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Emerging Markets Debt I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Emerging Markets Opps I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Energy Infrastructure I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica High Yield Bond I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Inflation Opps I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica International Equity I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica International Growth I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica International Sm Cp Val I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica International Stock I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Large Cap Value I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Mid Cap Growth I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Mid Cap Value Opps I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Short-Term Bond I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Small Cap Growth I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Small Cap Value I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Sustainable Equity Inc I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica US Growth I2 | | | | |

Moderate Portfolio:

| Transamerica Bond I2 | | | | |
|---|--|--|--|--|
| Transamerica Capital Growth I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Core Bond I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Emerging Markets Debt I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Emerging Markets Opps I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Energy Infrastructure I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Inflation Opps I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica International Equity I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica International Growth I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica International Sm Cp Val I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica International Stock I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Large Cap Value I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Mid Cap Growth I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Mid Cap Value Opps I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Short-Term Bond I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Small Cap Growth I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Small Cap Value I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Sustainable Equity In I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica US Growth I2 | | | | |

Conservative Portfolio:

| Transamerica Bond I2 | | | | |
|---|--|--|--|--|
| Transamerica Capital Growth I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Core Bond I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Emerging Markets Debt I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Emerging Markets Opps I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Energy Infrastructure I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Inflation Opps I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica International Equity I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica International Growth I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica International Sm Cp Val I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica International Stock I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Large Cap Value I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Mid Cap Growth I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Mid Cap Value Opps I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Short-Term Bond I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Small Cap Growth I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Small Cap Value I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica Sustainable Equity Inc I2 | | | | |
| Transamerica US Growth I2 | | | | |

International Growth Portfolio:

| Transamerica Emerging Markets Opps I2 | |
|---|--|
| Transamerica International Equity I2 | |
| Transamerica International Growth I2 | |
| Transamerica International Sm Cp Val I2 | |
| Transamerica International Stock I2 | |

Money Market Portfolio:

Transamerica Government Money Market Fund I2

Risk Factors

The value of your purchase payments invested in the various Sub-Accounts in your Contract are not guaranteed and will increase and decrease according to the investment performance of the underlying mutual funds. You assume the investment risk of the purchase payments allocated to the various Sub-Accounts in your Contract. You should review the investment objectives of each Sub-Account carefully before allocating purchase payments to any Sub-Accounts.

Value of Investments in Underlying Mutual Funds

An investment in any of the Sub-Accounts carries with it certain risks, including the risk that the value of the investments in mutual funds through the Sub-Account, will decline and you could lose money. This could happen if the financial investment markets as a whole decline in value or if the investments made by a mutual fund held by a Sub-Account in which you have invested declines in value. You should review the prospectuses of the underlying mutual funds carefully and analyze the risk factors disclosed therein that are applicable to each Sub-Account. Some of such risks are as follows:

Equity Risk – Common stocks and other similar equity securities are the riskiest investments in a company and they fluctuate more in value than bonds. An underlying mutual fund could lose all of its investment in a company's stock.

Industry Concentration Risk – Certain underlying mutual funds may concentrate their investments in a given industry or business segment. Such concentration may increase such underlying mutual fund's costs or fluctuations in the value of its investment portfolio.

<u>Credit and Interest Rate Risks</u> – The underlying mutual funds may invest in bonds and other income-producing securities, such as preferred stock. These securities are subject to credit risk and interest rate risk. Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of a bond or other income-producing security will not make interest or principal payments when they are due. Even if an issuer does not default on a payment, a bond's value may decline if the market anticipates that the issuer has become less able or less willing, to make payments on time. Even high quality bonds are subject to some credit risk. However, credit risk is higher for lower quality bonds. The value of bonds generally can be expected to fall when interest rates rise. Interest rate risk is the risk that interest rates will raise, so that value of an underlying mutual fund's investments in bonds will fall. The impact of changes in the general level of interest rates on lower quality bonds may be greater than the impact on higher quality bonds.

Non-Diversification Risk – Certain underlying mutual funds may be non-diversified. Non-diversification risk is the risk that large positions in a small number of issuers may cause greater fluctuations on the underlying fund's Net Asset Value as a result of changes in the market's assessment of the financial condition of such issuers.

<u>Foreign Securities Risk</u> – Certain underlying mutual funds invest primarily in American Depositary Receipts ("ADRs") representing interest in foreign issuers. While ADRs are not necessarily denominated in the currencies of the foreign securities they represent, they are subject to many of the risks associated with foreign securities. Such risks can increase the chances that the applicable underlying mutual funds will lose money. These risks include difficulty in pricing securities, defaults on foreign government securities, difficulties enforcing favorable judgments in foreign courts and political and social instability. The issuers of unsponsored depositary receipts are not obligated to disclose material information in the United States. Therefore, there may be less information available regarding these issuers and there may not be a correlation between such information and the market value of the depositary receipts.

<u>Illiquid Securities</u> – Some of the underlying mutual funds may invest some of their funds in illiquid securities. Illiquid securities face the risk that they may not be readily sold, particularly at times when it is advisable to avoid losses.

Commodities – To the extent the portfolio invest in commodities or instruments whose performance is linked to the price of an underlying commodity or commodity index, the portfolio will be subject to the risks of investing in commodities, including regulatory, economic and political developments, weather events and natural disasters and market disruptions. The portfolio's investment exposure to the commodities markets may subject the portfolio to greater volatility than investments in more traditional securities, such as stocks and bonds. Commodities and commodity-linked investments may be less liquid than other investments. Commodity-linked investments are subject to the credit risks associated with the issuer, and their values may decline substantially if the issuer's creditworthiness deteriorates.

Counterparty – The portfolio will be subject to credit risk (that is, where changes in an issuer's financial strength or credit rating may affect an instrument's value) with respect to the amount it expects to receive from counterparties to derivatives, repurchase agreements and other financial contracts entered into by the portfolio or held by special purpose or structured vehicles. If counterparty becomes bankrupt or otherwise fails to perform its obligations due to financial difficulties, the value of your investment in the portfolio may decline. In addition, the fund may incur costs and may be hindered or delayed in enforcing its rights against a counterparty. These risks may be greater to the extent a fund has more contractual exposure to a counterparty.

Currency – The value of investments in securities denominated in foreign currencies increases or decreases as the rates of exchange between those currencies and the U.S. dollar change. Currency conversion costs and currency fluctuations could reduce or eliminate investment gains or add to investment losses. Currency exchange rates can be volatile, and are affected by factors such as general economic conditions, the actions of the U.S. and foreign governments or central banks, the imposition of currency controls, and speculation.

Derivatives – Using derivatives exposes the portfolio to additional risks and can increase portfolio losses and reduce opportunities for gains when market prices, interest rates or the derivatives themselves behave in a way not anticipated by the portfolio. Using derivatives also can have a leveraging effect and increase portfolio volatility. The portfolio may also have to sell assets at inopportune times to satisfy its obligations. Derivatives may be difficult to sell, unwind or value and the counterparty may default on its obligations to the portfolio. The portfolio's investments in derivative instruments may involve a small investment relative to the amount of investment exposure assumed and may result in losses exceeding the amounts invested in those instruments. Certain derivatives have the potential for unlimited loss, regardless of the size of the initial investment. The U.S. government is in the process of adopting and implementing regulations governing derivatives markets, including mandatory clearing of certain derivatives, margin and reporting requirements. The ultimate impact of the regulations remains unclear. Additional regulation of derivatives may make them more costly, may limit their availability, may disrupt markets or may otherwise adversely affect their value or performance.

Emerging Markets – Investments in the securities of issuers located in or principally doing business in emerging markets are subject to foreign investments risks. These risks are greater for investments in issuers in emerging market countries. Emerging market countries tend to have economic, political and legal systems that are less fully developed and are less stable than those of more developed countries. Emerging market securities are often particularly sensitive to market movements because their market prices tend to reflect speculative expectations. Low trading volumes may result in a lack of liquidity and in extreme price volatility.

Fixed-Income Securities – The market prices of fixed-income securities may go up or down, sometimes rapidly and unpredictably, due to general market conditions, such as real or perceived adverse economic or political conditions, inflation, changes in interest rates, lack of liquidity in the bond markets or adverse investor sentiment. In addition, the market value of a fixed income security may decline if the issuer or other obligor of the security fails to pay principal and/or interest, otherwise defaults or has its credit rating downgraded or is perceived to be less creditworthy, or the credit quality or value of any underlying assets declines. When market prices fall, the value of your investment will go down. The value of your investment will generally go down when interest rates rise. Interest rates have been at historically low levels, so the portfolio faces a heightened risk that interest rates may rise. A rise in rates tends to have a greater impact on the prices of longer term or duration securities.

Manager – The portfolio is subject to the risk that the Portfolio Construction Manager's judgments and investment decisions, as well as the methods, tools, resources, information and data, and the analyses employed or relied on by the Portfolio Construction Manager to make those judgments and decisions may be incorrect or otherwise may not produce the desired results. This could cause the portfolio to lose value or its results to lag relevant benchmarks or other funds with similar objectives.

Market – The market prices of the portfolio's securities or other assets may go up or down, sometimes rapidly or unpredictably, due to factors such as economic events, inflation, changes in interest rates, governmental actions or interventions, actions taken by the U.S. Federal Reserve or foreign central banks, market disruptions caused by tariffs, trade disputes or other factors, political developments, armed conflicts, economic sanctions, cybersecurity events, investor sentiment, <u>global and domestic effects of widespread or local health, weather or climate events</u>, and other factors that may or may not be related to the issuer of the security or other asset. If the market prices of the portfolio's securities and assets fall, the value of your investment will go down. Economies and financial markets throughout the world are increasingly interconnected. Events or circumstances in one or more countries or regions could be highly disruptive to, and have profound impacts on, global economies or markets. As a result, whether or not the portfolio invests in securities of issuers located in or with significant exposure to the countries directly affected, the value and liquidity of the portfolio's investments may go down. In recent years, the COVID-19 pandemic, the large expansion of government deficits and debt as a result of government actions to mitigate the effects of the pandemic, the Russian invasion of Ukraine and the rise of inflation have resulted in extreme volatility in the global economy and in global financial markets. These events could be prolonged and could continue to adversely affect the value and liquidity of the portfolio's investments, impair the portfolio's ability to satisfy redemption requests, and negatively impact the portfolio's performance.

REITs – Investing in real estate investment trusts ("REITs") involves unique risks. When the portfolio invests in REITs, it is subject to risks generally associated with investing in real estate. A REIT's performance depends on the types and locations of the properties it owns, how well it manages those properties and cash flow. REITs may have lower trading volumes and may be subject to more abrupt or erratic price movements than the overall securities markets. In addition to its own expenses, the portfolio will indirectly bear its proportionate share of any management and other expenses paid by REITs in which it invests. REITs are subject to a number of highly technical tax-related rules and requirements; and the failure to qualify as a REIT could result in corporate-level taxation, significantly reducing the return on an investment to the portfolio.

<u>Risk Factors Applicable to ALL FIVE of the Asset Allocation Portfolios</u>. *In addition* **to the risk factors discussed above, the Growth, Moderate Growth, Moderate, Conservative, and International Portfolios may be subject to the following risks:**

- Asset Allocation The Portfolio Construction Manager allocates the portfolio's assets among various asset classes and underlying funds. These allocations may be unsuccessful in maximizing the portfolio's return and/or avoiding investment losses, and may cause the portfolio to underperform.
- **Commodities** To the extent the portfolio invest in commodities or instruments whose performance is linked to the price of an underlying commodity or commodity index, the portfolio will be subject to the risks of investing in commodities, including regulatory, economic and political developments, weather events and natural disasters and market disruptions. The portfolio's investment exposure to the commodities markets may subject the portfolio to greater volatility than investments in more traditional securities, such as stocks and bonds. Commodities and commodity-linked investments may be less liquid than other investments. Commodity-linked investments are subject to the credit risks associated with the issuer, and their values may decline substantially if the issuer's creditworthiness deteriorates.
- **Counterparty** The portfolio will be subject to credit risk (that is, where changes in an issuer's financial strength or credit rating may affect an instrument's value) with respect to the amount it expects to receive from counterparties to derivatives, repurchase agreements and other financial contracts entered into by the portfolio or held by special purpose or structured vehicles. If counterparty becomes bankrupt or otherwise fails to perform its obligations due to financial difficulties, the value of your investment in the portfolio may decline. In addition, the fund may incur costs and may be hindered or delayed in enforcing its rights against a counterparty. <u>These risks may be greater to the extent a fund has more contractual exposure to a counterparty.</u>

- **Currency** The value of investments in securities denominated in foreign currencies increases or decreases as the rates of exchange between those currencies and the U.S. dollar change. Currency conversion costs and currency fluctuations could reduce or eliminate investment gains or add to investment losses. Currency exchange rates can be volatile, and are affected by factors such as general economic conditions, the actions of the U.S. and foreign governments or central banks, the imposition of currency controls, and speculation.
- **Derivatives** Using derivatives exposes the portfolio to additional risks and can increase portfolio losses and reduce opportunities for gains when market prices, interest rates or the derivatives themselves behave in a way not anticipated by the portfolio. Using derivatives also can have a leveraging effect and increase portfolio volatility. The portfolio may also have to sell assets at inopportune times to satisfy its obligations. Derivatives may be difficult to sell, unwind or value and the counterparty may default on its obligations to the portfolio. The portfolio's investments in derivative instruments may involve a small investment relative to the amount of investment exposure assumed and may result in losses exceeding the amounts invested in those instruments. Certain derivatives have the potential for unlimited loss, regardless of the size of the initial investment. The U.S. government is in the process of adopting and implementing regulations governing derivatives markets, including mandatory clearing of certain derivatives, margin and reporting requirements. The ultimate impact of the regulations remains unclear. Additional regulation of derivatives may make them more costly, may limit their availability, may disrupt markets or may otherwise adversely affect their value or performance.
- Emerging Markets Investments in the securities of issuers located in or principally doing business in emerging markets are subject to foreign investments risks. These risks are greater for investments in issuers in emerging market countries. Emerging market countries tend to have economic, political and legal systems that are less fully developed and are less stable than those of more developed countries. Emerging market securities are often particularly sensitive to market movements because their market prices tend to reflect speculative expectations. Low trading volumes may result in a lack of liquidity and in extreme price volatility.
- Equity Securities Equity securities represent an ownership interest in an issuer, rank junior in a company's capital structure and consequently may entail greater risk of loss than debt securities. Equity securities include common and preferred stocks. Stock markets are volatile. The price of equity securities fluctuates based on changes in a company's financial condition and overall market and economic conditions. If the market prices of the equity securities owned by the portfolio fall, the value of your investment in the portfolio will decline.
- Fixed-Income Securities The market prices of fixed-income securities may go up or down, sometimes rapidly and unpredictably, due to general market conditions, such as real or perceived adverse economic or political conditions, inflation, changes in interest rates, lack of liquidity in the bond markets or adverse investor sentiment. In addition, the market value of a fixed income security may decline if the issuer or other obligor of the security fails to pay principal and/or interest, otherwise defaults or has its credit rating downgraded or is perceived to be less creditworthy, or the credit quality or value of any underlying assets declines. When market prices fall, the value of your investment will go down. The value of your investment will generally go down when interest rates rise. Interest rates have been at historically low levels, so the portfolio faces a heightened risk that interest rates may rise. A rise in rates tends to have a greater impact on the prices of longer term or duration securities.
- Foreign Investments Investing in securities of foreign issuers or issuers with significant exposure to foreign markets involves additional risk. Foreign countries in which the portfolio may invest may have markets that are less liquid, less regulated and more volatile than U.S. markets. The value of the portfolio's investments may decline because of factors affecting the particular issuer as well as foreign markets and issuers generally, such as unfavorable government actions, political or financial instability or other adverse economic or political developments. Lack of information and weaker accounting standards also may affect the value of these securities.
- Interest Rate The value of fixed income securities generally goes down when interest rates rise, and therefore the value of your investment in the portfolio may also go down. Debt securities have varying levels of sensitivity to changes in interest rates. A rise in rates tends to have a greater impact on the prices of longer term or duration securities.

- Leveraging The value of your investment may be more volatile to the extent that the portfolio borrows or uses derivatives or other investments that have a leveraging effect on the portfolio. Other risks also will be compounded. This is because leverage generally magnifies the effect of a change in the value of an asset and creates a risk of loss of value on a larger pool of assets than the portfolio would otherwise have had. The use of leverage is considered to be a speculative investment practice and may result in the loss of a substantial amount, and possibly all, of the portfolio's assets. The portfolio also may have to sell assets at inopportune times to satisfy its obligations.
- Manager The portfolio is subject to the risk that the Portfolio Construction Manager's judgments and investment decisions, as well as the methods, tools, resources, information and data, and the analyses employed or relied on by the Portfolio Construction Manager to make those judgments and decisions may be incorrect or otherwise may not produce the desired results. This could cause the portfolio to lose value or its results to lag relevant benchmarks or other funds with similar objectives.
- Market The market prices of the portfolio's securities or other assets may go up or down, sometimes rapidly or unpredictably, due to factor such as economic events, inflation, changes in interest rates, governmental actions or interventions, actions taken by the U.S. Federal Reserve or foreign central banks, market disruptions caused by tariffs, trade disputes or other factors, political developments, armed conflicts, economic sanctions, cybersecurity events, investor sentiment, global and domestic effects of widespread or local health, weather or climate events, and other factors that may or may not be related to the issuer of the security or other asset. If the market prices of the portfolio's securities and assets fall, the value of your investment will go down. Economies and financial markets throughout the world are increasingly interconnected. Events or circumstances in one or more countries or regions could be highly disruptive to, and have profound impacts on, global economies or markets. As a result, whether or not the portfolio invests in securities of issuers located in or with significant exposure to the countries directly affected, the value and liquidity of the portfolio's investments may go down. In recent years, the COVID-19 pandemic, the large expansion of government deficits and debt as a result of government actions to mitigate the effects of the pandemic, the Russian invasion of Ukraine and the rise of inflation have resulted in extreme volatility in the global economy and in global financial markets. These events could be prolonged and could continue to adversely affect the value and liquidity of the portfolio's investments, impair the portfolio's ability to satisfy redemption requests, and negatively impact the portfolio's performance.
- **REITs** Investing in real estate investment trusts ("REITs") involves unique risks. When the portfolio invests in REITs, it is subject to risks generally associated with investing in real estate. A REIT's performance depends on the types and locations of the properties it owns, how well it manages those properties and cash flow. REITs may have lower trading volumes and may be subject to more abrupt or erratic price movements than the overall securities markets. In addition to its own expenses, the portfolio will indirectly bear its proportionate share of any management and other expenses paid by REITs in which it invests. REITs are subject to a number of highly technical tax-related rules and requirements; and the failure to qualify as a REIT could result in corporate-level taxation, significantly reducing the return on an investment to the portfolio.
- Underlying Funds Because the portfolio invests its assets in various underlying funds, its ability to achieve its investment objective depends largely on the performance of the underlying funds in which it invests. Each of the underlying funds in which the portfolio may invest has its own investment risks, and those risks can affect the value of the underlying funds' shares and therefore the value of the portfolio's investments. There can be no assurance that the investment objective of any underlying fund will be achieved. To the extent that the portfolio invests more of its assets in one underlying fund than in another, the portfolio will have greater exposure to the risks of that underlying fund. In addition, the portfolio will bear a pro rata portion of the operating expenses of the underlying funds in which it invests. The "Underlying Funds" section of the fund's prospectus identifies certain risks of each underlying fund.
- Valuation The sales price the portfolio could receive for any particular portfolio investment may differ from the portfolio's valuation of the investment, particularly for securities that trade in thin or volatile markets, that are priced based upon valuations provided by third-party pricing services that use matrix or evaluated pricing systems, or that are valued using a fair value methodology.

Additional Risk Factors Applicable to the Moderate Growth, Moderate, and Conservative Portfolios In addition to the risk factors discussed above, the Moderate Growth, Moderate, and Conservative Portfolios may be subject to the following risks:

- Credit If an issuer or other obligor (such as a party providing insurance or other credit enhancement) of a security held by the portfolio or a counterparty to a financial contract with the portfolio defaults or is downgraded, or is perceived to be less creditworthy, or if the value of any underlying assets declines, the value of your investment will typically decline. Below investment grade, high-yield debt securities (commonly known as "junk bonds") have a higher risk of default and are considered speculative. Subordinated securities are more likely to suffer a credit loss than non-subordinated securities of the same issuer and will be disproportionately affected by a default, downgrade or perceived decline in creditworthiness.
- ESG Integration Data ESG information from third-party data providers may be incomplete, inaccurate or unavailable. There are not currently universally accepted ESG standards or standardized practices for researching, generating, or analyzing ESG data, classifications, screens, and ratings ("ESG Data"). The factors and criteria considered when generating ESG Data and the results of such ESG research may differ widely across third-party ESG Data providers. The evaluation of ESG factors and criteria is often subjective, are often evolving and subject to ongoing refinement, and the third-party ESG Data providers used by the fund may not identify or evaluate every relevant ESG factor and/or criteria with respect to every investment. Due to differences in various countries' corporate disclosure and financial statement reporting obligations and availability, as well as timeliness of any such available information, a third-party ESG Data providers may be based on backward-looking analysis and data and may be subject to change in the future. Due to the specialized resources necessary to obtain ESG-related information underlying or related to the ESG Data provided by applicable third-party ESG research firms, the sub-adviser does not independently test or verify the data provided by such firms.
- Extension When interest rates rise, repayments of fixed income securities, particularly asset- and mortgage-backed securities, may occur more slowly than anticipated, extending the effective duration of these fixed income securities at below market interest rates and causing their market prices to decline more than they would have declined due to the rise in interest rates alone. This may cause the portfolio's share price to be more volatile.
- Floating Rate Loans Floating rate loans are often made to borrowers whose financial condition is troubled or highly leveraged. These loans frequently are rated below investment grade and are therefore subject to "High-Yield Debt Securities" risk. There is no public market for floating rate loans and the loans may trade infrequently and be subject to wide bid/ask spreads. Many floating rate loans are subject to restrictions on resale. Floating rate loans may have trade settlement periods in excess of seven days, which may result in the fund not receiving proceeds from the sale of a loan for an extended period. As a result, the fund may be subject to greater "Liquidity" risk than a fund that does not invest in floating rate loans and the fund may be constrained in its ability to meet its obligations (including obligations to redeeming shareholders). The lack of an active trading market may also make it more difficult to value floating rate loans. Rising interest rates can lead to increased default rates as payment obligations increase.
- High-Yield Debt Securities High-yield debt securities, commonly referred to as "junk bonds," are securities that are rated below "investment grade" (that is, securities rated below Baa/BBB) or, if unrated, determined to be below investment grade by the sub-adviser. Changes in interest rates, the market's perception of the issuers and the creditworthiness of the issuers may significantly affect the value of these bonds. Junk bonds are considered speculative, have a higher risk of default, tend to be less liquid and may be more difficult to value than higher grade securities. Junk bonds tend to be volatile and more susceptible to adverse events and negative sentiments.
- Liquidity The portfolio may make investments that are illiquid or that become illiquid after purchase. The liquidity and value of investments can deteriorate rapidly and those investments may be difficult or impossible to sell, particularly during times of market turmoil. These illiquid investments may also be difficult to value. If the portfolio is forced to sell an illiquid investment to meet redemption requests or other cash needs, the portfolio may be forced to sell at a loss.
- Prepayment or Call Many issuers have a right to prepay their securities. If interest rates fall, an issuer may exercise this right. If this happens, the portfolio will not benefit from the rise in market price that normally accompanies a decline in interest rates, and will be forced to reinvest prepayment proceeds at a time when yields on securities available in the market are lower than the yield on the prepaid security. The portfolio also may lose any premium it paid on the security.
- U.S. Government Agency Obligations Government agency obligations have different levels of credit support and, therefore, different degrees of credit risk. Securities issued by agencies and instrumentalities of the U.S. government that are supported by the full faith and credit of the U.S. generally present a lesser degree of credit risk than securities issued by agencies and instrumentalities sponsored by the U.S. government that are supported only by the issuer's right to borrow from the U.S. Treasury and securities issued by agencies and instrumentalities sponsored by the U.S. government that are supported only by the credit of the issuing agencies. Although the U.S. government has provided financial support to the Federal National Mortgage Association ("Fannie Mae") and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ("Freddie Mac") in the past, there can be no assurance that it will support these or other government sponsored entities in the future.

Additional Risk Factors Applicable to the Conservative Portfolio: In addition to the risk factors discussed above, the Conservative Portfolio may be subject to the following risks:

- **Counterparty** The portfolio will be subject to credit risk (that is, where changes in an issuer's financial strength or credit rating may affect an instrument's value) with respect to the amount it expects to receive from counterparties to derivatives, repurchase agreements and other financial contracts entered into by the portfolio or held by special purpose or structured vehicles. If counterparty becomes bankrupt or otherwise fails to perform its obligations due to financial difficulties, the value of your investment in the portfolio may decline. In addition, the fund may incur costs and may be hindered or delayed in enforcing its rights against a counterparty. <u>These risks may be greater to the extent a fund has more contractual exposure to a counterparty.</u>
- ESG Integration Data ESG information from third-party data providers may be incomplete, inaccurate or unavailable. There are not currently universally accepted ESG standards or standardized practices for researching, generating, or analyzing ESG data, classifications, screens, and ratings ("ESG Data"). The factors and criteria considered when generating ESG Data and the results of such ESG research may differ widely across third-party ESG Data providers. The evaluation of ESG factors and criteria is often subjective, are often evolving and subject to ongoing refinement, and the third-party ESG Data providers used by the fund may not identify or evaluate every relevant ESG factor and/or criteria with respect to every investment. Due to differences in various countries' corporate disclosure and financial statement reporting obligations and availability, as well as timeliness of any such available information, a third-party ESG Data provider may not always be successful in identifying material ESG information about a particular company. ESG Data provided by third-party providers may be based on backward-looking analysis and data and may be subject to change in the future. Due to the specialized resources necessary to obtain ESG-related information underlying or related to the ESG Data provided by applicable third-party ESG research firms, the sub-adviser does not independently test or verify the data provided by such firms.

Risk Factors Applicable to the International Growth Portfolio. In addition to the risk factors discussed above, the International Growth Portfolio may be subject to the following risks:

- Asset Allocation The Portfolio Construction Manager allocates the portfolio's assets among various underlying funds. These allocations may be unsuccessful in maximizing the portfolio's return and/or avoiding investment losses, and may cause the portfolio to underperform other investments with a similar strategy.
- Cash Management and Defensive Investing Money market instruments or short-term debt securities held by the portfolio for cash management or defensive investing purposes can fluctuate in value. Like other fixed income securities, they are subject to risk, including market, interest rate and credit risk. If the fund holds cash uninvested, the portfolio will not earn income on the cash and the portfolio's yield will go down. If a significant amount of the portfolio's assets are used for cash management or defensive investing purposes, it will be more difficult for the portfolio to achieve its objective.
- **Currency** When the portfolio invests in securities denominated in foreign currencies, the portfolio may incur currency conversion costs and may be affected favorably or unfavorably by changes in the rates of exchange between those currencies and the U.S. dollar. Currency exchange rates can be volatile and are affected by, among other factors, the general economics of a country, the actions of the U.S. and foreign governments or control banks, the imposition of currency controls, and speculation.
- Emerging Markets Investing in the securities of issuers located in or principally doing business in emerging markets are subject to foreign securities risks. These risks are greater for investments in emerging markets. Emerging market countries tend to have economic, political and legal systems that are less fully developed and are less stable than those of more advanced countries. Low trading volumes may result in a lack of liquidity and in extreme price volatility.
- Fixed-Income Securities The market prices of fixed-income securities may go up or down, sometimes rapidly or unpredictably due to general market conditions, such as real or perceived adverse economic or political conditions, inflation, changes in interest rates, lack of liquidity in the bond markets or adverse investor sentiment. When market prices fall, the value of investment in the portfolio will go down. A rise in rates tends to have a greater impact on the prices of longer term or duration securities.

If interest rates rise, repayments of fixed-income securities may occur more slowly than anticipated by the market. This may drive the prices of these securities down because their interest rates are lower than the current interest rate and they remain outstanding longer. This is sometimes referred to as extension risk.

Many issuers have a right to prepay their securities. If interest rates fall, an issuer may exercise this right. If this happens, the portfolio will be forced to reinvest prepayment proceeds at a time when yields on securities available in the market are lower than the yield on the prepaid security. This is sometimes referred to as prepayment or call risk.

• Foreign Securities – Foreign securities are subject to a number of additional risks, including nationalization or expropriation of assets, imposition of currency controls or restrictions, confiscatory taxation, political or financial instability and other adverse economic or political developments. Lack of information and less market regulation also may affect the value of these securities.

- Increase in Expenses Actual costs of investing in the portfolio may be higher than expected for a variety of reasons. For example, expense ratios may be higher than expected if average net assets decrease. Net assets are more likely to decrease and the portfolio expense ratios are more likely to increase when markets are volatile.
- Market The market prices of the portfolio's securities may go up or down, sometimes rapidly or unpredictably, due to general market conditions, such as real or perceived adverse economic or political conditions, inflation, changes in interest rates or currency rates, lack of liquidity in the markets or adverse investor sentiment. Market prices of securities also may go down due to events or conditions that affect particular sectors or issuers. When market prices fall, the value of the portfolio's investment will go down. The portfolio may experience a substantial or complete loss on any individual security. The recent financial crisis has caused a significant decline in the value and liquidity of many securities. In response to the financial crisis, the U.S. and other governments and the Federal Reserve and certain foreign central banks have taken steps to support financial markets. The withdrawal of this support could negatively affect the value and liquidity of certain securities. In addition, legislation recently enacted in the U.S. calls for changes in many aspects of financial regulation. The impact of the legislation on the markets, and the practical implications for market participants, may not be fully known for some time.
- Stocks Stocks may be volatile their prices may go up and down dramatically over the shorter term. These price movements may result from factors affecting individual companies, industries, the securities market as a whole or the over-all economy.
- Underlying Funds Because the portfolio invests its assets in various underlying funds, its ability to achieve its investment objective depends largely on the performance of the underlying funds in which it invests. Each of the underlying funds in which the portfolio may invest has its own investment risks, and those risks can affect the value of the underlying funds' shares and therefore the value of the portfolio's investments. There can be no assurance that the investment objective of any underlying fund will be achieved. To the extent that the portfolio invests more of its assets in one underlying fund than in another, the portfolio will have greater exposure to the risks of that underlying fund. In addition, the portfolio will bear a pro rata portion of the operating expenses of the underlying funds in which it invests.

Risk Factors Applicable to the Money Market Portfolio

An investment in this portfolio is not a bank deposit and is not insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") or any other government agency. Although the portfolio seeks to preserve the value of your investment at \$1.00 per share, it is possible to lose money by investing in this portfolio, and such loss is more likely in a low interest rate environment.

In addition, you should be aware that there have been a very small number of money market funds in other fund complexes that, in the past, have failed to pay investors \$1.00 per share for their investment in those funds (this is referred to as "breaking the buck"), and any money market fund may do so in the future. If a money market fund breaks the buck or if money market funds are perceived to be likely to do so, there could be significant redemptions from money market funds, driving market prices of securities down and making it more difficult for the portfolio to maintain a \$1.00 per share Net Asset Value. You should also be aware that Universal and its affiliates are under no obligation to provide financial support to the portfolio or take other measures to ensure that you receive \$1.00 per share for your investment in the portfolio. You should not invest in the portfolio with the expectation that any such action will be taken.

There is no assurance that the portfolio will meet its investment objective. The portfolio could underperform short-term debt instruments or other money market funds, or you could lose money, as a result of risks such as:

- Banking Industry The portfolio may invest a significant portion of its assets in obligations that are issued or backed by U.S. and non-U.S. banks and other financial services companies, and thus will be more susceptible to negative events affecting the worldwide financial services sector. Banks are sensitive to changes in money market and general economic conditions. Banks are highly regulated. Decisions by regulators may limit the loans banks make and the interest rates and fees they charge, and may reduce bank profitability.
- Credit An issuer or other obligor (such as a party providing insurance or other credit enhancement) of a security held by the portfolio or a counterparty to a financial contract with the fund may default or its credit may be downgraded, or the value of assets underlying a security may decline.



- Currency The value of investments in securities denominated in foreign currencies increases or decreases as the rates of exchange between those currencies and the U.S. dollar change. Currency conversion costs and currency fluctuations could reduce or eliminate investment gains or add to investment losses. Currency exchange rates can be volatile, and are affected by factors such as general economic conditions, the actions of the U.S. and foreign governments or central banks, the imposition of currency controls, and speculation.
- Foreign Investments Investing in securities of foreign issuers or issuers with significant exposure to foreign markets involves additional risk. Foreign countries in which the portfolio may invest may have markets that are less liquid, less regulated and more volatile than U.S. markets. The value of the portfolio's investments may decline because of factors affecting the particular issuer as well as foreign markets and issuers generally, such as unfavorable government actions, political or financial instability or other adverse economic or political developments. Lack of information and weaker accounting standards also may affect the value of these securities.
- Interest Rate The interest rates on short-term obligations held in the portfolio will vary, rising or falling with short-term interest rates generally. Interest rates in the United States have recently risen after being at historically low levels. The portfolio's yield will tend to lag behind general changes in interest rates. A general rise in interest rates may cause investors to sell fixed-income securities on a large scale, which could adversely affect the price and liquidity of fixed-income securities and could also result in increased redemptions from the fund. The U.S. Federal Reserve has raised interest rates from historically low levels. Any additional interest rates in the future may cause the value of fixed-income securities to decrease. During periods of extremely low or negative short-term interest rates, the fund may not be able to maintain a positive yield or total return or be able to preserve the value of your investment at \$1.00 per share.
- Liquidity The portfolio may make investments that are illiquid or that become illiquid after purchase. The liquidity and value of investments can deteriorate rapidly and those investments may be difficult or impossible to sell, particularly during times of market turmoil. These illiquid investments may also be difficult to value. If the portfolio is forced to sell an illiquid investment to meet redemption requests or other cash needs, the portfolio may be forced to sell at a loss.
- Manager The underlying fund is actively managed by such fund's sub-adviser. Consequently, the underlying fund is subject to the risk that the methods and analyses employed by the sub-adviser may not produce the desired results.
- Market Factors such as economic events, inflation, changes in interest rates, governmental actions or interventions, actions taken by the U.S. Federal Reserve or foreign central banks, market disruptions caused by tariffs, trade disputes or other factors, political developments, armed conflicts, economic sanctions, cybersecurity events, investor sentiment, the global and domestic effects of widespread or local health, weather or climate events, lack of liquidity or other disruptions in the bond markets, or other adverse market events and conditions could cause the value of an investment in the portfolio, or its yield, to decline. While the portfolio seeks to maintain a \$1.00 share price, when market prices fall, the value of an investment in the portfolio could go down. Economies and financial markets throughout the world are increasingly interconnected. Events or circumstances in one or more countries or regions could be highly disruptive to, and have profound impacts on, global economies or markets. As a result, whether or not the portfolio invests in securities of issuers located in or with significant exposure to the countries directly affected, the value and liquidity of the portfolio's investments may go down. Raising the ceiling on U.S. government debt and periodic legislation to fund the government have become increasingly politicized. Any failure to do either could lead to a default on U.S. government obligations, with unpredictable consequences for the fund's investments and the fund's ability to preserve the value of your investment at \$1.00 per share, and generally for economies and markets in the U.S. and elsewhere.
- Government Money Market Fund Government Money Market Funds use special pricing and valuation conventions that currently facilitate a stable share price of \$1.00, although there is no guarantee that a fund will be able to maintain a \$1.00 share price. Circumstances could arise that would prevent the payment of interest or principal on U.S. government securities, which could adversely affect their value and the fund's ability to preserve the value of your investment at \$1.00 per share. Recent changes in the rules governing money market funds are likely to result in an increased demand for U.S. government securities, which could affect the availability of such instruments for investment and the fund's ability to pursue its investment strategies.

- **Portfolio Selection** The underlying fund's sub-adviser's judgment about the quality, relative yield or value of, or market trends affecting, a particular security or sector, or about interest rates, may be incorrect.
- Redemption The portfolio may experience periods of heavy redemptions that could cause the portfolio to liquidate its assets at inopportune times or at a loss or depressed value, and that could affect the portfolio's ability to maintain a \$1.00 share price. Redemption risk is greater to the extent that the underlying fund has investors with large shareholdings, short investment horizons, or unpredictable cash flow needs. The redemption by one or more large shareholders of their holdings in the underlying fund could have an adverse impact on the remaining shareholders in the fund. In addition, the underlying fund may suspend redemptions when permitted by applicable regulations.
- Repurchase Agreements If the other party to a repurchase agreement defaults on its obligation, the portfolio may suffer delays and incur costs or lose money in exercising its rights under the agreement. If the seller fails to repurchase the security and the market value declines, the portfolio could lose money. If the seller becomes insolvent and subject to liquidation or reorganization under applicable bankruptcy or other laws, the portfolio's ability to dispose of the underlying securities may be restricted.
- U.S. Government Securities Securities backed by the Treasury or the full faith and credit of the U.S. government are guaranteed only as to the timely payment of interest and principal when held to maturity. Accordingly, the current market values for these securities will fluctuate with changes in interest rates and the financial condition or credit rating of the U.S. government. Notwithstanding that these securities are backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government, circumstances could arise that would prevent the payment of interest or principal. Securities issued by U.S. government-sponsored entities and federal agencies and instrumentalities that are not backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. government. U.S. government securities are subject to market risk, interest rate risk and credit risk.
- Yield The amount of income received by the portfolio will go up or down depending on day-to-day variations in short-term interest rates, and when interest rates are very low the portfolio's expenses could absorb all or a significant portion of the portfolio's income. If interest rates increase, the portfolio's yield may not increase proportionately. For example, Transamerica Asset Management ("TAM") or its affiliates may discontinue any temporary voluntary fee limitation or recoup amounts previously waived or reimbursed. In addition, the recent adoption of more stringent regulations governing the management of money market funds could have a negative effect on yields.

The information below provides some indication of the risks of investing in the Variable Account by showing changes in the Investment Option's performance from year to year, and by showing how the Investment Option's average annual returns for 1, 5, and 10 years compare with those of a broad measure of market performance. Each Portfolio's past performance is not necessarily an indication of how the Investment Option will perform in the future.

Performance reflects Contract fees and expenses that are paid by each investor. This performance does not reflect optional benefit expenses.

AVERAGE ANNUAL TOTAL RETURNS

(For the period ended December 31, 2023)

| | 1 year | 5 years | 10 years |
|---|--------|---------|----------|
| Average Annual Total Returns | | | |
| Universal VIA Asset Allocation – Growth Portfolio | 15.97% | 8.97% | 6.33% |
| Universal VIA Asset Allocation – Growth Portfolio – Index (S&P 500- 70%, MSCI EAFE NR USD – 30%, Bloomberg US Aggregate Bond, 0%) | 23.87% | 13.45% | 9.72% |
| Universal VIA Asset Allocation – Moderate Growth Portfolio | 13.38% | 6.96% | 5.20% |
| Universal VIA Asset Allocation – Moderate Growth Portfolio – Index (S&P 500- 49, MSCI EAFE NR USD – 21%, Bloomberg US Aggregate Bond, 30%) | 18.17% | 9.89% | 7.50% |
| Universal VIA Asset Allocation – Moderate Portfolio | 10.07% | 3.98% | 3.61% |
| Universal VIA Asset Allocation – Moderate Portfolio – Index (S&P 500- 35%, MSCI EAFE NR USD – 15%, Bloomberg US Aggregate Bond, 50%) | 14.46% | 7.44% | 5.94% |
| Universal VIA Asset Allocation – Conservative Portfolio | 9.13% | 2.69% | 2.71% |
| Universal VIA Asset Allocation – Conservative Portfolio – Index (S&P 500- 25%, MSCI EAFE NR USD – 10%, Bloomberg US Aggregate Bond, 65%) | 11.77% | 5.61% | 4.78% |
| Universal VIA Asset Allocation – International Growth Portfolio | 11.84% | 5.82% | 2.67% |
| Universal VIA Asset Allocation – International Growth Portfolio – Index (MSCI ACWI ex USA Index – 100%) | 15.62% | 7.08% | 3.83% |
| Universal VIA Asset Allocation – Money Market Portfolio | 4.76% | 1.68% | 0.97% |

(Index reflects no deductions for fees, expenses, or taxes)

Back Cover Page

To learn more about the Variable Account, the Contracts, and the Sub-Accounts and their underlying investments, you can obtain a copy of the Variable Account's annual and semi-annual reports or a copy of the Statement of Additional Information ("SAI") dated the same date of this Prospectus. The SAI contains additional information about the Variable Account, the Contracts and Universal Life. The SAI has been filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") and is incorporated into this Prospectus by reference. You may obtain these documents without charge from Universal Life or make inquiries about your Contract upon written request to <u>Universal Life Insurance Company, Metro Office Park, Street 1, Lot 10, Guaynabo, PR 00968</u>, or by telephoning 787-706-7095. Copies of these documents are also available on the SEC's website at <u>http://www.sec.gov</u> and may be obtained, upon payment of a duplicating fee, by electronic request at the following email address: <u>publicinfo@sec.gov</u>.

EDGAR Contract Identifier: C000232197